Public Document Pack

LONDON

Borough Planning To Councillors on the Committee
COm m i ttee Councillor Henry Higgins (Chairman)

Councillor Steve Tuckwell (Vice-

Date: WEDNESDAY, 05 APRIL Chairman)
2023 Councillor Farhad Choubedar

Councillor Ekta Gonhil

Time: 7.00 PM Councillor Gursharan Mand

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - Councillor Raju Sansarpuri
CIVIC CENTRE Councillor Jagjit Singh

Meeting Members of the Public and

Details: Media are welcome to attend.

This meeting may also be
broadcast live.

This Agenda is available online at:
www.hillingdon.gov.uk or use a smart phone
camera and scan the code below:

Published: Tuesday, 28 March 2023

Contact: Ryan Dell
Tel: 01895 250636
Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

Phase Il, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW


http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/

Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watch a broadcast of this
Watching & recording this meeting meeting on the Council's YouTube
Channel: Hillingdon London

You can watch the public part of this meeting on the

Council's YouTube channel, live or archived after the Those attending should be aware that the
meeting. Residents and the media are also welcome to Council will film and record proceedings
attend in person, and if they wish, report on the public part of for both official record and resident digital

. and 1 ot tind .
the meeting. Any individual or organisation may record or engagement in democracy

film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be met. The
Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all attending and an area for
the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should be contacted for further information
and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the Civic
Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with the

Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short walk away. Limited
parking is available at the Civic Centre. For details on
availability and how to book a parking space, please contact
Democratic Services.

Please enter via main reception and visit the Centre

security desk to sign-in and collect a visitors pass. You will
then be directed to the Committee Room.

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda please contact
Democratic Services. For those hard of hearing
an Induction Loop System is available for use.

Mezzanine
car park

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please
follow the signs to the nearest FIRE EXIT and assemble on
the Civic Centre forecourt.

Lifts must not be used unless instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY
INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to
evacuate using the stairs, should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committees

Petitions, Speaking and Councillors

Petitions — Those who have organised a petition of 20 or more people who live in the Borough, can speak
at a Planning Committee in support of or against an application. Petitions must be submitted in writing to
the Council in advance of the meeting. Where there is a petition opposing a planning application there is
also the right for the applicant or their agent to address the meeting for up to 5 minutes. The Chairman
may vary speaking rights if there are multiple petitions

Ward Councillors — There is a right for local councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members — The planning committee is made up of the experienced Councillors who meet in
public every three weeks to make decisions on applications.

How the meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the more complex or controversial proposals for development and also
enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as householder extensions are generally dealt with by the
Council’s planning officers under delegated powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which comprises reports on each application
Reports with petitions will normally be taken at the beginning of the meeting.
The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser will speak, followed by the agent/applicant followed by
any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee discuss the item and may seek clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the recommendation in the report, or on an alternative
recommendation put forward by a Member of the Committee, which has been seconded.

How the Committee makes decisions

The Committee must make its decisions by having regard to legislation, policies laid down by National
Government, by the Greater London Authority — under ‘The London Plan’ and Hillingdon’s own planning
policies. The Committee must also make its decision based on material planning considerations and case
law and material presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee must conduct themselves when dealing with planning
matters and when making their decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of Conduct’, which is part of
the Council’s Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee cannot take into account issues which are not planning
considerations such as the effect of a development upon the value of surrounding properties, nor the loss
of a view (which in itself is not sufficient ground for refusal of permission), nor a subjective opinion relating
to the design of the property. When making a decision to refuse an application, the Committee will be
asked to provide detailed reasons for refusal based on material planning considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application, the applicant has the right of appeal against the decision. A
Planning Inspector appointed by the Government will then consider the appeal. There is no third party
right of appeal, although a third party can apply to the High Court for Judicial Review, which must be done
within 3 months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements
1  Apologies for Absence

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting
3  To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting 1-10
4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent
5 To confirm that the items of business marked Part | will be considered in
Public and the Items marked Part Il will be considered in Private
PART | - Members, Public and the Press
Applications with a Petition
Address Ward Description & Recommendation | Page
6 | Brandon Lift & Tool | Charville Retrospective application for the | 11 — 28
Hire Land Off Hayes proposed use of
End Road, Hayes Storing/Displaying/Selling of | 140 — 143
Cars/Light Goods Vehicles within
74089/APP/2022/1960 land off of Unit 1 and Unit 2,
Hayes End Road, Hayes.
Recommendation: Refusal
7 | Hillingdon House, | Hillingdon | Retrospective Application for the | 29 — 54
Banqueting Suite, | West use of the ground floor as a
Wren Avenue, banqueting suite, with associated | 144 — 150
Uxbridge ancillary facilities at basement
level for private civil ceremonies,
77108/APP/2022/691 weddings and parties  (Sui

Generis).

Recommendation: Refusal




2 Northbrook Drive,
Northwood

56315/APP/2022/2504

Northwood

Erection of first floor side and part
rear extensions, replacement of
pitched roof over retained part
single storey rear extension with a
flat roof, part demolition and
conversion of existing garage to
habitable accommodation,
extension and conversion of roof
space to habitable accommodation
including 2no rear dormers and
the formation of a crown roof, new
front porch and exterior
alterations.

Recommendation: Approval

55-72

151 - 159

18 Iver Lane, Cowley,
Uxbridge

19016/APP/2023/20

Uxbridge

Demolition of existing dwelling and
erection of 4 x self-contained units
including 1 x studio unit, 2 x 1-bed
units and 1 x 3-bed unit with
associated landscaping, parking,
refuse and recycling.

Recommendation:
Sec 106

Approve +

73 -98

160 — 168

Applications without a Petition

Address

Ward

Description & Recommendation

Page

10

32 Kingsend, Ruislip

9894/APP/2022/3871

Ruislip

Demolition of existing house and
garage and construction of a block
of seven purpose-built apartments.

Recommendation: Refusal

99 -126

169 - 177

11

53 Lavendar Rise,

Yiewsley

46236/APP/2023/54

West
Drayton

Erection of a single storey
extension to the rear and side and
erection of porch.

Recommendation: Approval

127 - 138

178 — 183

PART | - Plans for Borough Planning Committee




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

Minutes %

BOROUGH PLANNING COMMITTEE

9 March 2023 H[L[

NGDON

LONDON

Meeting held at Council Chamber - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:
Councillors Henry Higgins (Chairman)
Steve Tuckwell (Vice-Chairman)
Philip Corthorne

Ekta Gohil

Gursharan Mand

Raju Sansarpuri

Jagjit Singh

LBH Officers Present:

Michael Briginshaw, Principal Planning Officer

Nesha Burnham, Principal Planning Officer

Katie Crosbie, Planning Team Leader

Glen Egan, Legal Advisor

Roz Johnson, Planning Services Manager

Noel Kelly, Interim Head of Development Management
Liz Penny, Democratic Services Officer

Fiona Rae, Planning Team Leader

Sophie Wilmot, Transport Strategist

Also Present:

Ward Councillor Tony Burles

101. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
Apologies were received from Councillor Farhad Choubedar with Councillor Philip
Corthorne substituting.

102. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)
There were no declarations of interest.

103. | TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda
Item 3)
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting dated 14 February 2023 be agreed
as an accurate record.

104. | MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item

4)

None.

Page 1




105.

TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART | WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THE ITEMS MARKED PART Il WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that all items of business were marked Part | and would be considered
in public.

106.

NORTHWOOD POLICE STATION, 2 MURRAY ROAD, NORTHWOOD -
46639/APP/2022/60 (Agenda Item 6)

Change of use from former Police Station (sui generis) to mixed use place of
worship (Class F.1) and community centre (Class F.2), along with minor
alterations to car park layout.

Officers presented the application and highlighted the information in the addendum. It
was noted that the application sought the change of use of a Grade Il listed building
situated in a Conservation Area. The schedule of existing and proposed activities,
together with the likely busiest periods and the estimated numbers of cars which would
use the site were highlighted to Members. It was noted that the building had a physical
capacity of 292 people and a sanitary capacity of approximately 200. It was anticipated
that 100 people would be on site at the busiest times.

Officers had raised concerns in relation to parking stress, traffic, the lack of sustainable
transport and air quality hence the application was recommended for refusal on the
following grounds:

1. Unacceptable impact on highways safety;

2. Unacceptable impact on air quality; and

3. Failure to secure mitigation through a S106 legal agreement by virtue of
recommendation for refusal.

A petition in objection to the scheme had been received and the lead petitioner
addressed the Committee. Key points raised included:

e Petitioners’ objections were based purely on the grounds of traffic congestion,
noise and air pollution;

e Volume of traffic in Northwood was already an issue and the proposed change
of use would have a major impact on traffic congestion, safety and the health of
all Northwood residents;

e The Iron Aid Foundation (IAF) had stated that the premises would be in use from
dawn until almost midnight. 100+ attendees were expected to attend some
events including Friday prayers and festivals. Seven rooms would be available
for rental for other activities;

e The Iron Aid Foundation claimed that up to 50 staff had previously worked at the
police station. In reality, only 6 members of staff had worked out of Northwood
Police Station at one time;

¢ Northwood Police Station had never been a 24 hour Police facility hence a
Police telephone box had been placed outside with an out of hours connection
to Uxbridge Police Station;

e Drop off and pick up at the premises would result in major congestion in a
restricted parking zone;

e It was likely that drop off / pick up drivers would come into conflict with shoppers

Page 2




using the Waitrose car park opposite the entrance to the Police Station car park;
Crossing the busy junction would be dangerous;

The IAF had been worshipping at St John’s Church in Hallowell Road for over
10 years without any impact on the community but the proposed site was within
the central conservation area;

If granted, the proposal would lead to an increase in air pollution;

Northwood town centre was at saturation point with heavy traffic and was about
to get worse due to the large number of apartment blocks planned / being built.

The applicant and agent for the application were in attendance and addressed the
Committee. Key points highlighted included:

The IAF was an existing organisation which had been operating in Northwood
for 12 years close to the proposed site with no complaints raised;

There were insufficient faith and community facilities available in the Borough at
present;

The proposed location was a vacant listed building which needed to be
renovated and brought back into use;

The proposal would resolve a number of existing issues — the current operation
at St John’s Church had no parking provision whereas there would be 15 spaces
at the Police Station. There were no planning restrictions at the Church whereas
restrictions were proposed at the Police Station. Moreover, the proposal
obligated travel planning and parking management;

External consultants had raised no significant concerns;

The policy threshold for refusal on traffic grounds was severe cumulative
impact — this was not mentioned in the report;

The IAF would agree to pay the air quality mitigation contribution if the
application were approved;

The maximum capacity had been calculated by officers as a theoretical exercise
based on building regulations;

If there was to be a population explosion in Northwood, good community
facilities would be needed to support it;

The IAF had been founded in 2010 and aimed to help the Community;

Prayer was important but represented a small part of the planned centre
activities;

The Foundation had a proven track record of helping those in need e.g. raising
significant funds for the Paul Strickland Scanner appeal. £250k had also been
raised locally in the last five years for good causes and they were currently
planning to join forces with the ‘Live at Home’ charity;

The |AF had developed a good relationship with St John’s Church based on
trust and had received no complaints;

The IAF had engaged positively with the Council and the community and
planned activities would not overlap peak traffic times of school drop of and pick
up;

The proposals had cross-faith support.

The Planning Service Manager addressed Members in relation to some of the points
raised. It was confirmed that officers were not recommending a refusal reason in
respect of noise following advice received from the Council’s noise officer and from an
external consultant.

The new site would allow an increase in use and the existing site currently being used
would still be available.

Page 3




For the purpose of clarification, Members’ attention was drawn to paragraph 111 of the
National Planning Policy Framework which stated that “Development should only be
prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact
on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be
severe”. It was confirmed that officers had concerns that there would be an
unacceptable impact on highways safety.

In response to questions from the Committee, the lead petitioner confirmed that
Maxwell Road was extremely congested at all times- even at night.

Members sought clarification from the agent regarding projected numbers of attendees.
It was confirmed that these had been calculated based on current numbers and those
expected to attend future events. It was estimated that approximately 100 people would
attend Friday prayers- attendees at other events would be far fewer.

In response to their questions regarding parking and congestion, Members heard from
the agent that this would be carefully managed. Eventbrite would be used as a booking
system for the car parking spaces. Those intending to visit the premises would be able
to see whether a space was available in the car park and, if not, could make alternative
arrangements. There would be car parking spaces for those with disabilities. With
regard to drop offs and pick-ups, it was confirmed that many of the proposed events
would take place in the evenings when it was quieter. Although there were parking
restrictions in the area, a quick drop off or pick-up was permitted. In terms of ‘hard
measures’ to address parking issues, it was anticipated that people would not try to
access the car park once it was full. With regard to the 30% car share mode, it was
confirmed that this was a voluntary arrangement — a high degree of car sharing (2.7
people per car on average) was anticipated especially for evening prayers.

Further to questions from Committee Members, it was claimed that the number of
HGVs likely to use the Waitrose store opposite the application site was insignificant
hence there would be little opportunity for conflict.

Councillors sought clarification regarding the air quality concerns and the applicant’s
failure to secure mitigation through a S106 legal agreement in relation to this. Members
were informed that air quality had been reviewed by the Council’s air quality specialists
who felt the proposed change of use would result in harm due to net additional trips.
The development was not deemed to be air quality neutral, and the measures
proposed were not sufficient to mitigate the total emissions. The applicant had claimed
that the change of use would not result in additional trips therefore had not agreed to
contribute towards air quality mitigation measures.

In respect of highways concerns, Members heard that parents dropping their children
off for activities would often be obliged to get out their cars and cross a busy road — this
was a safety concern. It was anticipated that visitors to the premises would try and park
as near as possible rather than using local car parks. It was likely that some 50 or 60
cars would visit in a day with car parking spaces for only 14 cars. Moreover, the busy
junction and HGV movements opposite were a matter of concern.

In response to further requests for clarification, Members heard that much of the
information provided to officers had related to Friday prayers and there had been a gap
in the information relating to the proposed community use of the premises especially
between the hours of 6-7pm. There could be up to 90 people on site at that time and
this had not been fully assessed as part of the application. Estimated numbers of

Page 4




attendees were not necessarily an indication of future usage and it was felt that the
worst-case scenario had not been adequately assessed by the applicant.

Members expressed their concerns regarding parking, vehicle movements and
attendees and noted the strength of the comments from Highways officers.

Noise and disturbance were also a matter of concern. It was confirmed that third party
advice had been taken in relation to this and, if approved, mitigation measures were
proposed such as closure of the parking at certain times, prohibiting external public
address and a Facility Use Operations Manual. It was felt that an acceptable noise
environment could be achieved therefore noise was not recommended as a reason for
approval. It was confirmed that concerns regarding the access gate were covered in
Highways reason for refusal.

In summary Members were in favour of bringing the Police Station back into use and
commented that a place of worship would be welcomed. However, it was felt that this
was the wrong location given the concerns regarding the highways implications on a
busy junction, with a supermarket opposite and a school nearby. Air quality was also a
matter of considerable concern.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

107.

NORTHWOOD POLICE STATION, 2 MURRAY ROAD, NORTHWOOD -
46639/APP/2022/56 (Agenda Item 7)

Internal alterations and repairs including relevant works. Reinstatement and
repair works to windows, doors, police lamp and call box (application for listed
building consent)

Officers presented the application which was recommended for refusal. It was noted
that the application site was Grade Il Listed and formed part of the Green Lane
Conservation Area.

A petition had been received in support of the application. The lead petitioner and the
agent addressed the Committee. Key points raised included:

e The interior of the building was in an extremely poor condition.

e The application for Listed Building Consent only related to the minimal internal

alterations needed in relation to the change of use.

The applicant intended to fully refurbish the building.

Less than substantial harm had been identified by officers.

Officers were satisfied that sufficient public benefits outweighed the harm.

It was only because of the earlier refusal that this application was also being

refused.

e The applicant was aware that taking on a listed building was not for the faint-
hearted.

e Pre-application advice had been taken and the proposals had been amended
accordingly - the congregation would be split into smaller units and events
staggered. Internal alterations had been minimised and no external alterations
were proposed.

Page 5




e Under the proposal the lamp and call box would be re-installed.
Members noted that the application was linked to the previous one which had been
refused. The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

108.

TORMEAD, 27 DENE ROAD, NORTHWOOD - 9043/APP/2022/2490 (Agenda Item 8)

Demolition of existing buildings and replacement with up to 2.5 Storey extension
to main building to provide 4 self-contained flats and redevelopment of existing
coach house building to provide 1 maisonette unit with associated parking, cycle
and bin storage, and landscape works.

Officers introduced the application and highlighted the additional information set out in
the addendum. It was considered that the proposed development would not harm the
character and appearance of the area and would not unduly impact the living
conditions of neighbouring properties. The proposal would provide 16 car parking
spaces, seven of which would be allocated to the existing flats at the site. The
application was recommended for approval.

A petition had been submitted in objection to the application. The Lead Petitioner was
in attendance and addressed the Committee highlighting the following points:

e The application site was located in an Area of Special Local Character (ASLC).
The Heritage report described the special local characteristics of Dene Road
ASLC as comprising detached houses set back from the road with large
gardens, a verdant appearance and mature trees in profusion. This ASLC was
about the front gardens — shrubs, trees and green features of quality.

e The front garden of Tormead currently had trees in abundance. The application
plan sought to cut down the hedge, fell 13 trees at the front and turn the current
small car park into a 16-space car park.

e The building site next door to Tormead was an ecological disaster zone.
Residents did not want to see the same happen at Tormead.

e The Council’s policies set out the need to conserve ASLCs and protect bio-
diversity to support changes to adapt to climate change and encourage the
development of wildlife corridors. Dene Road was already such a wildlife
corridor and needed protection.

e A suggested solution was to install the new parking spaces in the basement.
The current front garden could then be retained.

The agent was in attendance and addressed the Committee. Key points highlighted
included:

e The proposal sought to deliver 4 3-bed units and a 2-bed flat — a net gain of 4
homes.

e The proposal had been developed in consultation with planning officers and a
Conservation Officer. It had taken account of officer’s feedback and had resulted

Page 6




in a heritage-led sympathetically designed scheme with no loss of good quality
trees. Verdancy would be very much maintained.

e The proposal would make better use of an underutilised site and would make a
positive contribution to meet the Borough'’s housing needs.

e It would not impact adversely on neighbouring amenity and would offer high
quality accommodation, an abundance of attractive amenity space and sufficient
on-site parking.

e The extension’s footprint would be comparable to the current and represented a
modest and subservient addition to Tormead. Space standards would be
exceeded.

e The proposal would sustain the current listing status.

e Planning conditions would be accepted including obscure windows to account
for neighbouring amenity.

In response to Members’ questions, the agent confirmed that verdancy would be
maintained as per the proposed landscaping plans. There would be a loss of 19 trees,
but these would be replaced by 4 new trees and additional verdancy.

Members welcomed the proposed much needed family dwellings but expressed
concern regarding the impact on the ASLC noting that the development would
constitute a dramatic change to Dene Road. It was confirmed that, during the pre-
application stage, extensive negotiations had taken place to achieve the current
scheme which was considered acceptable. The current coach house would be
retained, and the proposed extension would be set behind it hence the main building
would remain the key feature and the extension would be subordinate to it. Under the
current scheme, the dormers had also been reduced and the proposed glazed link
would further protect the current street scene.

In terms of car parking, Members heard that there were currently 8 spaces and the
area was tarmacked. The proposal would be to extend this area to accommodate 16
car parking spaces. Soft landscaping would protect verdancy. There would also be
replacement trees to the front and to the side and the number could potentially be
increased so as to further maintain verdancy.

Councillors noted that the proposed car parking area would be semi-exposed whilst the
current one was well-screened. It was vital that the verdancy of Dene Road be
protected by way of conditions.

In response to their requests for further clarification, Members were informed that the
species of replacement trees could be conditioned, and the Council’s Tree and
Landscape Officer would advise on this. There would be controls in place to ensure
replacement trees were of high quality. It was felt that the proposed scheme would
appropriately protect the ASLC and the locally listed building which were non-
designated heritage assets — Members were referred to the policies set out on page
153 of the agenda pack (DMHB 3 and NPPF paragraph 2.03).

Members sought reassurance regarding access for emergency vehicles, the amenity of
the basement flats and the location of the cycle parking provision. It was confirmed that
the ground level lowered at the site thereby ensuring that the occupiers of the
basement level flats received adequate light and outlook. The location of the cycle
store was pointed out to Members, and it was confirmed that there was sufficient space
in the car park area for emergency vehicles to gain access.

At the request of the Committee, it was agreed that the landscaping condition be

Page 7




amended to ensure the 19 current trees be replaced with 19 trees to be planted within
Northwood. The landscaping condition would be submitted to the planning authority in
consultation with the Chairman. In terms of surfacing for the car park, Members
requested that permeable materials be used. It was agreed that delegated authority be
granted to the Planning Service Manager, in consultation with the Chairman, to reword
conditions appropriately.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed subject to the rewording of the conditions relating to landscaping
and materials as discussed.

RESOLVED:

1. That delegated authority be granted to the Planning Service Manager, in
consultation with the Chairman, to tweak the conditions in relation to
landscaping to ensure verdancy and the condition regarding materials to
ensure permeability; and

2. That the application be approved.

109.

170 HAREFIELD ROAD, UXBRIDGE - 23469/APP/2022/3593 (Agenda Item 9)

Erection of new 3-bedroom bungalow with dormers and roof lights serving
accommodation in the roof on land to the front of existing dwelling; garden and
bike stores in garden.

Officers introduced the application which was recommended for refusal. The
application followed a previous application which had been refused and dismissed at
appeal. The current application was recommended for refusal as it was felt it would
form an uncharacteristic, cramped and incongruous form of development which would
obscure the host dwelling, reduce openness and fail to harmonise with the character of
the area and the street scene. It was also felt that the proposal would give rise to
harmful overlooking and loss of privacy between the proposed dwelling and numbers
170 and 172 Harefield Road.

A petition in objection to the development had been received. The lead petitioner
addressed the Committee highlighting the following key points:

e Residents were concerned that the properties would effectively disappear from
the street scene due to the gradient of the road.

e Nos. 217 and 215 across the road had been offset to ensure they did not look at
each other and it was important they did not lose their outlook.

e Numbers 172, 170a and 170b shared the driveway and in excess of 7 vehicles a
day could use it. This raised a concern in terms of road safety as there was a
blind bend when exiting.

e The proposal would constitute an overdevelopment of the site and the current
infrastructure was inadequate.

The agent for the application addressed the Committee and highlighted the following
points:

e The applicant had amended the scheme in accordance with the inspector's
comments.

e The inspector had been satisfied that the siting of the dwelling would not be
uncharacteristic, and the sub-division of the site would not be harmful to the

Page 8




appearance of the area.

e The inspector had concluded that limited separation to side and rear boundaries
would cause the dwelling to appear cramped but the harm arising from the
obscuring of 170 and 172 Harefield Road would be modest. Harm to the area
would also be modest.

e To address the inspector’s concerns, the proposal had been reduced in width,
depth and height. Separation distances had been increased and the roof height
reduced by 1m. The building footprint had been reduced by 14% and the internal
floor area would be 26% less than the previous scheme.

e The new proposal would be more in keeping with the street scene.

e The lounge doors would be set 21.4m away from the front of the attached
garage to no.170.

e Planting would minimise overlooking. The garden to the proposed dwelling had
been increased in size and now provided 43 square metres more than the
Hillingdon standard.

e There was now adequate space to the front of numbers 170 and 172 to provide
additional planting if required.

e The site had been separated from no. 170 and did not form part of the front
garden therefore should be considered as undeveloped land.

e All concerns of the inspector had been addressed. If refused, the applicant
would consider appealing the decision.

Ward Councillor Tony Burles was in attendance and spoke in support of petitioners
stating that the proposal was effectively to build a large unit in a front garden. This
would be detrimental to the amenity of numbers 170 and 172 and constituted an
unacceptable level of overdevelopment.

In response to questions from the Committee, Members were informed that the
distance between properties had been scaled at 18m. It was confirmed that previous
reasons for refusal relating to transport and highways and access had been dismissed
by the inspector. The 2 remaining reasons for refusal as set out in the report related to
overdevelopment and overlooking.

Members expressed considerable concern regarding the uncharacteristic nature of the
proposal. The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a
vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

110.

FORMER GARAGES SITE REAR OF SULLIVAN CRESCENT, HAREFIELD -
60653/APP/2022/531 (Agenda ltem 10)

Erection of no.4 x two storey terraced houses and no.2 x two storey semi-
detached houses, with associated car parking and landscaping works.

Officers introduced the application which was recommended for approval. The
application was a re-submission following the lapse of the previously granted planning
permission. It was noted that the garden sizes for plots 4 and 5 fell short of private
amenity standards; however, this was deemed to be acceptable given the proximity of
a public park and children’s playground.

In response to their queries, Members heard that some weight had been given to the
previous submission which had now lapsed. The current application had been

Page 9




assessed against current policy. It was confirmed that there was sufficient room in the
access road for two cars to pass each other safely. In terms of materials, Members
were informed that materials would be conditioned to match as closely as possible
those of the existing houses in the same section of Sullivan Crescent.

Members welcomed the increase in family dwellings. The officer's recommendation
was moved, seconded and when put to a vote unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 9.45 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Liz Penny on epenny@hillingdon.gov.uk. Circulation of
these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 10




Agenda Iltem 6

A
Item No. Report of the Interim Director of Planning, Regeneration & Public Realm
Address BRANDON LIFT & TOOL HIRE LAND OFF HAYES END ROAD HAYES
END ROAD HAYES
Development: Retrospective application for the proposed use of Storing/Displaying/Selling

of Cars/Light Goods Vehicles within land off of Unit 1 and Unit 2, Hayes End
Road, Hayes

LBH Ref Nos: 74089/APP/2022/1960

Drawing Nos: Unit 2, Hayes End Road, Hayes, Hillingdon, UB4 8EH SITE PLAN Rev 2

Unit 2, Hayes End Road, Hayes, Hillingdon, UB4 8EH LOCATION PLAN

Date Plans Recieved: 20/06/2022 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 20/06/2022
Date Application Valid:  05/07/2022

1.

SUMMARY

This planning application has been submitted in response to a planning enforcement
investigation, and seeks retrospective planning permission to use the land outside of
Units 1 and 2 Hayes End Road for the storage, display and sale of cars and light goods
vehicles.

Representations received from local residents and evidence provided by the Borough's
Parking Service Manager (detailed in section 6 of this report) suggest that the
development has resulted in an adverse impact on the local highways network and
neighbouring amenities.

During the course of the application (and in attempt to clarify whether sufficient parking
provision could potentially be provided at the development site) additional information
was sought regarding the site's existing use(s), function(s), parking arrangement, and
parking provisions. No clear or robust information was forthcoming.

It is concluded that the applicant has failed to satisfactorily demonstrate that sufficient
parking spaces exist (or could be provided) within the development site to accommodate
vehicles associated with the development and the site's other use (as a storage facility).
The use for which retrospective planning permission is sought has resulted in parking
stress and associated congestion to the detriment of pedestrian and highway safety, as
well as the amenities of local residents. It is considered that these issues cannot be
satisfactorily addressed through the imposition of planning conditions (or other mitigation
measures which could potentially be secured). Consequently, the proposal conflicts with
the Development Plan and is recommended for refusal.

RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The applicant has failed to demonstrate that sufficient parking spaces exist (or can be
provided) within the development site to satisfactorily accommodate vehicles associated
with the development and the site's other use (as a storage facility). The use for which
retrospective planning permission is sought has resulted in parking stress and associated
congestion to the detriment of pedestrian and highway safety, as well as the amenities of
local residents and these issues cannot be satisfactorily resolved through the use of

Page 11



planning conditions. The development is therefore contrary to Policies DMT 1, DMT 2,
DMT 4 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020), Policy T4 and T6 of the London Plan (2021) and paragraphs 111 and
130 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021).

INFORMATIVES

3.1

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set
out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including The London Plan (2021) and national guidance.

DME 2 Employment Uses Outside of Designated Sites
DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 3 Road Safeguarding

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

DMHB 3 Locally Listed Buildings

DMEI 4 Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land

LPP D1 (2021) London's form, character and capacity for growth

LPP D14 (2021) Noise

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach

LPP E4 (2021) Land for industry, logistics and services to support London's
economic function

LPP T4 (2021) Assessing and mitigating transport impacts

LPP T6 (2021) Car parking

LPP G2 (2021) London's Green Belt

NPPF11 NPPF 2021 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF9 NPPF 2021 - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF13 NPPF 2021 - Protecting Green Belt Land

NPPF15 NPPF 2021 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

CONSIDERATIONS

Site and Locality
The development site is located on the west side of Hayes End Road.

The site comprises a two storey warehouse style building which is connected to a single

storey garage. Both of the buildings are low rise and have been finished in yellow brick.
They are set back from Hayes End Road and are surrounded by hard surfacing. The site

Page 12



3.2

3.3

has 2 no. vehicular accesses and the accesses are connected by a narrow through road
within the site.

It is the Council's understanding that Unit 1 is currently being used for storage. Unit 2 is
also being used for storage, with the exception of a reception area, which is being used as
an office to facilitate car/LGV sales.

The area surrounding the site is mixed use. To the north west of the site is a 4 storey
apartment building called 'Murray Grey House' and to the north east, a 3 storey apartment
building called 'Charolais House'. To the east is a 3 storey apartment block called "Thurbin
House'. To the south of the site is a 2 storey car garage providing washing, valeting and
other services. To the west of the site there are commercial units.

The development site is located within an Air Quality Focus Area and has a PTAL rating of
2. To the east of the site (across the road) is Laburnum Villa, a locally listed building and
its associated boundary wall. To the north east of the site (across the road) is the Green
Belt.

Proposed Scheme

The application seeks retrospective planning permission to use the land around Unit 1 and
Unit 2, Hayes End Road, Hayes for the storing/displaying/selling of cars/light goods
vehicles.

Relevant Planning History

74089/APP/2018/3053  Gigel Motors Ltd Hayes End Road Hayes

Change of use from car sales (Sui Generis) to cars sales, vehicle service/repair and MOT (Sui
Generis)

Decision: 22-04-2020 Refused

74089/APP/2020/3305  Land Off Hayes End Road Hayes End Road Hayes

Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site to provide a building of 4 storeys
to provide residential units (Use Class C3) with associated residential amenity space,
landscaping, car and cycle parking, refuse storage and access.

Detailed Description: 27 residential units comprising 5 x 1-bedroom, 16 x 2-bedroom and 6 x 3-
bedroom.

Decision: 16-09-2021 Refused Appeal: 12-05-2022 Withdrawn

Comment on Relevant Planning History
The site's planning history is listed above.

In 2018, planning permission was sought for 'Change of use from car sales (Sui Generis)
to cars sales, vehicle service/repair and MOT (Sui Generis)' under planning application
No.74089/APP/2018/3053.

The application was refused for the following reasons:

1) The proposal has not demonstrated that sufficient off  street
parking/manoeuvring/access arrangements would be provided, and therefore the
development is considered to result in substandard car parking provision, leading to on-
street parking/queuing to the detriment of public and highway safety and contrary to
policies DMT 2 and DMT 6 of the Hilingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (January 2020).

Page 13



In 2020, planning permission was sought for 'Demolition of existing buildings and
redevelopment of the site to provide a building of 4 storeys to provide residential units
(Use Class C3) with associated residential amenity space, landscaping, car and cycle
parking, refuse storage and access. Detailed Description: 27 residential units comprising
5 x 1-bedroom, 16 x 2-bedroom and 6 x 3-bedroom’, under planning application
No.74089/APP/2020/3305.

The application was refused on 16-09-2021 for the following reasons:

1) The proposed development fails to make appropriate provision of on site affordable
housing, contrary Policies H4, H5 and H6 of the London Plan (2021), Policy H2 of the
Local Plan: Part One (2012), Policy DMH 7 of the Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020), London Borough of Hillingdon's Supplementary Planning
Document on Planning Obligations (2014), Paragraph 65 of the NPPF (2021) and Mayor
of London's Affordable Housing and Viability SPG (2017).

2) The proposed development, in the absence of a Section 106 legal agreement, fails to
provide contributions towards the improvement of services and facilies as a
consequence of demands created by the proposed development (in respect of air quality
contributions, affordable housing, construction training, highways works, carbon offset,
employment and training, permit free parking). The scheme therefore conflicts with Policy
DMCI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Development management Policies (2020),
the London Borough of Hilingdon Supplementary Planning Document on Planning
Obligations, Policy DF1 of the London Plan (2021) and paras 55-58 of the NPPF (2021).

The Committee Report noted that at the time, the site (Unit 1 and Unit 2) were in Sui
Generis use.

A planning appeal was lodged and subsequently withdrawn.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the
following documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan (2021)

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2021) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Local Plan Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

Page 14



Part 2 Policies:

DME 2 Employment Uses Outside of Designated Sites
DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 3 Road Safeguarding

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

DMHB 3 Locally Listed Buildings

DMEI 4 Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land

LPP D1 (2021) London's form, character and capacity for growth

LPP D14 (2021) Noise

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach

LPP E4 (2021) Land for industry, logistics and services to support London's economic
function

LPP T4 (2021) Assessing and mitigating transport impacts

LPP T6 (2021) Car parking

LPP G2 (2021) London's Green Belt

NPPF11 NPPF 2021 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF9 NPPF 2021 - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF13 NPPF 2021 - Protecting Green Belt Land

NPPF15 NPPF 2021 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees
57 neighbouring properties were directly notified of the proposal on 07/07/22.

17 letters of objection have been received (including an objection from a local ward Councillor) in
response to consultation on the application. Those comments have been summarised below.

1) The proposal has and would continue to have an adverse impact on the local highways network,
as well as pedestrian and vehicle user safety;

2) Insufficient parking spaces exist for the proposed use;

3) Cars are being sold at unsocial hours giving rise to harmful levels of noise pollution;

4) The proposal would lead to an increase in air pollution;

5) The proposed use is already in operation;

6) The development is leading to conflict between residents in the area, as on-road parking spaces
are being used by operators of the development site;

7) Egress from the site is impossible due to the amount of cars parked on the forecourt;

8) Several companies are operating from units 1 and 2 / there is an over intensification of the site

Page 15



use.

A petition with 80 signatures has also been received against the proposed development. The
petition raises the following summarised points:

i) The proposal has and would continue to have an adverse impact on the local highways network,
as well as pedestrian and vehicle user safety;

ii) Insufficient parking spaces exist for the proposed use;

iii) The site has been used as described since August 2020 not March 2022;

iv) Most of the vehicles in question are not taxed or MOT as they are for sale. The car dealers also
only have one trade plate, instead of two which is a legal requirement. Parking enforcement has
been contacted, but tickets are ripped off and discarded. If a car is eventually sold, then the new
owner faces such fines from the DVLA;

v) The car dealers park their vehicles along Newport Road, but have caused criminal damage to
the emergency gates at the back of Charolais House;

vi) Continued trading would encroach on the setting of a listed building and listed wall across the
road at Springwell Nursery. It would be detrimental to the setting of the Listed Wall and Listed
Building;

vii) lllegal dwellings upstairs in Brandon Tool hire.

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENTS:

Issues relating to points 1-4, i, ii and vi are considered in the main body of the report. In addition,
Members are advised to note the following:

In relation to point 5, the proposed use is already in operation and retrospective planning
permission is being sought to regularise it.

In relation to point 6, civil disputes are not a material planning consideration. Nevertheless, the
parking implications of the development are and they have been discussed in section 7.10 of this
report.

In relation to point 7, issues regarding safe egress from the site have been addressed in section
7.10 of this report.

In relation to point 8, several companies have historically operated from the site (since 2009 at
least). However, the development subject of this application is considered to have resulted in an
intensification of the site's use.

Point iii is noted. The applicant contends that the site has been used as described since March
2022. Regardless, the application should be considered on its planning merits.

In relation to points iv and v, the issues raised are not considered to be material to the planning
decision.

Point vii is considered a separate matter for the Council's Planning Enforcement Team.

Internal Consultees

PARKING SERVICES MANAGER:

There has been a very significant increase in parking contravention notices on Hayes End Road
since mid-2022. | do not know if this increase relates directly to the units selling cars as we only
deal with the car and have no knowledge of who parked it there or why. However, | would suspect
that it does either by them parking cars on the highway or their customers parking cars.

ACCESS OFFICER:

Page 16



| have considered the detail of this retrospective planning application and consider this proposal to
have no impact on accessibility.

HIGHWAYS OFFICER:
Initial Comments:

Retrospective planning permission is sought to use land situated on Hayes End Road for the
storage, display and sale of cars and light good vehicles. The application site is situated just c.60m
north of a priority junction with the busy A4020 Uxbridge Road - this road forms part of the
Council's classified road network. On-street parking outside the application site is controlled by
double yellow lines, opposite is marked out Pay and Display parking bays that operate 08:00 to
18:30h Monday to Saturdays with parking limited to a maximum stay of 2 hours. Further along
Hayes End Road on the same side of the road as the development, parking is unrestricted,
opposite are single yellow lines where parking is restricted 08:00 to 09:00h and 16:30 to 18:30h
Monday to Friday. As mentioned above this is a retrospective planning application and the Highway
Authority is aware that the site in it's current, albeit unlawful use, is creating parking stress, this is
because the business owners are parking vehicles for sale on the highway. The Highway Authority
is satisfied that a car sales business could operate from the site without creating parking stress,
increasing the risk to road safety, or hindering the free flow of traffic. The amount of traffic the site
generates would be no more than staff arriving and leaving each day, visitors/customers and
vehicles being delivered and driven away. It is anticipated that most visitors/customers would visit
the site outside the network peak hours. There are no highway objections to this proposal subject
to the following planning conditions.

1. The vehicles that are stored, displayed and offer for sale on the site should be restricted to cars
only.

REASON The Highway Authority is mindful that the proposal site is located close the Hayes End
Road junction with the A4020 Uxbridge Road, this is a busy location with a considerable volume
traffic activity. Cars as opposed to light goods vehicles are more manoeuvrable and have better all-
round vision, if light goods vehicles were stored/displayed and offered for sale this would create
more activity on the highway increasing the risk to road safety and hindering the free flow of traffic.
This is to be in accordance with the 2021 published London Plan Policy T4 Assessing and
mitigating transport impacts which requires that "development proposals do not increase road
danger".

2. Plans are provided for approval that show marked out the area to be used for the storage,
display and sales of vehicle.

REASON clearly marked out parking areas limits the numbers of cars that can be parked on-site to
amount of space available.

3. Plans are provided for approval that show marked out the location of staff and visitor parking.
REASON this will reduce the likelihood of staff and visitors parking on the surrounding streets
resulting in parking stress.

4. Plans are provided for approval that show a wall or fence not exceeding 0.6m high is provided
between the site boundary and back of footway.

REASON this is to guard against cars parked on-plot encroaching onto the footway, this would
reduce the footway width and increase the road safety risk to pedestrians. This is to be in
accordance with the 2021 published London Plan Policy T4 Assessing and mitigating transport
impacts which requires that "development proposals do not increase road danger".

5. That all vehicles for storage, display and sale are driven to the site not transported by lorry.

6. The applicant enters a 1990 Town and Country Planning Act s.106 legal agreement with the

Page 17



Council obliging the applicant to pay the Council £50,000 for the implementation of a parking
management scheme should the use give rise to parking stress. If parking problems do not arise,
then the money would be returned at an agreed time.

Planning Officer Comment:

The conditions initially recommended by the Highway Officer are not considered to meet the NPPF
tests for conditions. The application seeks retrospective consent for the storing/displaying/selling of
cars and light goods vehicles. Therefore, a restriction to cars only (as suggested in condition 1
above) would not resolve the issues on site or accord with the application description. There are
also concerns about enforceability of some suggested conditions (e.g. 1 and 5) and moreover,
there are concerns that information referred to in conditions 2 and 3 would be required upfront, in
order to demonstrate whether acceptable provision could potentially be made to accommodate all
of the uses on site (noting that the proposal is an intensification of use e.g. existing storage use to
remain). This information has been requested from the applicant and has not been forthcoming.

FINAL HIGHWAY COMMENTS:

The first set of comments submitted by the Highway Authority contained a series of conditions
considered necessary to make the development acceptable. Without these conditions then there
would have been highway objections. The Highway Authority have since been advised by the Local
Planning Authority that the conditions required would not meet the National Planning Policy
Framework test and therefore could not be used. Taking this into account there are highway
objections to this proposal for the reasons set out in the original comments, it would not be in
accordance with the 2021 published London Plan Policy T4 Assessing and mitigating transport
impacts which requires that "development proposals do not increase road danger".

PLANNING ENFORCEMENT

There is an enforcement case ENF/133/22 with regards to unauthorised material change of use of
the site for storing, selling and displaying of motor vehicles. It is noted this planning application is
retrospective and the outcome of the application is being monitored by the Planning Enforcement
Team. Should this planning application be refused, it is considered that the owners/occupiers may
be liable to formal planning enforcement proceedings that would require the cessation of the
unauthorised use of the land.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development
PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT:

The development site is in commercial use, albeit not within a designated employment
area. As such, Policy DME 2 (Employment Sites Outside Designated Employment Areas)
is considered relevant. It states that: proposals which involve the loss of employment
floorspace or land outside of designated employment areas will normally be permitted if:

i) the existing use negatively impacts on local amenity, through disturbance to neighbours,
visual intrusion or has an adverse impact on the character of the area; or

ii) the site is unsuitable for employment reuse or development because of its size, shape,
location, or unsuitability of access; or

iii) sufficient evidence has been provided to demonstrate there is no realistic prospect of
land being reused for employment purposes; or

iv) the new use will not adversely affect the functioning of any adjoining employment land;
or

v) the proposed use relates to a specific land use allocation or designation identified
elsewhere in the plan.

Page 18



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The existing site comprises commercial units within a 2-storey and single storey building.
The site and buildings appear to have had multiple uses and multiple occupants over the
years. The site has historically been used for Sui Generis employment uses (as noted in
section 3.3 above) and this would remain the same post development (i.e. there would be
no loss of employment floorspace). It is considered that the principle of the development
can be supported, subject to compliance with other policies within the Development Plan
and relevant material planning considerations.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Policy DMHB 3 states:

A) There is a general presumption in favour of the retention of buildings, structures and
features included in the Local List. The Council will take into account the effect of a
proposal on the building's significance and the scale of any harm of loss when considering
planning applications, including those for major alterations and extensions. Proposals will
be permitted where they retain the significance, appearance, character or setting of a
Locally Listed Building.

B) Applications should include a Heritage Statement that demonstrates a clear
understanding of the importance of the structure and the impact of the proposals on the
significance of the Locally Listed Building.

C) Replacement will only be considered if it can be demonstrated that the community
benefits of such a proposal significantly outweigh those of retaining the Locally Listed
Building.

Paragraph 203 of the NPPF (2021) states: The effect of an application on the significance
of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in determining the
application. In weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect non-designated
heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any
harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset.

Laburnham Villa and its associated boundary wall are located to the east of the site. The
building and wall are locally listed and are therefore non-designated heritage assets.
There would be no direct impact on the fabric of the heritage assets as a result of the
proposal, given the separation from the application site. However, it is considered that the
development has resulted in increased parking within the vicinity of the heritage assets
(i.e. within the setting). Whilst this results in some visual clutter (refer to section 7.07 of
this report), it is considered that this does not justify a refusal of planning permission on
heritage grounds.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

The London Plan (2021), NPPF (2021) and Local Plan all seek to protect the Green Belt
from inappropriate development, unless very special circumstances can be demonstrated
to outweigh the identified harm to the Green Belt.

The Green Belt is located to the north east of the site (on the opposite side of Hayes End
Road). Given the nature of the application proposal, it would cause no adverse impact on
the openness or character of the Green Belt.

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Paragraph 130 of the NPPF (2021) states 'Planning policies and decisions should ensure
that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term but

Page 19



over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate
innovation or change (such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places
to live, work and visit;

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount
and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local
facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime
and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community
cohesion and resilience.'

Policies D1, D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) require development proposals to be of
high quality and to enhance the local context by delivering buildings and spaces that
positively respond to local distinctiveness.

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1. Strategic Policies (2012) Policy BE1 states 'The Council will
require all new development to improve and maintain the quality of the built environment
in order to create successful and sustainable neighbourhoods, where people enjoy living
and working and that serve the long-term needs of all residents. All new developments
should achieve a high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations, extensions and the
public realm which enhances the local distinctiveness of the area, contributes to
community cohesion and a sense of place.’

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020) states: 'All development, including extensions, alterations and new buildings will be
required to be designed to the highest standards and, incorporate principles of good
design including: i) harmonising with the local context by taking into account the
surrounding scale of development, height, mass and bulk of adjacent structures; building
plot sizes and widths, plot coverage and established street patterns; building lines and
setbacks, rooflines, streetscape rhythm, for example, gaps between structures and other
streetscape elements, such as degree of enclosure; architectural composition and quality
of detailing; local topography, views both from and to the site; and impact on neighbouring
open spaces and their environment.'

Policy DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020) re-emphasises the need for new development to be well integrated with the
surrounding area and provides design criteria as to how this would be achieved.

As previously noted, the site comprises a two storey warehouse style building which is
connected to a single storey garage. Both of the buildings are low rise and have been
finished in yellow brick. The buildings are set back from Hayes End Road and are
surrounded by hard surfacing.

The application development involves no extensions or external alterations to the site's
existing buildings, therefore potential impact on the character and appearance of the area
is limited. It is acknowledged that the development has resulted in increased parking at
the site and surrounds which does result in some visual clutter. However, this would not
warrant a refusal of planning permission on visual grounds taking into consideration that

Page 20



7.08

7.09

7.10

the site has historically been utilised for car related services, and furthermore, it is noted
that there is a car garage to the south (providing washing, valeting and other services),
therefore parked vehicles are an existing visual feature of the area.

Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that development proposals should not adversely impact on the
amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and open space.

Paragraph 130 (f) of the NPPF (2021) states that planning policies and decisions should
ensure that developments: f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and
which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and
future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the
quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.

The proposed development seeks to display cars and light goods vehicles within the
development site. Cars would remain on the site until sold or moved, and would therefore
be there on a temporary basis. No extensions or external alterations to the site's buildings
are proposed. As such, the proposal is not considered to cause any harmful loss of light,
outlook or privacy to neighbouring properties.

Notwithstanding the above, the development has resulted in adverse amenity impacts to
neighbours in respect of the increased roadside parking/parking stress (and associated
disturbance) discussed at Section 7.10 of this report and as reported by residents (see
Section 6 of this report). This issue is captured in the recommended reason for refusal set
out in Section 2 of this report.

Had the application otherwise been recommended for approval, a planning condition
would have been recommended restricting the site's operating hours. This would ensure
that neighbours are not subjected to adverse levels of noise (from comings and goings)
during unsocial hours.

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

POLICY CONTEXT:

Policy DMT 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies
(2020) states:

A) Development proposals will be required to meet the transport needs of the
development and address its transport impacts in a sustainable manner. In order for
developments to be acceptable they are required to: i) be accessible by public transport,
walking and cycling either from the catchment area that it is likely to draw its employees,
customers or visitors from and/or the services and facilities necessary to support the
development; ii) maximise safe, convenient and inclusive accessibility to, and from within
developments for pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users; iii) provide equal access
for all people, including inclusive access for disabled people; iv) adequately address
delivery, servicing and drop-off requirements; and v) have no significant adverse transport
or associated air quality and noise impacts on the local and wider environment,
particularly on the strategic road network. B) Development proposals will be required to
undertake a satisfactory Transport Assessment and Travel Plan if they meet or exceed
the appropriate thresholds. All major developments that fall below these thresholds will be
required to produce a satisfactory Transport Statement and Local Level Travel Plan. All
these plans should demonstrate how any potential impacts will be mitigated and how such

Page 21



measures will be implemented.

Policy DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies
(2020) states:

'Development proposals must ensure that:

i) safe and efficient vehicular access to the highway network is provided to the Council's
standards;

ii) they do not contribute to the deterioration of air quality, noise or local amenity or safety
of all road users and residents;

iii) safe, secure and convenient access and facilities for cyclists and pedestrians are
satisfactorily accommodated in the design of highway and traffic management schemes;
iv) impacts on local amenity and congestion are minimised by routing through traffic by the
most direct means to the strategic road network, avoiding local distributor and access
roads; and

v) there are suitable mitigation measures to address any ftraffic impacts in terms of
capacity and functions of existing and committed roads, including along roads or through
junctions which are at capacity.'

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies
(2020) states:

'Development proposals must comply with the parking standards outlined in Appendix C
Table 1 in order to facilitate sustainable development and address issues relating to
congestion and amenity. The Council may agree to vary these requirements when:

i) the variance would not lead to a deleterious impact on street parking provision,
congestion or local amenity; and/or

ii) a transport appraisal and travel plan has been approved and parking provision is in
accordance with its recommendations.

The Mayor of London adopted a new and revised London Plan in March 2021,
consequently the car parking standards set out in the London Plan take precedence over
those in the Local Development Plan, except where the Local Plan specifies lower local
maximum standards.

Policy T4 (F) of the London Plan 2021 states 'development proposals should not increase
road danger'.

Policy T6 of the London Plan (2021) states:

i - Adequate provision should be made for efficient deliveries and servicing and
emergency access.

J - A Parking Design and Management Plan should be submitted alongside all
applications which include car parking provision, indicating how the car parking will be
designed and managed, with reference to Transport for London guidance on parking
management and parking design.

Paragraph 111 of the NPPF (2021) states 'Development should only be prevented or
refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway
safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.'
PARKING:

Within the London Plan and Local Plan there are no specific parking space requirements
for the proposed sui generis use. In the interests of ensuring that the proposed

Page 22



development has no unacceptable and deleterious impact on street parking provision,
congestion, highway safety and local amenity, the applicant is therefore required to justify
and demonstrate the amount of parking provision required to service the development.
Officers have requested further detailed information including:

- a parking layout plan (indicating parking space availability for staff and customers of both
units 1 and 2, as well as spaces for the cars/LGVs which are for sale); and

- a parking strategy/management plan.

The above information has not been forthcoming and in the absence of it, the applicant
has failed to demonstrate that adequate parking provision for the aforementioned parties
exists (or could be provided) on site, leading to concerns about parking stress, congestion
and the creation of a more hazardous environment for road users and pedestrians.

This is borne out in the representations received from local residents and the comments
from the Council's Highway Officer and Parking Services Manager (see Section 6) which
note respectively the occurrence of parking stress and the significant rise in the number of
parking contravention notices served by the Council in Hayes End Road since March
2022.

It is considered that road-side parking within parking spaces which are available to
parking permit holders/local residents would result in less spaces for those users,
potentially leading to parking in restricted areas at the road side; more uncontrolled road
side parking and exacerbating issues described above.

Furthermore, 2 units operate from the application site and are likely to have individual
parking needs. No information has been submitted (parking strategy/management plan) to
demonstrate that those needs can be accommodated alongside each other without
creating a more hazardous environment for road users and pedestrians, alongside
additional traffic and congestion.

At the time of the Planning Officer's site visit, cars were parked upon the entirety of the
site's through road, blocking it. This arrangement prevents cars from entering and exiting
the site in a forward gear, leading to vehicles reversing onto the highway, creating a more
hazardous environment. The submitted plans suggest that this would be the case moving
forward and such an arrangement is considered to be detrimental to the local highway
network.

Taking into consideration all of the above and in the absence of a satisfactory parking
plan and parking management strategy, it is considered that the development has and
would continue to lead to parking stress and associated congestion to the detriment of
pedestrian and highway safety. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies DMT 1, DMT
2 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020), as well as Policies T4 and T6 of
the London Plan (2021) and paragraphs 111 and 130 of the NPPF (2021) and should be
refused planning permission.

ELECTRIC CHARGING POINTS:

Had the application otherwise been considered acceptable, a condition could have
secured provision of electric vehicle charging points.

BICYCLE PARKING:

Had the application otherwise been considered acceptable, a condition could have
secured provision of cycle parking.

Page 23



7.1

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

REFUSE/RECYCLING COLLECTION:

Policy DMHB 11 part (d) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that development proposals should make sufficient provision for
well-designed internal and external storage space for general, recycling and organic
waste, with suitable access for collection.

Had the application otherwise been recommended for approval, a condition would have
been added to ensure that refuse and recycling would be stored in an accessible location.
At present there appears to be adequate space for the storage of such facilities to the
sides and rear of the site.

ACCESS:

The site's existing accesses would be retained. However, as has been previously noted, it
has not been demonstrated through submission of a parking layout plan and parking
management plan that the site could be operated so as to enable access through the site
in order for vehicles to enter and leave the site in forward gear.

Urban design, access and security

Addressed where relevant in other sections of this report.
Disabled access

The Borough's Access Officer was consulted and has raised no concerns regarding the
development and the accessibility of the site.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Issues relating to the development's noise impact have been considered in section 7.08
above. The development is not considered to cause any significant Air Quality issue,
taking into account the site history/previous uses, and the scale and nature of the
development.

Comments on Public Consultations

The issues raised during the consultation process have been addressed in the relevant
sections above.
Planning obligations

N/A
Expediency of enforcement action

As noted in Section 6 of this report, the outcome of the application is being monitored by
the Council's Planning Enforcement Team. Should this planning application be refused, it
is considered that the owners/occupiers may be liable to formal planning enforcement
proceedings that would require the cessation of the unauthorised use of the land.

Other Issues

No other issues raised.

Page 24



Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

Observations of the Director of Finance

Page 25



Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The retrospective development has and would continue to cause significant harm to
amenities of local residents and the local highways network, as well as pedestrian and
road user safety. Consequently, the proposal conflicts with the Development Plan and the
identified harm is not outweighed by material considerations. The planning application is
therefore recommended for refusal as set out in Section 2.

11. Reference Documents

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan (2021)

Contact Officer: Haydon Richardson Telephone No: 01895 250230

Page 26



Springfield

P -
\

Charolais
\
\

\\ N
House K ~
b |
! | Laburnum Villa
/; I| '
1
H
I
N
i

Springwell Nursery

OAD

1to 28
Saviours House

o
[a]
=z
w
w !
w
3z
I

=
1
IS
3

1to 20
Link House

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Site Address:

Notes:
[_] site boundary Brandon Lift & Tool Hire F HILLINGE
. I esidents services

For identification purposes only. Land Off Hayes End Road Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . L : .

Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1988 (the Act). 74089/APP/2022/1960 1:1,250

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:

© Crown copyright and database A | 2023

rights 2020 Ordnance Survey ri

o003 BoroughPage 27 p R




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

A
Item No. Report of the Interim Director of Planning, Regeneration & Public Realm

Address HILLINGDON HOUSE, BANQUETING SUITE WREN AVENUE UXBRIDGE

Development: Retrospective Application for the use of the ground floor as a banqueting
suite, with associated ancillary facilities at basement level for private civil
ceremonies, weddings and parties (Sui Generis)

LBH Ref Nos: 77108/APP/2022/691

Drawing Nos: Noise Mitigation Report Rev 01 13/01/2022
1062_375 Rev A Basement Floor Plan
1062_370 Rev B Ground Floor Plan
Planning, Heritage, Design and Access Statement
Odour Risk Assessment - Kitchen Extraction System 03/11/2021 Rev 1.0
P000046 - (R1) Transport Statement
Location Plan 18-02-2022
Block Plan Car Park 18-02-2022
1062_370 A Ground Floor Plan
1062_375 Basement Floor Plan
Block Plan of Abshar Hillingdon House 18-02-2022

Date Plans Recieved: 01/03/2022 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 01/03/2022

Date Application Valid:  14/06/2022 08/03/2022

1. SUMMARY

This is a retrospective application for the use of the ground floor of Hillingdon House as a
banqueting suite, with associated ancillary facilities at basement level for private civil
ceremonies, weddings and parties (Sui Generis Use).

The ground floor of the property has planning consent for use as a restaurant as part of
the hybrid consent for the wider St Andrews Park site, formerly known as RAF Uxbridge.

There is significant local objection to the proposals, including a petition, plus letters of
support. A local Ward Clir has also objected to the application.

Officers have been mindful of the potential detrimental impact on residential amenity to
neighbouring properties, in terms of noise, odour and disturbance. Careful consideration
has therefore been given to whether the Sui Generis Use itself is inappropriate in this
location due to its inherent detrimental impact on residential amenity, or whether it could
have an acceptable impact on residential amenity if it were controlled by appropriate
conditions.

In policy terms the provision of the proposed Town Centre Sui Generis Use on the site is
considered to be acceptable in respect of the existing consent of the building to operate a
restaurant at ground floor level. However, this is subject to compliance with all other
planning policy considerations, including impact on neighbouring residential amenity,
parking and highway safety.

The Council's Highways Officer has raised no objections, subject to relevant conditions.

These conditions include the implementation of measures to restrict the hours of use and
number of guests.

Page 29



The submitted Noise Assessment and Odour Assessment have been reviewed by the
Council's Noise and Odour Specialist who has raised no objection to the application,
subject to conditions to ensure the recommendations of these reports, including required
mitigation measures, are implemented. The Council's Conservation Officer has
requested further details of the proposed measures to mitigate noise and odour so as to
determine if these measures require separate Listed Building Consent and if they would
have an acceptable impact on the Grade |l Listed Building. Details of the mitigation
measures, concluded as necessary within reports submitted as part of the application,
have been requested from the applicant. These details have not been provided.

Therefore, it is not possible to determine if the measures required to mitigate the
detrimental impact of noise and odour are acceptable, or indeed could be approved
through the discharge of planning conditions without requiring separate Listed Building
Consent. Without the ability to attach appropriate and necessary conditions, the scheme
would have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of adjacent occupiers and the
application is recommended for refusal.

2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

Insufficient detail has been provided to demonstrate that the required mitigation
measures to protect residential amenity in terms of noise and odour pollution would not
have a detrimental impact on the Grade Il Listed Building, or to determine that they do
not require separate Listed Building Consent. As such, the required conditions to protect
residential amenity cannot be attached to a grant of planning consent. Therefore the Sui
Generis Use is considered to have an unacceptable impact on the amenity of adjacent
residential occupiers contrary to Policy D14 of London Plan (2021), Policy DMHB 11 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020), Policy
BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) and paragraph 130 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set
out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including The London Plan (2021) and national guidance.

DMEI 14 Air Quality

DMEI 4 Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land
DMEI 6 Development in Green Edge Locations

DMHB 1 Heritage Assets

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 15 Planning for Safer Places
DMHB 2 Listed Buildings

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

Page 30



3.1

3.2

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

DMTC 1 Town Centre Development

LPP D14 (2021) Noise

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP G2 (2021) London's Green Belt

LPP HC1 (2021) Heritage conservation and growth
LPP T5 (2021) Cycling

LPP T6 (2021) Car parking

SA 28 St Andrews Park, Uxbridge

3 171 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Refusing)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive
way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from
the Local Plan Part 1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning
Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice
service.

CONSIDERATIONS

Site and Locality

The application relates to Hillingdon House, a Grade |l Listed Building located on the
eastern side of St Andrew's Park. Hillingdon House was originally constructed by the Duke
of Schomberg as a hunting lodge in 1717. It was reconstructed after a fire in 1844 by
George Mair. Prior to the current use, the building was used by the Royal Air Force.

Immediately to the west of the site is Dowding Park with the River Pinn running through a
copse of mature trees. The surrounding area is characterised by a topography that slopes
up towards the House from the River Pinn elevating the House and giving it a prominence
within the landscape. The land directly to the south and west of Hillingdon House is
allocated as green belt, including the car park located within the application redline
boundary. However, Hillingdon House itself is not within the green belt. To the north of the
site are residential properties within Partridge Close, with the closest dwelling only 6.7m
from the application building. To the east and south east are further residential properties
on Bowling Close.

The site is designated within an Airport Safeguarding Zone and Air Quality Management
Area. The site is accessed by vehicles via Wren Avenue, which is a private unadopted
road. There are no parking controls in the area and the site has a public transport
accessibility level (PTAL) rating of 1a (poor).

Proposed Scheme

This is a retrospective application for the use of the ground floor of Hilingdon House as a
banqueting suite, with associated ancillary facilities at basement level, for private civil
ceremonies, weddings and parties (Sui Generis).

The gross internal floor areas of the ground floor and basement are 935 sqm and 195
sgm respectively. The application proposes that 461.6 sqm of the ground floor (as shown
on drawing reference 1062_370 Rev B) and 175.3 sgm of the basement area (as shown
on drawing reference 1062_375 Rev A) be granted planning permission for a change of

Page 31



3.3

use to a banqueting suite for private civil ceremonies, weddings and parties (Sui Generis).
The basement of the premises provides an ancillary kitchen and servery facilities.

The submission advises that the ground floor has a maximum capacity to accommodate
200 persons. However, the maximum number of people 'rarely exceeds 150'. The number
of events being held at the site is 4 in a typical week. The use consists primarily of
conducting civil marriages / weddings and banqueting at the ground floor level.

The site has a private car park immediately opposite the main building on its southern
side. The car park can accommodate 40 vehicles at a time. In addition, 6 parking spaces
are located to the eastern side of the building for disabled visitors plus about 4 unmarked
spaces. Therefore, the maximum capacity at the car parking area on site is 50 spaces.

The application is only for the material change of use of the building. No details of
operational development have been submitted for the Listed Building.

The application advises that the existing use has created 15 jobs for food preparation and
servery, 5 other staff and 5 for security. However, the planning agent has advised during
the course of the application process (letter dated 22nd February 2023) that the applicant
has now engaged outside caterers who supply cooked food to the premises when
required. Therefore, there is no cooking involved at the site and the kitchen/servery is only
used to heat up pre-cooked food. Therefore, the accuracy of the stated employment of the
Sui Generis Use is not known.

The submission includes noise and odour reports, both of which recommend that
appropriate mitigation measures are implemented. The details of these measures have
been requested but not provided.

Relevant Planning History

Page 32



585/APP/2009/2752 R A F Uxbridge Hillingdon Road Uxbridge

1. Outline application (all matters reserved, except for access) including demolition of some
existing buildings and:

a) Creation of up to 1,296 residential dwellings (Class C3) of between 2 to 6 residential storeys;
b) Creation of up to 77 one-bedroom assisted living retirement accommodation of between 3 to
4 storeys;

c) Creation of a three-form entry primary school of 2 storeys;

d) Creation of a hotel (Class C1) of 5 storeys of up to 90 beds;

e) Creation of a 1,200 seat theatre with ancillary cafe (Sui Generis); office (Class B1a) of up to
13,860sq.m; energy centre (Sui Generis) of up to 1,200sq.m; and retail (Class A1, A2, A3, A4,
A5) of up to 2,850sq m; in buildings of between 4 to 6 storeys as well as a tower element
associated with the theatre of up to 30m;

f) Creation of a local centre to provide up to 150sq.m of retail (Class A1 and A2) and 225sq.m
GP surgery (Class D1); Means of access and improvements to pedestrian linkages to the
Uxbridge Town centre; car parking; provision of public open space including a district park;
landscaping; sustainable infrastructure and servicing.

2. In addition to the above, full planning permission for:

a) Creation of 28 residential dwellings (Class C3) to the north of Hilingdon House of between 2
to 3 storeys as well as associated amenity space and car parking;

b) Change of use of Lawrence House (Building No. 109) to provide 4 dwellings (Class C3),
associated amenity space and car parking including a separate freestanding garage;

¢) Change of use and alterations to the Carpenters building to provide 1 residential dwelling
(Class C3);

d) Change of use and alterations to the Sick Quarters (Building No. 91) to provide 4 dwellings
(Class C3) as well as associated amenity space and car parking;

e) Change of use of Mons barrack block (Building No. 146A) to provide 7 dwellings (Class C3)
as well as associated amenity space and car parking.

f) Change of use of the Grade Il listed former cinema building to provide 600sq.m Class D1/2
use (no building works proposed);

g) Change of use and alterations to the Grade Il listed Hillingdon House to provide 600sq.m for
a restaurant (Class A3) on the ground floor and 1,500sqg.m of office (Class B1) on the ground,
first and second floors;

Decision: 18-01-2012 Approved

585/APP/2009/2754 R A F Uxbridge Hillingdon Road Uxbridge

Alterations to Grade Il listed Hillingdon House and the associated demolition of adjoining wing,
temporary buildings and other buildings within curtilage of Hillingdon House. Alterations to
'Carpenters' building and alterations to curtilage walls (Application for Listed Building Consent.)

Decision: 24-01-2011 Approved

585/APP/2015/848 St Andrews Park Hillingdon Road Uxbridge

Variation of condition 5 of planning permission ref: 585/APP/2009/2752 dated 18/01/2012
(redevelopment of former RAF Uxbridge site) to amend approved plans and drainage strategy
regarding the Town Centre Extension phase of the development.

Decision: 21-12-2015 Approved

585/APP/2016/1969 Hillingdon House, Raf Uxbridge Hillingdon Road Uxbridge

Layout changes to proposed WCs at first and second floor levels, layout changes to ground
floor to proposed WCs, secondary access to offices and restaurant spaces, layout changes to
basement including formation of new kitchen and staff facilities (Application for Listed Building
Consent).

Decision: 15-02-2017 Approved

Page 33



585/APP/2016/3002 Hillingdon House, Former Raf Uxbridge Wren Avenue Uxbridge

Proposed hard and soft landscaping works to Hillingdon House, including formation of new
parking bays

Decision: 16-01-2017 Approved

585/APP/2017/1708 Hillingdon House Wren Avenue Uxbridge

Details pursuant to Condition 6 (Method Statement) of Listed Building Consent ref:
585/APP/2016/1969 dated 15/02/2017 (Layout changes to proposed WCs at first and second
floor levels, layout changes to ground floor to proposed WCs, secondary access to offices and
restaurant spaces, layout changes to basement including formation of new kitchen and staff
facilities)

Decision: 07-02-2018 Refused

585/APP/2017/2352 Hillingdon House Wren Avenue Uxbridge

Details pursuant to Condition 7 (Drawings and Materials) of Listed Building Consent ref:
585/APP/2016/1969 dated 15/02/2017 (Layout changes to proposed WCs at first and second
floor levels, layout changes to ground floor to proposed WCs, secondary access to offices and
restaurant spaces, layout changes to basement including formation of new kitchen and staff
facilities)

Decision: 29-03-2018 Refused

585/APP/2017/3530 Hillingdon House Wren Avenue Uxbridge

Alterations to proposed WCs at first and second floor levels, layout changes to ground floor to
proposed WCs, secondary access to offices and restaurant spaces, layout changes to
basement, including formation of new kitchen and staff facilities (Application for Listed Building
Consent)

Decision: 07-11-2018 Approved

585/APP/2017/3532 Hillingdon House Wren Avenue Uxbridge
Installation of roof level kitchen exhaust and ventilation plant

Decision: 17-05-2018 Approved

585/APP/2019/3054 Hillingdon House Wren Avenue Uxbridge
Erection of a low post and rail timber fence along the southern boundary of the site

Decision: 27-11-2019 Approved

585/APP/2019/382 Hillingdon House Wren Avenue Uxbridge

Proposal for an external 200mm diameter boiler flue from basement level and terminating
300mm above the roof parapet level on the north elevation in matching RAL external wall finish.
(Application for Listed Building Consent)

Decision: 29-03-2019 Approved

585/APP/2019/584 Hillingdon House Wren Avenue Uxbridge

Installation of 200mm diameter boiler flue, from basement level and terminating 300mm above
the roof parapet level on the north elevation, painted to match RAL colour of external wall finish

Decision: 12-04-2019 Approved
Comment on Relevant Planning History
The relevant consent for Hillingdon House was part of a much wider permission that

Page 34



covered all of St Andrews Park. That application ref. 585/APP/2009/2752 dated 18-01-12
granted consent for:

1. Outline application (all matters reserved, except for access) including demolition of
some existing buildings and:

a) Creation of up to 1,296 residential dwellings (Class C3) of between 2 to 6 residential
storeys;

b) Creation of up to 77 one-bedroom assisted living retirement accommodation of
between 3 to 4 storeys;

c) Creation of a three-form entry primary school of 2 storeys;

d) Creation of a hotel (Class C1) of 5 storeys of up to 90 beds;

e) Creation of a 1,200 seat theatre with ancillary cafe (Sui Generis); office (Class B1a) of
up to 13,860sq.m; energy centre (Sui Generis) of up to 1,200sq.m; and retail (Class A1,
A2, A3, A4, A5) of up to 2,850sq m; in buildings of between 4 to 6 storeys as well as a
tower element associated with the theatre of up to 30m;

f) Creation of a local centre to provide up to 150sg.m of retail (Class A1 and A2) and
225sq.m GP surgery (Class D1); Means of access and improvements to pedestrian
linkages to the Uxbridge Town centre; car parking; provision of public open space
including a district park; landscaping; sustainable infrastructure and servicing.

2. In addition to the above, full planning permission for:

a) Creation of 28 residential dwellings (Class C3) to the north of Hillingdon House of
between 2 to 3 storeys as well as associated amenity space and car parking;

b) Change of use of Lawrence House (Building No. 109) to provide 4 dwellings (Class
C3), associated amenity space and car parking including a separate freestanding garage;

c¢) Change of use and alterations to the Carpenters building to provide 1 residential
dwelling (Class C3);

d) Change of use and alterations to the Sick Quarters (Building No. 91) to provide 4
dwellings (Class C3) as well as associated amenity space and car parking;

e) Change of use of Mons barrack block (Building No. 146A) to provide 7 dwellings (Class
C3) as well as associated amenity space and car parking.

f) Change of use of the Grade Il listed former cinema building to provide 600sq.m Class
D1/2 use (no building works proposed);

g) Change of use and alterations to the Grade Il listed Hilingdon House to provide
600sq.m for a restaurant (Class A3) on the ground floor and 1,500sg.m of office (Class
B1) on the ground, first and second floors;

The element relevant to this application is therefore part 2. g)

'Change of use and alterations to the Grade Il listed Hillingdon House to provide 600sq.m
for a restaurant (Class A3) on the ground floor and 1,500sq.m of office (Class B1) on the
ground, first and second floors'

The above consent has since been amended under application ref. 585/APP/2015/848,
but no changes have been made in relation to the Use Class of Hillingdon House. It is
worth noting that the following Conditions were attached to the original consent
585/APP/2009/2752:

Condition 36

In respect of all non-residential uses (including those within Hillingdon House, the District
Park and any publicly accessible outdoor space), no amplified or other music shall be
played except between 0800 hours and 2000 hours Mondays to Fridays, between 0800
hours and 1600 hours on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays
unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the Local Planning
Authority.

Page 35



REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties
in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Condition 49:

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in respect of any Class
A3 use hereby approved, no persons shall be permitted to be on the premises between
the hours of 23.30 hours and 08.00 hours with an allowance of up to 30 minutes either
side of these times for closing and opening.

REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining or nearby properties is not
adversely affected in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Condition 71

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the rating level of the
noise emitted from the plant, equipment and any air conditioning units shall be at least
5dB lower than the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be determined
at the nearest residential premises in accordance with British Standard 4142, Method for
rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas.

REASON
To protect the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The above consent (application ref. 585/APP/2009/2752) has since been amended by
application ref. 585/APP/2015/848 dated 21-12-15 for 'Variation of condition 5 of planning
permission ref: 585/APP/2009/2752 dated 18/01/2012 (redevelopment of former RAF
Uxbridge site) to amend approved plans and drainage strategy regarding the Town Centre
Extension phase of the development.’

Whilst this new consent amended some of the approved plans and the drainage strategy,
it did not alter the previous consent for Hillingdon House. The conditions noted above
were also carried forward to the new consent.

Since the original consent was granted for the Change of Use of Hillingdon House there
have been a number of other minor applications made to make alterations to the Listed
Building.

Listed building consent was granted under ref. 585/APP/2009/2754 for alterations to
Grade |l listed Hillingdon House and the associated demolition of adjoining wing, porta-
cabins and other buildings within the curtilage of Hillingdon House.

Planning Policies and Standards

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the
following documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)

Page 36



The London Plan (2021)

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2021) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Local Plan Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:
DMEI 14 Air Quality

DMEI 4 Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land
DMEI 6 Development in Green Edge Locations
DMHB 1 Heritage Assets

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 15 Planning for Safer Places
DMHB 2 Listed Buildings

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts
DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

DMTC 1 Town Centre Development
LPP D14 (2021) Noise

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP G2 (2021) London's Green Belt
LPP HC1 (2021) Heritage conservation and growth
LPP T5 (2021) Cycling

LPP T6 (2021) Car parking

SA 28 St Andrews Park, Uxbridge

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 20th July 2022
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 26th July 2022
6. Consultations

External Consultees

115 consultation letters were sent to neighbouring owners/occupiers on 29-06-2022 and 4 site
notices were displayed at the site.

12 letters of support, 74 letters of objection, 3 neutral comments and one petition with 113
signatures objecting to the proposals have been received.

Page 37



The petition in objection states:
'We the undersigned petition Hillingdon Council to reject and fully dismiss this planning application.

Justification:
1) Hillingdon House is a Grade |l Listed building and original plans were only permitted for a class
A3 restaurant/cafe, which is currently being used as a banqueting suite without permission.

2) Planning enforcement still under investigation ENF/837/19, as Hillingdon House is being used as
a sui generis class of usage without permission.

3) Hillingdon House is set in a private residential estate, currently they have no consideration for
residents, with regards to the noise from their guests. There is streams of cars entering and leaving
the Estate, with their cars horning, people shouting and blocking St Andrews Road. Events are
being held 7 days a week and disturbing our sleep.

4) The guests leave Hillingdon House after midnight, when the plans state everyone should have
vacated by 11.30pm.

5) Music is also played at the venue, against the restricted times as set out in the plans. Residents
can hear the music.

6) Our privacy is reduced as their staff block a layby on St Andrews Road and on Wren Avenue
with cones and stand in front of houses during the whole time of the event.'

The letters of objection to the proposals can be summarised as:

- Noise pollution, including fireworks

- Light pollution

- Litter in park/smoke bombs

- Increased traffic

- Insufficient parking

- Detrimental to highway safety

- Dangerous for school children

- Permission was only granted for a class A3 restaurant with restrictions on music

- Hillingdon House used illegally as a banqueting suite for a number of years

- Guests/customers leave as late as 1.00am

- Guests/customers use private road that residents pay service charges to maintain
- Threats made to residents who complain

- Current enforcement under investigation (neighbours have not been consulted on this)
- Inappropriate in a quiet residential area/Detrimental impact on character of locality
- Inappropriate use of building, should be a community use

- Disrespect to tax payer

- Impact on wildlife in park

- Business can't control party goers

- Submitted Noise Survey and Transport Statement are inaccurate

- Loss of privacy

- Food left outside venue

- Horse 'poop' on road

- Impact on property value

The letters of support that have been provided can be summarised as:

- Economic benefit/Employment

- Attracts people to the park

- 'Not noisy and all weddings are done respectfully'

- Losing the venue would be a big loss to local community

- Opportunity for local residents to get married in a local venue with local history
- Substantial roads leading to the venue

Page 38



- Car parking facilities plus tourist attraction (the bunker) on the same site

- Do not believe it will increase the noise and traffic levels

- Venue is well suited for banqueting as well as hosting wedding ceremonies
- Contributes to the community

The three neutral comments request that external waste is disposed of and car parking is managed
more appropriately.

A local Ward Councillor has also objected to the proposals stating:
| would like to support the petition objecting to the planning application as detailed above and wish
to speak at any potential Committee hearing.

HISTORIC ENGLAND
The local planning authority is to determine the application for listed building consent as the local
planning authority thinks fit.

Internal Consultees

PLANNING POLICY

A banqueting suite would fall within the definition of 'main town centre uses' outlined within the
NPPF (2021). The proposal is less than 1,000 sqm and therefore, in line with Policy DMTC 1, it
would not meet the threshold for requiring a town centre impact assessment. Policies within the
Development Plan would require the applicant to submit a sequential test, however this would be a
futile exercise based on the following:

1. The proposal has displaced an existing town centre use (restaurant) which already has
permission in this location. In the absence of this proposal, a main town centre use (restaurant)
would still be allowed to take place on this site.

2. Policy HE1 of the Local Plan: Part 1 (2012) outlines that the Council will encourage the reuse of
heritage assets and actively encourage their regeneration. A use is therefore required for the
building, which in all likelihood would be a main town centre use.

CONSERVATION OFFICER

The application seeks retrospective permission for the use of the ground floor of Hillingdon House
to be used as a banqueting suite, with associated ancillary facilities at basement level for private
civil ceremonies, weddings and parties (Sui Generis).

The Planning, Heritage, Design and Access Statement suggests that the application is for the
material change of use only and that no operational development is proposed and therefore there
would be no material impact on the character and appearance of the Listed Building.

Notwithstanding this the Odour Risk Assessment - Kitchen Extraction System report dated
03/11/21 makes recommendations for the upgrade of the kitchen extraction system as it does not
currently meet the EMAQ Control of Odour and Noise from Commercial Kitchen Exhaust Systems
as set out in Section 2 of the report. The report recommends that the system is fitted with fine filters
after the baffle filters followed by activated carbon filtration of sufficient size to allow for a dwell time
of 0.2 to 0.4 seconds.

It is unclear what physical changes would be required to the existing extraction system and whether
these would have an impact on the character and special interest of the listed building. There is the
potential that the modifications would add more visual clutter to the extraction system as well as
require additional kit to be fixed to the listed building. We will need further detail on these elements
so that the impact can be fully understood, and it can be determined whether or not listed building
consent would be required.

The Noise Mitigation Report dated 13/01/22 also makes recommendations to upgrade some of the

Page 39



external / internal doors with acoustic seals and door closers. Again, we will need more detail on
which doors are to be affected. Modification to historic doors to install acoustic seals and closers
have the potential to affect the character and special interest and may require listed building
consent.

Conclusion

Further detailed information is required to fully understand the impact of the upgrading works to the
doors and the extraction system to comply with the recommendations of the Sound Licensing Ltd
reports. This will help to determine if there would be any impact on the character and special
interest of the listed building and whether additional consents would be required.

NOISE AND ODOUR SPECIALIST

An odour assessment report has been submitted in support of the application. The odour risk
assessment has been carried out following recognised methodology. The report recommends that
the existing system is upgraded as detailed in the report. It is recommended that no objection is
made on odour grounds subject to a suitable condition hence:

'For the lifetime of the development hereby permitted the kitchen extraction system shall be
installed, retained and maintained in accordance with the details submitted in support of the
application’

A qualitative noise assessment report has been submitted in support of the application. This reports
that during an event a 'Barely audible bass beat' was just audible at a nearby dwelling, no. 4
Bowling Close. This distinctive character, often found in music, has the potential to cause adverse
reaction, particularly at locations that would appear to be relatively free from anthropogenic noise
pollution. At the same time regulation through condition presents difficulties as the commonly used
parameter, LAeq, t may not always be sufficient. It is recommended that no objection is made on
noise grounds subject to a suitable condition to regulate the most likely cause of local disturbance,
hence:

'For the lifetime of the development hereby permitted noise caused by its operation shall not
exceed the Noise Rating curve NR 20, and 60 dB for the 31.5 Hz octave band, measured free-field,
with no frequency weighting, time averaged over ten seconds, outside of any dwelling, or similarly
noise sensitive premises.'

HIGHWAYS OFFICER (Summary, comments set out in Section 7.10).

It is noted that, to the best of the Highway Authority's (HA's) knowledge, there is no historical
evidence to suggest that existing event activities cause any notable long term physical detriment to
the public highway both in parking or traffic generation/congestion terms. However, it is accepted
that patron numbers and associated vehicular activity can inevitably contribute to overall noise
nuisance during events, whether it be the sounding of car horns or car engines, thereby raising the
concerns cited by the local community which fall, more so, under the jurisdiction of environmental
health legislation in lieu of local or regional transport policy controls. Notwithstanding this point and
to best aid matters related to noise abatement, if a recommendation for grant is pursued, a
planning condition is recommended in order to ensure 'event' numbers of attendance are limited to
no more than 160 attendees on site at any one time concluding at 11pm in line with the relevant
Environmental Health/Licensing legislation.

It is also strongly advised, that if the application were to be refused (and thereafter appealed)
directly on transport/highway related grounds, it is highly unlikely that this stance would be
supported by the Planning Inspectorate who would be expected to afford substantive weight to i)
the relative remoteness of the site from the majority of other local residential dwellings within the
catchment area which do not directly front the roadways utilised by patrons of HH and are thereby
less affected by activities and ii) the submitted survey data and justification for continuity of the
proposal and iii) paragraph 111 of the NPPF 2021 which directs refusal on highway grounds only if

Page 40



anticipated/cumulative impacts of a development are likely to be 'severe' which the HA believe is
not the case. Accordingly, a transport/highway related refusal reason is not recommended.

Conclusion
On the premise that a planning condition could be imposed limiting event patronage to a maximum
of 160 attendees on site at any one time with events concluding at 11pm, the following would apply:

"The application has been reviewed by the Highway Authority who are satisfied that the proposal
would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking stress, and would not raise any measurable
highway safety concerns, in accordance with Local Plan: Part 2 Development Plan Policies DMT 1,
DMT 2 & DMT 6 and Policies T4 and T6 of the London Plan (2021)."

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

7.01 The principle of the development

Policy DMTC 1: Town Centre Developments of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020) states:

A) The Council will support 'main town centre uses' where the development proposal is
consistent with the scale and function of the centre. Town centre development will need to
demonstrate that:

i) adequate width and depth of floorspace has been provided for the town centre uses;
and

ii) appropriate servicing arrangements have been provided.

B) Residential use of ground floor premises in primary and secondary shopping areas and
in designated parades will not be supported.

C) Proposals for 'main town centre uses' in out of centre locations will only be permitted
where there is no harm to residential amenity.

D) The Council will:

i) expect proposals for 'main town centre uses' to demonstrate that there are no available
or suitable sites in a town centre where an edge of centre or out of centre location is
proposed, using a sequential approach; and

ii) consider the effect of the proposal, either individually or cumulatively on the vitality and
viability of existing town centres. Development proposals in out of centre and edge of
centre locations, which exceed 200 sqm of gross retail floorspace, or 1,000 sqm of
combined main town centres uses, will require an impact assessment.

The Council's Planning Policy Manager has reviewed the submission and provided
comments, stating that a banqueting suite would fall within the definition of 'main town
centre uses' outlined within the NPPF (2021). The proposal is less than 1,000 sqm and
therefore, in line with Policy DMTC 1, it would not meet the threshold for requiring a town
centre impact assessment. Policies within the Development Plan would require the
applicant to submit a sequential test, however this would be a futile exercise based on the
following:

1. The proposal has displaced an existing town centre use (restaurant) which already has
permission in this location. In the absence of this proposal, a main town centre use
(restaurant) would still be allowed to take place on this site.

2. Policy HE1 of the Local Plan: Part 1 (2012) outlines that the Council will encourage the

reuse of heritage assets and actively encourage their regeneration. A use is therefore
required for the building, which in all likelihood would be a main town centre use.

Page 41



7.02

7.03

Given the existing consented Town Centre use of the building as a restaurant, there is no
objection in principle to the proposed Town Centre Sui Generis use of the site. However,
this is subject to compliance with all other planning policy considerations, including impact
on neighbouring residential amenity, parking and highway safety.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this Sui Generis Use.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 imposes a
statutory duty on the Local Planning Authority, requiring that in considering whether to
grant planning permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, the
Local Planning Authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the
building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it
possesses.

Paragraph 199 of the NPPF (2021) states that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be
given to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the
weight should be).

Paragraph 202 of the NPPF (2021) states that where a development proposal will lead to
less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.

Policy HC1 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals affecting
heritage assets, and their settings, should conserve their significance, by being
sympathetic to the assets' significance and appreciation within their surroundings.

Policy HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that the Council will conserve and enhance Hillingdon's distinct and varied
environment, its settings and the wider historic landscape (including locally and statutorily
Listed Buildings, Conservation Areas, Areas of Special Local Character and
Archaeological Priority Zones and Areas), and encourage the reuse, modification and
regeneration of historic assets.

Policy DMHB 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states development that has an effect on heritage assets will only be
supported where:

i) it sustains and enhances the significance of the heritage asset and puts them into viable
uses consistent with their conservation;

ii) it will not lead to substantial harm or total loss of significance without providing
substantial public benefit that outweighs the harm or loss;

iii) it makes a positive contribution to the local character and distinctiveness of the area;

iv) any extensions or alterations are designed in sympathy, without detracting from or
competing with the heritage asset;

v) the proposals relate appropriately in terms of siting, style, scale, massing, height,
design and materials;

vi) buildings and structures within the curtilage of a heritage asset, or in close proximity to
it, do not compromise its setting; and

vii) opportunities are taken to conserve or enhance the setting, so that the significance of
the asset can be appreciated more readily.

Policy DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states:

Page 42



A) Applications for Listed Building Consent and planning permission to alter, extend, or
change the use of a statutorily Listed Building will only be permitted if they are considered
to retain its significance and value and are appropriate in terms of the fabric, historic
integrity, spatial quality and layout of the building. Any additions or alterations to a Listed
Building should be sympathetic in terms of scale, proportion, detailed design, materials
and workmanship.

B) Applications should include a Heritage Statement that demonstrates a clear
understanding of the importance of the building and the impact of the proposals on its
significance.

C) The substantial harm to or total loss of significance of a statutory Listed Building will
only be permitted in exceptional circumstances when the nature of the heritage asset
prevents all reasonable use of the building, no viable use can be found through marketing,
grant-funding or charitable or public ownership and the loss is outweighed by bringing the
site back into use. In such circumstances, full archaeological recording of the building will
be required.

D) Planning permission will not be granted for proposals which are considered detrimental
to the setting of a Listed Building.

The Council's Conservation and Design Officer has reviewed the proposals, including The
Planning, Heritage, Design and Access Statement, which indicates that the application is
for the material change of use only and that no operational development is proposed.

Notwithstanding this, the submitted Odour Risk Assessment - Kitchen Extraction System
report dated 03/11/21 makes recommendations for the upgrade of the kitchen extraction
system as it does not currently meet the EMAQ Control of Odour and Noise from
Commercial Kitchen Exhaust Systems. The report recommends that the system is fitted
with fine filters after the baffle filters followed by activated carbon filtration of sufficient size
to allow for a dwell time of 0.2 to 0.4 seconds.

It is unclear what physical changes would be required to the existing extraction system
and whether these would have an impact on the character and special interest of the
listed building. There is the potential that the modifications would add more visual clutter
to the extraction system as well as require additional services to be fixed to the listed
building. Further detail on these elements needs to be provided so that the impact can be
fully understood, and it can be determined whether or not listed building consent would be
required.

The submitted Noise Mitigation Report also makes recommendations to upgrade some of
the external / internal doors with acoustic seals and door closers. Again, the Council
requires more detail on which doors are to be affected and in what manner. Modifications
to historic doors to install acoustic seals and closers have the potential to affect the
character and special interest and may require listed building consent.

The applicant has been advised that these details are required to be submitted in order for
the Council to determine the acceptability of the proposals. However, the planning agent
has responded (letter dated 22nd February 2023) to state that the applicant has now
engaged outside caterers who supply cooked food to the premises when required.
Therefore, due to outsourcing, there is no cooking involved at the site and the
kitchen/servery is only used to heat pre-cooked food.

The planning agent states that the suggested measures in the odour report were aimed at

extreme or heavy cooking at the premises. However, due to engaging outside caterers to
supply hot food, the upgrades to the existing extraction system are not necessary.

Page 43



7.04

7.05

There is a conflict therefore in terms of what the application is seeking to approve. An
odour report with recommendations has been submitted. Potential mitigation measures
have been proposed, but without sufficient detail to determine their impact on the Listed
Building and therefore their acceptability. The agent is now stating these mitigation
measures are not required.

Whilst the ground and first floor have planning consent for use as a restaurant with
kitchens, the submission includes information stating that the kitchen extraction system as
it exists does not currently meet the EMAQ Control of Odour and Noise from Commercial
Kitchen Exhaust System. It is considered that a condition attached to a grant of planning
consent with the intention to limit the level of cooking on site or to define and then control
the difference between cooking and re-heating of food (and thus when additional odour
mitigation measures might be required) would fail the tests set out in paragraph 56 of the
National Planning Policy Framework. This is because such a condition is deemed
unenforceable.

In addition, regardless of the level of cooking or reheating on site, the submitted noise
report also suggests a number of mitigation measures that are required in order for the
use to have an acceptable impact on residential amenity. These details have not been
provided despite them being required to mitigate the impact of noise from the building.

It is considered therefore that insufficient information has been provided to determine the
impact of the proposals on the Grade Il Listed Building. As such, the impact on the
building may be unacceptable, contrary to London Plan (2021) Policy HC1, Policy HE1 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policies
DMHB 1 and DMHB 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (January 2020).

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to the Sui Generis Use.
Impact on the green belt

Paragraph 137 of the NPPF (2021) states that the essential characteristics of Green Belts
are their permanence and openness.

Paragraph 138 of the NPPF (2021) notes the Green Belt serves 5 purposes:

(a) to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;

(b) to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;

(c) to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;

(d) to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and

(e) to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other
urban land.

Paragraph 147 of the NPPF (2021) states that inappropriate development is, by definition,
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special
circumstances. Paragraph 148 of the NPPF (2021) requires local planning authorities to
ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. 'Very special
circumstances' will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed
by other considerations.

Policy G2 of the London Plan (2021) states that the strongest protection should be given
to London's Green Belt, in accordance with national guidance. Inappropriate development
should be refused, except in very special circumstances. Development will be supported if
it is appropriate and helps secure the objectives of improving the Green Belt as set out in

Page 44



7.07

national guidance.

Policy DMEI 4 of the Local Plan: Part Two (2020) states that extensions and
redevelopment on sites in the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land will be permitted
only where the proposal would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green
Belt and Metropolitan Open Land, and the purposes of including land within it, than the
existing development, having regard to:

i) the height and bulk of the existing building on the site;

ii) the proportion of the site that is already developed;

iii) the footprint, distribution and character of the existing buildings on the site;

iv) the relationship of the proposal with any development on the site that is to be retained;
and

v) the visual amenity and character of the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land.

Policy DMEI 6 of the Local Plan: Part Two (2020) states that new development adjacent to
the Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land, Green Chains, Sites of Importance for Nature
Conservation, Nature Reserves, countryside, green spaces or the Blue Ribbon Network
should incorporate proposals to assimilate development into the surrounding area by the
use of extensive peripheral landscaping to site boundaries.

The land directly to the south and west of Hillingdon House is designated as green belt,
including the car park located within the application redline boundary. However, Hillingdon
House itself is not within the green belt. The number of visitors and hours of use are
proposed to be controlled by condition should the application be recommended for
approval. The car park within the green belt would be utilised in the same way as it would
be for the existing restaurant consent. Therefore, the proposals are considered to have no
greater detrimental impact on the green belt than the existing consented restaurant use of
the ground floor of Hillingdon House.

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Local Plan: Part One (2012) requires all new development to improve
and maintain the quality of the built environment in order to create successful and
sustainable neighbourhoods, where people enjoy living and working and that serve the
long-term needs of all residents.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two (2020) re-emphasises the
importance of good design in new development by

A) requiring all new buildings and extensions to be designed to the highest standards,
which incorporate principles of good design, such as harmonising with the local context by
having regard to the scale, height, mass and bulk of surrounding buildings; using high
quality materials and finishes; having internal layouts and design which maximise
sustainability and the adaptability of the space; protecting features which contribute
positively to the area and providing landscaping that enhances amenity, biodiversity and
green infrastructure;

B) avoiding adverse impacts on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent property
and open space;

C) safeguarding the development potential of adjoining sites; and

D) making adequate provision for refuse and recycling storage.

As stated above, the submitted Planning, Heritage, Design and Access Statement,
indicates that the application is for the change of use of the building only and that no
physical changes to Hillingdon House are proposed, subject to further details of the odour
and noise mitigation noted within Section 7.03 of this report. The car park would be
utilised in the same way as it would be for the existing restaurant consent.

Page 45



7.08

Therefore, the proposals are considered to have no material impact on the character and
appearance of the area.
Impact on neighbours

Paragraph 130 (f) of the NPPF (2021) states that new development should seek to 'create
places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being,
with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and
disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion
and resilience'.

Policy D14 of London Plan (2021) states that in order to reduce, manage and mitigate
noise to improve health and quality of life, proposals should manage noise by amongst
other criteria, avoiding significant adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life and
mitigating and minimising the existing and potential adverse impacts of noise on, from,
within, as a result of, or in the vicinity of new development without placing unreasonable
restrictions on existing noise-generating uses.

Policy DMHB 11 part B) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (January 2020) states that development proposals should not adversely impact
on the amenity of adjacent properties and open space.

This is a retrospective application for the continued use of the ground floor of Hillingdon
House as a banqueting suite, with associated ancillary facilities at basement level for
private civil ceremonies, weddings and parties (Sui Generis).

As detailed previously in this report no physical changes are proposed to the existing
Grade Il Listed Building or parking. The impacts of the Sui Generis Use on residential
amenity are therefore considered to be noise, odour and traffic. This section of the report
will consider noise and odour from the premises. The impact of traffic/vehicle movements,
including traffic noise, is considered within Section 7.10 of this report.

There have been a significant number of objections to the proposals which relate to the
noise and disturbance caused to local residents. The Council's Policy Team has
confirmed that the use is itself acceptable in principle. The matter for consideration
therefore is whether the use itself is inappropriate in this location due to its inherent
detrimental impact on residential amenity, or whether it is an appropriate use, or could be,
in terms of residential amenity if it were controlled by appropriate conditions, such as
limiting the hours of use or degree of noise pollution.

It is notable that the consented restaurant use is controlled by conditions relating to:

1. No amplified or other music shall be played except between 0800 hours and 2000
hours Mondays to Fridays, between 0800 hours and 1600 hours on Saturdays and at no
time on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.

2. No persons shall be permitted to be on the premises between the hours of 23.30 hours
and 08.00 hours with an allowance of up to 30 minutes either side of these times for
closing and opening.

3. The rating level of the noise emitted from the plant, equipment and any air conditioning
units shall be at least 5dB lower than the existing background noise level. The noise levels
shall be determined at the nearest residential premises.

Given that the majority of objections relate to late night noise from music and people
leaving the venue at anti-social hours, it is considered that conditions similar to those
attached to the consented restaurant use would remain appropriate for a 'Town Centre
Use' directly adjacent to residential properties. Given the Sui Generis Use proposed a
greater degree of flexibility may be required in terms of amplified music. However, noise

Page 46



controls on noise pollution would be required as set out below. The concerns raised
regarding additional litter could be controlled through a Waste Management Plan to
ensure that the immediate area was cleared of any waste following an event. Controlling
the use or frequency of fireworks could also be controlled through a Noise Management
Plan.

ODOUR

An odour assessment report has been submitted with the application. The Council's Noise
and Odour Specialist has reviewed the document and confirmed that the odour risk
assessment has been carried out following recognised methodology. The report
recommends that the existing system is upgraded. The Council's Noise and Odour
Specialist has raised no objection on odour grounds subject to a suitable condition to
ensure that the required upgraded odour preventing extraction system is implemented.

However, the upgrade to the system requires works that are not detailed in the report or
elsewhere in the submission. As set out within Section 7.03 of this report, these details
have been requested from the applicant to determine if the works will have an acceptable
impact on the Grade Il Listed Building and whether separate Listed Building Consent may
be required. These details have not been provided and therefore it is not possible to
attach the condition requested by the Council's Noise and Odour Specialist. The planning
agent has stated (letter dated 22nd February 2023) that the applicant has now engaged
outside caterers who supply cooked food to the premises and these upgrades are no
longer required, despite being stated as necessary in the submitted report. As set out in
Section 7.03, a condition attached to a grant of planning consent with the intention to limit
the level of cooking on site or define the difference between cooking and re-heating of
food (and thus when additional extraction upgrade measures are required) would fail the
tests set out in paragraph 56 of the National Planning Policy Framework, as such a
condition would not be enforceable.

The submitted report states that the existing kitchen extraction system 'does not comply
with the recommendations in EMAQ Control of Odour and Noise from Commercial Kitchen
Exhaust Systems'. The proposals are therefore deemed to have an unacceptable
detrimental impact on the amenity of adjacent residential occupiers in terms of odour.

Without the ability to recommend appropriate conditions, the proposals are considered to
have an unacceptable detrimental impact on the amenity of adjacent residential occupiers,
contrary to Paragraph 130 of the NPPF (2021), and Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (January 2020).

NOISE

A noise assessment report has been submitted and reviewed by the Council's Noise and
Odour Specialist. This report states that during an event a 'barely audible bass beat' was
just audible at a nearby dwelling, No. 4 Bowling Close, about 20 metres away. This
distinctive character, often found in amplified music, has the potential to cause adverse
reaction, particularly in areas that would appear to be relatively free from anthropogenic
noise pollution.

There is some concern that the submitted noise report states that only a single night-time
site visit has been carried out to monitor noise breakout from the premises and that this
visit was carried out on the 12th of December when, due to the seasonal weather
conditions, guests to the premises are more likely to remain indoors and windows and
doors kept closed. There is no mention of fireworks within the report despite this concern

Page 47



7.09

7.10

being raised by local residents. The report also states that there is no in-house audio
system currently fitted, with hirers of the venue bringing their own systems into the
premises. The different systems could therefore produce different levels of noise pollution.
However, the Council's Noise and Odour Specialist has raised no objection on noise
grounds subject to a suitable condition to control noise pollution from the premises. As set
out within Section 7.03 of this report, the details of the measures required to mitigate
noise pollution have been requested from the applicant and have not been provided. It is
therefore not possible to know if the mitigation measures (which include acoustic door
seals and door closers) would have an acceptable impact on the Grade |l Listed Building
or whether they require separate Listed Building consent.

Without the ability to recommend appropriate conditions, the proposals are deemed to
have an unacceptable detrimental impact on the amenity of adjacent residential occupiers
with regard to noise pollution, contrary to Paragraph 130 of the NPPF (2021), Policy D14
of London Plan (2021) and Policy DMHB 11 of the Hilingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (January 2020).

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to the Sui Generis Use.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Paragraph 111 of the NPPF (2021) states that development should only be prevented or
refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway
safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.

Policy T4 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should not
increase road danger. Policy T6 of the London Plan (2021) states that car parking should
be restricted in line with levels of existing and future public transport accessibility and
connectivity.

Policy DMT 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020) states that development proposals will be required to meet the transport needs of
the development and address its transport impacts in a sustainable manner.

Policy DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020) states that proposals must ensure that safe and efficient vehicular access to the
highway network is provided, schemes do not contribute to the deterioration of air quality,
noise or local amenity or safety of all road users and residents. Also, that impacts on local
amenity and congestion are minimised and there are suitable mitigation measures to
address any traffic impacts in terms of capacity and functions of existing roads.

Policy DMT 5 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that development proposals will be required to ensure that safe, direct and inclusive
access for pedestrians and cyclists is provided on the site connecting it to the wider
network, including the provision of cycle parking in accordance with Appendix C, Table 1
or, in agreement with the Council.

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020) requires that proposals comply with the Council's parking standards in order to
facilitate sustainable development and address issues relating to congestion and amenity.

Hillingdon House is a Grade Il listed building that fronts onto Wren Avenue which, in
common with the wider catchment, is private and unadopted and there are no parking
controls in the area. Carriageway widths of the immediate roadways range from 5m to just
over 5.5m with a measure of footway provision.

Page 48



A remote and private off-street carpark in proximity and just south of the venue is an
established and affiliated provision for the address that can accommodate up to 40 formal
parking spaces with 6 disabled compliant and 4 informal spaces located within the
curtilage of the building itself that are generally utilised by the event hosts.

The site has a public transport accessibility level (PTAL) rating of 1a (poor) which
therefore encourages near total dependency on the use of private motor transport to and
from the address.

The Council's Highways Officer has been consulted on the application and they
acknowledge that the aspect of noise disturbance generated by activities can prevail.
Accordingly, local residents have predominantly complained about amenity issues such as
noise pollution into the early hours emanating from car engines/sounding of car horns etc.
affiliated to banqueting and wedding events.

Parking and Traffic Generation

There are no prescriptive local or regional parking standards that can be applied to this
proposed Sui Generis use. In lieu of this position, the applicant has undertaken parking
surveys of the car park in December 2021 during 2 separate events on a Sunday &
Thursday comprising of 120 & 160 attending guests respectively between the hours of
6pm to midnight in order to gauge the level of vehicular impact on the locality, including
the burden on the capacity of the dedicated car park.

When reviewing the surveyed events there is a high percentage of private car use
inclusive of car-sharing and taxi 'drop-offs/ pick-ups' associated with the larger event
attendance of 160 patrons. In that case it was found that, on an hourly basis, between the
surveyed hours of 5.30pm and 12.30am:

- Taxi arrivals/departures peaked at up to a near dozen vehicles

- In the region of half-a-dozen vehicles were parked on the surrounding carriageways

- Several vehicles were parked on the building frontage

- Up to 35 vehicles were parked within the remote car park (up to 40 space capacity)

To appraise the aspect of trip generation, the applicant has applied a percentage modal
split of arrivals/departures during the event window. The most significant assumption
relates to the figure of 40% of patrons arriving by

i) private car (with car-share) and

i) taxi car-share modes with an average of 1.5/2 passengers respectively.

This assumption is considered reasonable and with a patronage of 160, just under 40/30
private vehicles/taxis respectively are expected thereby indicating that there is adequate
off-street carpark and roadway capacity that can satisfactorily cater for this level of
attendance. This is further reinforced by the fact that it is unlikely that there would be
competing on-street parking demand in proximity of the site during events generated by
local residents given the relative isolation of the site from other residential dwellings that
may otherwise create on-street parking demand thereby inherently reducing spare
capacity.

An assumption that 50% of patrons would arrive within 30 minutes of the start of an event,
with 20% arriving before and after commencement has also been considered and the
results align with the above conclusion. Finally, the assumed and stated 20% of patrons
arriving by public transport is considered optimistic but does not measurably influence
final outcomes given the above data related to parking demand and available capacity.

The above appraisal and survey data therefore informs the level of trip generation to and

Page 49



from the address and indicates that car-borne activity during events is at level that is
unlikely to exceed operational capacity of the area during event periods.

It is accepted by the Highway Officer that patron numbers and associated vehicular
activity can inevitably contribute to overall noise nuisance during events, whether it be the
sounding of car horns or car engines, thereby raising the concerns cited by the local
community. To aid matters related to noise abatement, if the application is
recommendation for approval, a planning condition is recommended to be attached in
order to ensure 'event' numbers of attendance are limited to no more than 160 attendees
on site at any one time and that events conclude at an appropriate time.

It is also strongly advised by the Highways Officer, that if the application were to be
refused (and thereafter appealed) directly on transport/highway related grounds, it is
highly unlikely that this stance would be supported by the Planning Inspectorate.
Accordingly, a transport/highway related refusal reason is not recommended.

Electric Vehicle Charging Points (EVCP's)

In line with the Local Plan: Part 2 Policy DMT 6 (Appendix C), within any final parking
quantum there is a requirement for a minimum of 5% 'passive' and 5% 'active’ EVCP
provision. In this case, it is recommended that 38 'passive' & 2 'active' spaces be provided
within the car park area and secured via planning condition, should the application be
recommended for approval.

Cycle Parking

There should be a provision of 1 space per 20 staff + 1 space per 50 seats to conform to
the most relevant adopted borough cycle parking standard. Spaces should be secure and
accessible. As no detail is presented, this aspect should be secured via planning condition
should the application be recommended for approval and subject to any cycle parking
shelter having an acceptable impact on the setting of the listed building.

Travel Plan

The submitted Travel Plan attempts to capture and develop the promotion of sustainable
travel and modal shift away from 'single occupancy' car journeys by patrons to the
establishment.

The approach broadly conforms with Transport for London's (TfL's) guidelines as it
addresses all good practice mechanisms necessary to achieve a modal shift away from
the private motor car thereby leading toward a sustainable personal travel mode to and
from the site. The Travel Plan represents a strategy for managing travel by supporting and
marketing measures (i.e. via social media), that promote and support sustainable travel
choices with reduction of single occupancy car journeys by encouraging car-sharing, use
of public transport, walking and cycling.

Implementation, monitoring and management of the Travel Plan would be undertaken by
an appointed travel plan co-ordinator (TPC) who would work in partnership with Hillingdon.
The Travel Plan could be secured, should the application be recommended for approval.

Deliveries and Servicing (D&S)

As the address has consent for a restaurant use, an established D&S regime has
previously been in place and the proposal requires comparable provisions. General
servicing and refuse arrangements and collection would therefore continue with
loading/unloading areas and bin storage provision as depicted within the transport
statement and be organised by way of a private contractor. The latter would require a
separate conversation with the appropriate private waste collection service.

Page 50



7.1

7.12

713

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

719

On the premise that a planning condition limiting event patronage to a maximum of 160
attendees on site at any one time with events concluding at an appropriate time, then The
Highways Officer has concluded that the proposal would not discernibly exacerbate
congestion or parking stress, and would not raise any measurable highway safety
concerns, in accordance with Local Plan: Part 2 Development Plan Policies DMT 1, DMT
2 & DMT 6 and Policies T4 and T6 of the London Plan (2021).

Urban design, access and security

Not applicable to the Sui Generis Use.
Disabled access

Policy D5 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should achieve
the highest standards of accessible and inclusive design. They should be convenient and
welcoming with no disabling barriers, providing independent access without additional
undue effort, separation or special treatment and be able to be entered, used and exited
safely, easily and with dignity for all.

No changes are proposed to the current access arrangements. These arrangements are
acceptable for the consented restaurant use and are not deemed to require amendment in
order to be acceptable for the Sui Generis Use.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to the Sui Generis Use.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to the Sui Generis Use.
Sustainable waste management

Policy DMHB 11 part (d) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that development proposals should make sufficient provision for
well designed internal and external storage space for general, recycling and organic
waste, with suitable access for collection. External bins should be located and screened to
avoid nuisance and adverse visual impacts to occupiers and neighbours.

In the event of an approval, a condition would be secured requiring details of the refuse
facilities to be submitted to the Council for consideration. Subject to the above condition
and a condition requiring the submission of a Waste Management Plan, it is considered
that the proposed development would be able to provide a convenient location for refuse
and recycling facilities in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 part (d) of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020).

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to the Sui Generis Use.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to the Sui Generis Use.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Refer to section 7.08 of this report. The level of vehicle movements have been considered
and are not deemed to result in a significant increase such as to raise air quality
concerns.

Comments on Public Consultations

Comments received in response to the public consultation have been summarised in
Section 6 of this report and addressed in the relevant sections of the report where they
refer to material planning considerations.

With regards to the concerns raised in relation to light pollution and the impact on the

wildlife and ecology of Dowding Park, there is existing external lighting in situ at the site
and it is considered that the Sui Generis Use would not have a greater impact in this

Page 51



7.20

7.21

7.22

regard than the consented restaurant use.
Planning obligations

Not applicable to the Sui Generis Use.
Expediency of enforcement action

There is a current Enforcement Investigation under way for the site in relation to its
unauthorised use. The investigation is being held in abeyance whilst the planning
application is determined. Following the determination of this application by committee,
and if refused in line with the officer's recommendation, the matter will be referred back to
Planning Enforcement.

Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a

Page 52



proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

As set out within the report, it has not been possible to determine if the measures required
to mitigate the detrimental impact of noise and odour are acceptable, or indeed could be
approved through the discharge of planning conditions without requiring separate Listed
Building Consent. Without the ability to attach appropriate and necessary conditions, the
scheme is considered to have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of adjacent
occupiers and the application is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020)
The London Plan (March 2021)

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 2021)

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Contact Officer: Ed Laughton Telephone No: 01895 250230

Page 53



Heights

1to 12

' Dowding
Park

Hillingdon

. [T T —
- N .
RN \ .
iy W\ .
) W .
. N — .
- .
\ 3 ,
B
.
.
.

.
0
s

LONDON BOROUGH

Notes:

I:l Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey

100019283

Site Address:
Hillingdon House

OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:

77108/APP/2022/691

1:1,250

o

Planning Committee: Date:

Borough Page 54

April 2023

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Iltem 8

A
Item No. Report of the Interim Director of Planning, Regeneration & Public Realm
Address 2 NORTHBROOK DRIVE NORTHWOOD
Development: Erection of first floor side and part rear extensions, replacement of pitched

roof over retained part single storey rear extension with a flat roof, part
demolition and conversion of existing garage to habitable accommodation,
extension and conversion of roof space to habitable accommodation
including 2no rear dormers and the formation of a crown roof, new front
porch and exterior alterations.

LBH Ref Nos: 56315/APP/2022/2504

Drawing Nos: 6021/ PLOO2 E dated 20.03.23
6021/ PLOO3 E dated 20.03.23
Title No NGL125619
6021/ PLO03 D dated 03.02.23
6021/ PLO02 D dated 03.02.23
6021/ PLO01-D dated 22.11.22
22210-22-03
22210-22-02
6021-PLO01-E dated 07.03.23

Date Plans Received: 10/08/2022 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 07/03/2023
Date Application Valid: 10/08/2022
Recommendation: APPROVE subject to conditions

CONSIDERATIONS

1.1  Site and Locality

The application site is located on the south side of Northbrook Drive and comprises a two
storey detached house with an attached garage and a single storey rear extension. To the
southeast lies No.4 Northbrook Drive and to the northwest lies No.55 Murray Road, both
two storey detached houses.

The dwelling currently comprises a front driveway with space to park one car on the
existing hard standing in front of the garage. The dwelling has a good sized private rear
garden.

The street scene is residential in character and appearance comprising two storey
detached houses, which along this section of Northbrook Drive are of a relatively uniform
design, clearly part of a planned development.

The application site is not subject to any heritage designations (although it is noted that
the Northwood Town Centre, Green Lane Conservation Area is situated approximately
33m to the north west). The site is not subject to a tree preservation order and is not
located within flood zone 2/3 or a critical drainage area/area identified as at risk of surface
water flooding.

Page 2 of 18

Page 55



1.2 Proposed Scheme
Planning permission is sought for the erection of first floor side and part rear extensions,
replacement of pitched roof over the retained part single storey rear extension with a flat
roof, part demolition and conversion of the existing garage to habitable accommodation,
extension and conversion of roof space to habitable accommodation including 2no rear
dormers and the formation of a crown roof, new front porch and exterior alterations.
Revised plans have been received which set the single storey side/rear extension back
from the side boundary in line with the existing side elevation. As a result, the existing side
gap to the shared boundary with No.55 Murray Road is maintained. In addition, the first
floor side extension is set back behind the principal elevation and the site plan has been
updated to show 2no parking spaces on the front drive.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
56315/APP/2001/1216 2 Northbrook Drive Northwood

ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION
Decision Date: 29-08-2001 Approved Appeal:

Comment on Planning History
The relevant planning history is listed above.

2. Advertisement and Site Notice
2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

5 neighbours and Northwood Residents' Association were consulted by letters dated 22-
08-22. An additional two neighbours were consulted on 08-09-23. All parties were
renctified by letter dated 16-02-23 to reconsult on revised plans and description change.

3 letters of objection were received including from the Residents' Association citing
concerns regarding the impact on trees, the development being overbearing, out of
keeping, potential to become an HMO, overdevelopment, impact on residential amenities,
ground stability and drainage, loss of privacy, parking and access.

In addition, a petition in objection has been received with 25 signatures. Concerns raised
include the potential change of the family dwelling to a House of Multiple Occupancy
(HMO), rental or care home and that the development proposal represents excessive
development.

Following the 14 day re-consultation on the revised plans and proposal description, further
representations were received from one resident and also the Northwood Residents'
Association. These further representations maintained their objections to the application
as per their original responses, namely on grounds of parking provision; the design of the
porch and first floor rear extension and the impact on the character of the dwelling and
street scene; and the need to restrict use of the family dwelling to prevent the formation of
a HMO.

Page 3 of 18

Page 56



Officer Comments:

The material considerations (including design and impact on the character and
appearance of the dwelling and wider area, residential amenity and parking) are
discussed in the main body of the report.

Concerns have been raised regarding the impact on the neighbouring conifer trees along
the boundary with No.55 Murray Road. Neither the application site nor the neighbouring
property No. 55 Murray Road are covered by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO). These
conifer trees are therefore not protected and the applicant would be able to trim back any
overhanging branches under common law. Any damage to these unprotected trees
resulting from the construction process or otherwise, would be a civii matter.
Notwithstanding the above, as the development proposal would retain the existing ground
floor footprint and not bring the development closer to the neighbour, it is not anticipated
that there would be any undue impact to the roots of these neighbouring trees. The
Council's Tree Officer (see comments below) recognises that if the applicant were to
exercise their common law right and prune the overhanging branches back to the shared
boundary, it is likely that the trees would not recover on the side of the application site.
However, given that the extension would obscure these views, the impact on visual
amenity would be minimal and is considered acceptable in planning terms.

The site is not subject to any drainage or flooding designations. Drainage would be dealt
with under the relevant building regulations. As the development proposal would not
require significant ground excavation and being a householder extension, ground stability
and drainage in this instance are not material planning considerations. To clarify, ground
stability, with respect to potential damage to neighbouring properties, would be considered
a civil matter.

Regarding the potential for the property to be rented out privately, this is not a material
planning consideration.

The application has been submitted under a householder application and at this stage
there is no indication that the property is intended to be a House of Multiple Occupancy
(HMO) or a care home. The application has been assessed as a householder application
without speculation, as the Council is required to determine the application that is before
it.

It should be noted that in most cases, a dwelling can be converted to a Class C4 'small
house in multiple occupation' for up to 6 unrelated individuals without planning permission.
However, it is considered reasonable to impose a condition to prevent this (without an
express grant of planning permission), so that the potential access and disturbance
considerations could be assessed along with the potential loss of a family home. This
condition is recommended (Condition 7).

Turning to a potential change of use from a dwelling (Class C3) to a residential care home
(Class C2), planning permission would be required. However, determining the use class
(e.g. whether it is C2) will depend on if the change amounts to a material change of use,
so as to change the character and use of the property from that of a conventional
residential use. This will be a matter of fact and degree. It is noted that it can be permitted
development for a single household to have up to six residents where care is provided, as
this can be considered as remaining within the C3 use class. In any respect, the stated

Page 4 of 18

Page 57



proposal does not include any element of residential care to be provided.
Internal Consultees
Council's Tree Officer

"The Cypress hedge is not covered by a TPO and not within a Conservation Area. From
the applicant's photos the trees are situated in the neighbouring property and branches
are currently near/touching the existing property.

If the applicant is to prune the overhanging branches back to the shared boundary line
(common law right) it is likely this will go into "brown wood" and the trees would not
recover on this side, however the visual amenity of this would be minimal as the view of
this side would be obscured by the proposed extension. | have no tree objections to this
application but would like to condition tree protection measures."

Planning Officer Response

It is noted that the Tree Officer has raised no objections. The recommended condition has
been included (Condition 8). As noted above under 'Comments on Public Consultation' the
potential impacts on the adjacent conifer trees in visual amenity terms are considered
minimal, and therefore acceptable. A refusal on visual amenity grounds would not be
warranted or sustainable in the event of an appeal. There are no specific planning
protections (e.g. the trees are not covered by a TPO and they are not located within a
Conservation Area) afforded to the trees and as noted above, any damage to adjacent
trees would be a civil matter.

Council's Highway Officer

"The planning permission is sought for erection of first floor side and part rear extensions.
The property is a semi-detached dwelling and benefits from a driveway. In accordance
with London Plan 2021 Policy T6.1 Residential Parking if this was a new development
there would still be 0.75 car parking space be allocated [sic]. As this is an existing dwelling
and on the basis that when the development is built out there would still be off street
parking available, there are no objections from the Highways Authority for this proposal.”

Local Plan Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

Page 5 of 18

Page 58



DMHD 1 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards

NPPF12 NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main issues for consideration in determining this application relate to the effect of the
proposal on the character and appearance of the existing dwelling and the visual
amenities of the surrounding area, the impact on the residential amenity of the
neighbouring dwellings, the provision of acceptable private amenity space and living
conditions for the application dwelling and the provision of sufficient off-street parking.

Character and appearance:

Policy D3 of the London Plan (2021) states that - Development proposals should:
enhance local context by delivering buildings and spaces that positively respond to local
distinctiveness through their layout, orientation, scale, appearance and shape, with due
regard to existing and emerging street hierarchy, building types, forms and proportions.

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One Strategic Policy BE1 seeks a quality of design in all
new development that enhances and contributes to the area in terms of form, scale and
materials; is appropriate to the identity and context of the townscape; and would improve
the quality of the public realm and respect local character.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that new development will be required to be designed to the highest
standards and incorporate principles of good design.

Policy DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that development should be well integrated with the surrounding
area.

Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020), states -

A) Planning applications relating to alterations and extensions of dwellings will be required
to ensure that:

i) there is no adverse cumulative impact of the proposal on the character, appearance or
quality of the existing street or wider area;

ii) a satisfactory relationship with adjacent dwellings is achieved;

iii) new extensions appear subordinate to the main dwelling in their floor area, width, depth
and height;

iv) new extensions respect the design of the original house and be of matching materials;
v) there is no unacceptable loss of outlook to neighbouring occupiers;

vi) adequate garden space is retained;

vii) adequate off-street parking is retained, as set out in Table 1: Parking Standards in
Appendix C;

Page 6 of 18

Page 59



viii) trees, hedges and other landscaping features are retained.

With regard to side extensions, Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020) states that:

i) side extensions should not exceed half the width of the original property;

ii) extensions to corner plots should ensure that the openness of the area is maintained
and the return building line is not exceeded;

iif) garages should reflect the size guidelines set out in Appendix C Parking standards;

iv) two storey side extensions should be set in a minimum of 1 metre from the side
boundary, but more if on a wider than average plot, in order to maintain adequate visual
separation and views between houses;

v) two storey side extensions to detached and semi-detached properties should be set
back a minimum of 1 metre behind the main front elevation;

vi) where hip to gable roof extensions exist, a two storey side extension will not be
supported.

With regards to rear extensions, Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020) states that:

ii) single storey rear extensions to detached houses with a plot width of 5 metres or more
should not exceed 4.0 metres in depth;

iii) flat roofed single storey extensions should not exceed 3.0 metres in height and any
pitched or sloping roofs should not exceed 3.4 metres in height, measured from ground
level;

V) balconies or access to flat roofs which result in loss of privacy to nearby dwellings or
gardens will not be permitted;

vi) two storey extensions should not extend into an area provided by a 45-degree line of
sight drawn from the centre of the nearest ground or first floor habitable room window of
an adjacent property and should not contain windows or other openings that overlook
other houses at a distance of less than 21 metres;

vii) flat roofed two storey extensions will not be acceptable unless the design is in keeping
with the particular character of the existing house;

viii) pitched roofs on extensions should be of a similar pitch and materials to that of the
original roof and subordinate to it in design. Large crown roofs on detached houses will
not be supported.

With regards to front extensions, Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020) states that:

i) alterations and extensions to the front of a house must be minor and not alter the overall
appearance of the house or dominate the character of the street. Front extensions
extending across the entire frontage will be refused;

ii) porches should be subordinate in scale and individually designed to respect the
character and features of the original building; pastiche features will not be supported; and
iif) notwithstanding the above, at least 25% of the front garden must be retained.

The proposed first floor side extension would be built over the existing garage to be
converted. The forward projection of the existing garage would be pulled back in line with
the principal elevation. The first floor side extension would be set back behind the
principal elevation by 1metre to accord with Policy DMHD 1. This element also resembles
the design of the first floor side element of the neighbouring property No. 4 Northbrook
Drive. The side extension would align with the existing rear elevation and would be set
under a hipped roof with the eaves and ridge height matching that of the main dwelling.

Page 7 of 18

Page 60



Revised plans have been received and the existing 1.5metre side gap to the shared
boundary with No.55 Murray Road would be retained. In this regard, the development
proposal would maintain the existing separation distance to the neighbouring northwest
boundary and a side gap which is compliant with Policy DMHD 1. As the height of the
dwelling would not be increased, and as a suitable side gap would be maintained, it is
considered that the development proposal would be proportionate to the existing dwelling
and would not have any overbearing effects or result in a harmful loss of openness.

The existing front porch surround and the adjacent rendered ground floor/ window section
would be removed. A new front porch with a 1.3metre projection would be erected in place
of the existing front porch surround which has a similar design. The proposed porch would
not project beyond the building line as it would align with the existing garage projection.

The rendered ground floor/ window section next to the porch would be rebuilt in matching
brick and pulled back in line with the principal elevation. Whilst the development proposal
would result in the loss of the rendered ground floor/ window section, a feature which is
found on the row of detached dwellings (Nos. 2-10) along this side of Northbrook Drive,
this alteration would not, on balance, unduly harm the character and appearance of the
dwelling and the visual amenity of the area.

The proposed first floor rear extension would be erected directly from the rear elevation
over part of the existing single storey rear extension. Following the removal of the pitched
roof over the rear extension, the southwest corner section of the single storey rear
extension would be set under a flat roof with a roof lantern. The proposed first floor rear
extension would be 3.3metres deep aligning with the rear edge of the single storey rear
extension. Two flat roof rear dormers are proposed which are a suitable scale and
positioning, sitting comfortably within the roof slope.

The proposed first floor rear extension would result in the formation of a crown roof,
however as this wouldn't be considered a 'large crown roof' there would not be any conflict
with Policy DMHD 1. It is also noted that the neighbour to the north west No.55 Murray
Road features a crown roof profile that is very similar in appearance to the crown roof
shown on the development proposal. Therefore having regard to the context of the street
scene, the introduction of a crown roof at the application site, would not be an alien
feature or harmful to the character and appearance of the area.

The exterior materials are proposed to match the existing materials, and a condition would
be attached in the event of an approval, to ensure that external materials are consistent
with the character and appearance of the street scene on Northbrook Drive.

The existing crossover would be retained and the concrete hardstanding would be
widened to accommodate the provision of 2no off-street parking spaces to serve the
extended dwelling. Despite the area of hardstanding being widened, the soft landscaped
area to the front garden would be largely retained and therefore the character of the
frontage would not be adversely affected. A condition has been included to ensure that at
least 25% of the front garden is retained, and to ensure that surface water is appropriately
managed (Condition 9).

The development proposal is considered to be acceptable with regards to the character
and appearance of the host dwelling and area. The development proposal is considered
to accord with the objectives of Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -

Page 8 of 18

Page 61



Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policies DMHB 11, DMHB 12 and DMHD 1 of the
Hillingdon Local plan - Part Two (2020) and Policy D3 of the London Plan (2021).

Impact on neighbouring residential amenities:

Policy D3 of the London Plan (2021) states that - Development proposals should: deliver
appropriate outlook, privacy and amenity.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) seeks to ensure that development proposals do not adversely impact on
the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and open space.

Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that planning applications relating to alterations and extensions of
dwellings will be required to ensure that: i) a satisfactory relationship with adjacent
dwellings is achieved; and ii) there is no unacceptable loss of outlook to neighbouring
occupiers.

It is noted from the planning history that the nearest first floor window in the rear elevation
of the neighbour at No.4 serves an en-suite bathroom. The two centrally positioned first
floor rear windows serve a bathroom and stairs. The nearest first floor habitable room
window is on the far side of the rear elevation closer to its boundary with No.6 Northbrook
Drive. As the development is set away from the adjacent neighbour's rear bedroom
window, the 45 degree splay would not be infringed upon at first floor level.

The new side facing windows would serve two en-suite bathrooms and these window
could be conditioned to be obscure glazed in the interests of preserving neighbour privacy
(Condition 6).

The first floor rear extension would be sited in a slightly set back position relative to the
neighbour's single storey rear extension that would retain its main aspect that faces
towards their garden. As such the neighbours at No.4 Northbrook Drive would not
experience any undue loss of outlook or loss of light that would warrant a refusal of
planning permission.

A suitable side gap would be retained between the development proposal and the shared
boundary with the neighbours at No.55 Murray Road to the northwest. There are no side
windows facing towards this neighbour which eliminates the potential for overlooking.

It is noted the development proposal would be largely screened from view by the existing
boundary treatment (row of conifer trees) that are located along the neighbouring shared
boundary at No.55 Murray Road. The separation between the proposed side elevation
and the rear elevation of the neighbour would be approximately 13 metres. Whilst the
proposed first floor side extension would result in a slightly more prominent built form,
taking into consideration the natural screening provided along the boundary and the
separation distance, the development proposal is not considered to result in a significant
worsening of the neighbours outlook, relative to the existing situation. Therefore it is
considered that a refusal on loss of outlook would not be sustainable.

The proposed development would maintain adequate separation gap of 28 metres from
the rear elevation and the neighbouring property to the rear at No.5 Drysdale Close. It is

Page 9 of 18

Page 62



therefore considered that the development would not result in any neighbourly harm to
this neighbour with regards to overlooking and loss of outlook.

The impact of the development proposal on neighbouring residential amenity is
considered to be acceptable. The development proposal is considered to accord with
Policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local plan - Part Two (2020) and Policy
D3 of the London Plan (2021).

External amenity space:

Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that planning applications relating to alterations and extensions of
dwellings will be required to ensure an adequate garden.

Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that all new residential development and conversions will be
required to provide good quality and usable private outdoor amenity space. Amenity space
should be provided in accordance with the standards set out in Table 5.3, which requires
4+ bedroom houses to have at least 100 square metres of private amenity space.

The private rear garden area would not be reduced as a consequence of the
development. The site would retain a private amenity space of 185sq.metres in the rear
garden, which is more than adequate for a dwelling of this size. As such, the development
proposal would not be considered an overdevelopment of the site and would be in
accordance with Policies DMHB 18 and DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020).

Living conditions:

Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) states that housing development should be of high
quality design and provide adequately sized rooms.

Policy DMHB 16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that all housing development should have an adequate provision of
internal space in order to provide an appropriate living environment.

It is considered, that all the proposed habitable rooms, and those altered by the
development would still maintain an adequate outlook and source of natural light,
therefore complying with Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) and Policy DMHB 16 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020).

Parking:

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(2020) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the car parking
standards set out in Appendix C, Table 1 unless it can be demonstrated that a deviation
from the standard would not result in a deleterious impact on the surrounding road
network. Appendix C requires 2 parking space per 3 or more bed unit.

The existing crossover would be retained and the hardstanding in the front garden would
be widened to accommodate the provision of 2no off-street parking spaces to serve the

Page 10 of 18

Page 63



extended dwelling. Whilst the development proposal results in the loss of the garage
space, this would be offset by the additional parking space on the front drive.

It is noted that the highway authority do not raise any objections.

Sufficient parking provision would be provided within the site in accordance with Policy
DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(2020).

Conclusion:

It is considered that the proposed development would not have a detrimental impact on
the character and appearance of the surrounding area or on parking/ highway safety. The
proposal would provide an appropriate living environment for future occupiers and would
not unduly impact upon the residential amenity of neighbouring occupants.

As set out within this report, subject to conditions, the scheme is considered to comply
with the relevant Local Plan and London Plan policies and consequently the application is
recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted drawing numbers Title No
NGL125619, 6021/ PLO01 D dated 22.11.22, 6021/ PLO02 E dated 20.03.23, 6021/
PLOO3 E dated 20.03.23 and 6021/PL001 E dated 07.03.23.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020) and the London Plan (2021).

3 HO4 Materials

The windows and materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
development hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall
thereafter be retained as such.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed

development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing
building in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Local Plan: Part Two - Development

Page 11 of 18

Page 64



Management Policies (2020).

4 HO7 No roof gardens

Access to the flat roof over the extension hereby approved shall be for maintenance or
emergency purposes only and the flat roof shall not be used as a roof garden, terrace,
balcony, patio or similar amenity area.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

5 RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order
with or without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

6 HO6 Obscure Glazing

The first floor windows serving the en-suite bathrooms in the southeast elevation shall be
glazed with permanently obscured glass to at least scale 4 on the Pilkington scale and be
non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished floor level for so
long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

7 NONSC Restrict subdivision or HMO

The dwelling shall not be sub-divided to form additional dwelling units or used as a house
of multiple occupation without a further express permission from the Local Planning
Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the boroughs housing stock of family dwellings is protected and that the
residential amenities of neighbouring occupiers are not harmed in accordance with
Policies DMH 1, DMH 4, DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020), as well as
other relevant planning guidance contained within the London Plan (2021) and NPPF
(2021).

8 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be

Page 12 of 18

Page 65



submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details.

The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed;

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

3. Where the arboricultural method statement recommends that the tree protection
measures for a site will be monitored and supervised by an arboricultural consultant at
key stages of the development, records of the site inspections / meetings shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

9 HO10 Front Garden Landscaping

Notwithstanding the details hereby approved a minimum of 25% of the front garden area
shall be soft landscaped (eg. grass or planted beds) for so long as the development
remains in existence.

The hard surface for the driveway shall be made of porous materials, or provision shall
be made to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or porous area or
surface within the curtilage of the dwellinghouse for as long as the development remains
in existence.

REASON

To ensure the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of
the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies DMHB 11, DMEI
10 and DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

INFORMATIVES

1 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

Page 13 of 18

Page 66



2 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant Local Plan Part 2 (2020), then London Plan
Policies (2021). Hillingdon's Full Council adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
1 - Strategic Policies on 8 November 2012 and the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
on 16 January 2020.

3 Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall
only be carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to
Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No
works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's
Best Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction
and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under
Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in
carrying out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in
(A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

4 The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway
repairs, including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering
materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the
Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations,
Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road,
Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads
during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not
override or cause damage to a private road and where possible alternative
routes should be taken to avoid private roads. The applicant may be required to
make good any damage caused.

Standard Informatives

Page 14 of 18

Page 67



1 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy
for London consolidated with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:
DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping
DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMHD 1 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking
DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality
LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards
NPPF12 NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places
3 You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the

approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any
deviation

from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
application may have to be submitted. The validity of this planning permission
may be challengeable by third parties if the development results in any form of
encroachment onto land outside the appliacnt's control that is considered to
cause harm to local amenity.

Page 15 of 18

Page 68



does

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
advice, contact - Building Control, 3N/01 Civic Centre,

Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 558170).

You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at
any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved
are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal

agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

- carry out work to an existing party wall;

- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building

owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls.

The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any

necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by

the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to

comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found

in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,

available free of charge from the Planning Services Civic Centre, Uxbridge,

UB8 1UW.

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission

not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific
consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you should
consult a solicitor.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The

Page 16 of 18

Page 69



of

prior

10

11

12

good

Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours

08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public
health nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek

approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any
difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working hours
set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining
premises.

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take
appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in
action being taken under the Highways Act.

To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
insulation.

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby

approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during

construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made

to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant’'s expense. For further
information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central

Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Page 17 of 18

Page 70



Contact Officer: Christos Chrysanthou Telephone No: 01895 250230

Page 18 of 18

Page 71



Mas|
elecommul

N MP}‘
N 137

\\
\\
Iderleig|
.
Birchleigh X e

N

v

.

.

Oakleigh R 1
N
b

.
.
’ A

,
.

Milburn

Tanglewood

i 9
Glen View S
oY
> 9
.

Notes:

I:l Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address: 5 Northbrook Drive,

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Northwood Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale:

56315/APP/2022/2504 1:1,250

Date:
April 2023

Planning Committee:

Borough Page 72

LONDON




Agenda Item 9

A
Item No. Report of the Interim Director of Planning, Regeneration & Public Realm
Address 18 IVER LANE COWLEY UXBRIDGE
Development: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 4 x self-contained units

including 1 x studio unit, 2 x 1-bed units and 1 x 3-bed unit with associated
landscaping, parking, refuse and recycling.

LBH Ref Nos: 19016/APP/2023/20

Drawing Nos: 1851 P101

1851 P203
1851 P206
1851 P201
1851 P202
1851 P203
1851 P205

Date Plans Recieved: 04/01/2023 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid:  04/01/2023

1.

SUMMARY

The application site is a rectangular plot on the northern side of Iver Lane, about 140m
west of Cowley High Street and one property removed from Frays River to the west. The
borough boundary and Green Belt lie beyond. The surrounding area is predominantly of
medium density terraced development though with a more traditional semi detached
character to Iver Lane and employment and pub uses to the west.

The proposal involves the demolition of the existing bungalow and its replacement with a
two storey, four unit flat building comprising one x studio, two x 1-bed and one x 3-bed
flat. The application is a resubmission following the refusal of 19016/APP/2022/1277 on 5
October 2022 which proposed five units (two x 1-bed and three x 2-bed) with landscaping
and parking. It was refused for five reasons - excessive bulk and scale and subsequent
harm to the character of the area and the adjacent Cowley Lock Conservation Area,
harm to neighbour amenity, lack of internal amenity, poor dwelling mix and the absence
of a legal agreement to secure parking permit restrictions.

The amendments made in this scheme have satisfactorily resolved the above concerns
and approval is recommended on the basis that the net increase in residential
accommodation is supported in the planning balance. It is conditional on replacement
landscaping (Condition 3), tree protection (Condition 4), drainage details (Condition 5),
biodiversity enhancements (Condition 6), schedule of materials (Condition 7) and delivery
of allocated parking (Condition 12). As the parking arrangements involve three spaces for
four units, one unit has no on-site parking. Approval is subject to the successful
completion of a legal agreement to ensure that future residents of the three units not
being provided with on site parking cannot apply for a permit to join any parking
management scheme.

There are no objections from the Council's Highways or Access Officer, though there
have been objections received from local residents, including a petition with 30
signatures against the development. The primary issues relate to the establishment of a
residential flat building in this location (principle of development), relationship with the
surrounding area and dominance, loss of light and overlooking (neighbour amenity).

Page 73



The application is being reported to the Borough Planning Committee owing to the
submission of the petition.

RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Director of Planning, Regeneration and Public
Realm to grant planning permission, subject to the following:

Subject to a legal agreement with the Local Planning Authority that prohibits future
residents of the three units with on site parking from applying for a permit to join
any parking management scheme in the vicinity of the site of the new
development, and subject to the following conditions:

1 T Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 RES4 Accordance with approved plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans numbered 1851 P101, 1851
P201, 1851 P203, 1851 P205 and 1851 P206, all received 4 January 2023 and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

Notwithstanding the approved details, the west facing side windows to the ground floor of
the development are to be non obscure glazed.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part
2 2020 and the London Plan 2021.

3 RES9 Landscaping details

No development shall take place until a hard and soft landscape scheme has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
include: -

1) Details of soft landscaping including replacement planting in the front garden to offset
trees approved to be removed, with planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken and a schedule of
plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where appropriate.

2) Details of hard landscaping including permeable paving, levels and finishes to the rear
terrace, elevations and floor plans of refuse storage and cycle storage structures, means
of enclosure/boundary treatments, car parking layouts (including demonstration that at
least one parking space is served by an electrical charging point), external lighting and
any other structures.

3) Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities

Page 74



of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies DMHB 11,
DMHB 12, DMHB 14, DMEI 1 and DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and
Policy G5 of the London Plan (2021).

4 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

a) A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

b) Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details.

The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed;

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

3. Where the arboricultural method statement recommends that the tree protection
measures for a site will be monitored and supervised by an arboricultural consultant at
key stages of the development, records of the site inspections / meetings shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

5 SUS5 Sustainable drainage details

No development shall take place until full sustainable drainage details for the
development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. These shall include consideration of the drainage hierarchy with a drainage
plan showing pipe locations, details and levels, details of ground investigations,
calculations demonstrating the performance of soakaways or capacity of attenuation
features to cater for 1 in 100 year flood event with a 40% allowance for climate change
and runoff controlled at greenfield rates, or better and maintenance arrangements for the
life of the development. The approved measures are to be maintained thereafter for the
life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is managed in accordance with DMEI 10 of the Local
Plan Part 2 2020 and Policy S1 13 of the London Plan 2021.

Page 75



6 RES19 Biodiversity enhancement details

No development shall take place until a scheme to protect and enhance ecological
features of the site has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Details shall include the control and removal of invasive non-native plant species,
ongoing garden management and relevant best practice guidance, location and types of
ecological enhancement options for birds, insects and bats, wildlife friendly planting,
hedgehog doorways and an appropriate external lighting scheme to protect against harm
to foraging bats. The approved details shall be implemented prior to occupation and
maintained for the life of the development.

REASON

In order to encourage a wide diversity of wildlife on the site in accordance with policy
DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policy G5 of the London Plan
(2021).

7 RES7 Materials

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including roofing, walls, window and door treatments, paving, rainwater goods and rear
decking, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details
and be retained as such. Details should include information relating to make,
product/type, colour and photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

8 H10 Swept path details

No development shall take place until swept path drawings for the three parking spaces
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The car
park shown on the approved plans shall be constructed prior to occupation of the
development, thereafter permanently retained and used for no other purpose than
parking and turning of vehicles.

REASON

To ensure safe pedestrian movement and forward vehicular movement from the site in
accordance with Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two (2020) and Policy T6.1 of the London Plan (2021).

9 OoM19 Construction management plan

No development shall take place until a demolition and construction management plan
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan
shall detail:

a) The phasing of development works

b) Types of vehicles accessing the site, including their ability to enter the shared
driveway without affecting neighbouring properties

¢) The hours during which development works will occur

d) How vehicles will access the site whilst protecting existing trees on the site and
neighbouring sites

e) Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads
(including wheel washing facilities)

f) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking
provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce
the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours)

Page 76



g) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust
through minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process
h) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of
the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy BE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012).

10 NONSC Accessibility details

Prior to any works above damp proof course level, details of step free access via all
points of entry and exit shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority. The ground floor dwellings hereby approved shall accord with the
requirements of Policy D7 of the London Plan and shall not be occupied until certification
of compliance with the technical specifications for an M4(2) dwelling, as set out in
Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010) 2015, has been submitted to,
and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. All such provisions must remain
in place for the life of the building.

REASON
To ensure housing of an inclusive design is achieved and maintained in accordance with
Policies D5 and D7 of the London Plan (2021).

1 RES16 Sustainability details

The dwelling(s) shall be constructed so as to minimise carbon emissions in accordance
with London Plan targets. No development shall commence until a signed design stage
certificate confirming this level has been received. The design stage certificate shall be
retained and made available for inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.
The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in Policy DMEI 2 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policy SI2 of the London Plan (2021) are
achieved.

12 RES22 Parking details

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, details of on-site car
parking, including details of allocation and dedication to which of the residential units
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details
submitted shall demonstrate that three of the four residential units hereby approved shall
be allocated one parking space each. The approved parking arrangements shall remain
allocated and dedicated in such manner for the life-time of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two 2 (2020) and Policy
T6 of the London Plan (2021).

13 H15 Cycle storage and Electric Charging points

The development hereby permitted, shall not be occupied until the cycle storage and EV
charging facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter,

Page 77



these facilities shall be permanently retained on site.

REASON

To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policy T6.1 of the London
Plan (2021).

14 HO7 No roof gardens

Access to the single storey flat roof over the development shall be for maintenance or
emergency purposes only and the flat roof shall not be used as a roof garden, terrace,
balcony, patio or similar amenity area.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

15 RES13 Obscure glazing

The first floor side facing windows shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass to at
least scale 4 on the Pilkington scale and be non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres
taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policies DMHB 11 and
DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

INFORMATIVES

1 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex,
UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction.
Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to a
private road and where possible alternative routes should be taken to avoid private
roads. The applicant may be required to make good any damage caused.

2 ITOS Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981: Note that it is an offence under this act to disturb
roosting bats, nesting birds or any other protected species. Therefore, if applicable, it is
advisable to consult your tree surgeon / consultant to agree an acceptable time for
carrying out the approved works.

3 173 Community Infrastructure Levy

Page 78



Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), this development is liable to pay the London
Borough of Hilingdon Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This will be calculated in accordance with the
London Borough of Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule 2014 and the Mayor of London's
CIL Charging Schedule 2012. Before commencement of works the development parties
must notify the London Borough of Hillingdon of the commencement date for the
construction works (by submitting a Commencement Notice) and assume liability to pay
CIL (by submitting an Assumption of Liability Notice) to the Council at
planning@hillingdon.gov.uk. The Council will then issue a Demand Notice setting out the
date and the amount of CIL that is payable. Failure to submit a valid Assumption of
Liability Notice and Commencement Notice prior to commencement of the development
may result in surcharges being imposed.

The above forms can be found on the planning portal  at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

Pre-Commencement Conditions: These conditions are important from a CIL liability
perspective as a scheme will not become CIL liable until all of the pre-commencement
conditions have been discharged/complied with.

4

Thames Water requests that the Applicant should incorporate within their proposal,
protection to the property to prevent sewage flooding, by installing a positive pumped
device (or equivalent reflecting technological advances), on the assumption that the
sewerage network may surcharge to ground level during storm conditions.

A proposal to discharge ground water to the public network would require a Groundwater
Risk Management Permit from Thames Water. Any discharge made without a permit is
deemed illegal and may result in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry
Act 1991. We would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures will be
undertaken to minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer. Permit enquiries
should be directed to Thames Water's Risk Management Team by telephoning
02035779483 or by emailing trade.effluent@thameswater.co.uk. Application forms
should be completed online.

A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be required for
discharging groundwater into a public sewer. Any discharge made without a permit is
deemed illegal and may result in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry
Act 1991. We would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures he will
undertake to minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer. Permit enquiries
should be directed to Thames Water's Risk Management Team by telephoning 020 3577
9483 or by emailing trade.effluent@thameswater.co.uk. Application forms should be
completed online.

5

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British

Page 79



3.1

Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

6

The Council is aware of the presence of land, situated within 250 metres of the subject
site, with the potential to emit landfill gas. However, at this stage the risk of gas migration
is considered minimal due to the age, nature and location of the fill materials. It is
recommended that the building is designed and constructed to prevent the possible entry
of any migrating landfill gas. Please contact your building surveyor and/or architect if you
require advice concerning suitable construction techniques.

7 170 Positive and proactive

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive
way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from
Local Plan Part 1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning
Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice
service, in order to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit
an application which is likely to be considered favourably.

CONSIDERATIONS

Site and Locality

The site is on the north side of lver Lane, opposite its junction with Curran Close and
approximately 10m east of the Fray's River. The plot size is approximately 530m?, it is
relatively flat and is occupied by a single storey bungalow with dual pitched roof with roof
slopes to the side boundaries. The entrance to the dwelling is from the front and side of
the building. The property has a large front and rear garden with side extensions. The site
allows for vehicular access via an existing dropped kerb. The on-site garage and driveway
allow for parking of up to three vehicles in tandem layout.

To the west is a largely identical bungalow with Fray's River and the Uxbridge Industrial
Estate beyond. To the east are a series of four semi detached buildings.

Site Constraints:

- Settlement Limits

- Hillingdon Air Quality Management Area

- Colne Valley Archaeological Priority Area

- Cowley Lock Conservation Area (to the south)

- River Bank (20m) Protection Area

- Flood Zone 1

- Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 1b
- Potentially contaminated land

- Landfill buffer zone

Page 80



3.2

3.3

Proposed Scheme
The proposal involves the following:

- Demolition of existing bungalow.

- Erection of two storey flat building comprising four flats (one x studio, two x 1-bed and
one x 3-bed).

- Parking for three vehicles at the front.

- Associated site works, including amenity space and landscaping with bin storage at the
front and cycle storage at the rear.

Relevant Planning History

19016/APP/2022/1277 18 Iver Lane Cowley Uxbridge

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 5 x self-contained units, including 2 x 1-bed units
and 3 x 2-bed units together with associated landscaping, parking, refuse and recycling

Decision: 05-10-2022 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

19016/APP/2022/1277 involved the demolition of the existing detached dwelling with a
new building comprising five flats consisting of three x 2 bed and two x 1 bed flats with
landscaping, amenity space and parking. It was refused on 5 October 2022 for the
following reasons:

1) Harm to the character of the area

Due to its depth, bulk, scale, massing, footprint and design, the proposed building would
form an oversized, uncharacteristic and visually incongruous form of development, which
would fail to harmonise with the established character and appearance of the street
scene. The proposal would therefore be detrimental to the visual amenities of the
streetscene and character of the surrounding area, and would fail to preserve or enhance
the setting of the designated Cowley Lock Conservation Area, all contrary to Policy BE1
and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (2012), Policies DMHB
1, DMHB 4, DMHB 11, and DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020), Policies HC1, D1 and D3 of the London Plan
(2021) and the National Planning Policy Framework (2021).

2) Harm to neighbour amenity

Due to its depth, size, siting and design, the proposed building would be overbearing and
would lead to a harmful sense of enclosure, loss of outlook and loss of privacy to 16 Iver
Lane, thus significantly harming the residential amenity enjoyed by the occupiers of this
neighbouring property. The proposal would therefore be contrary to Policy DMHB 11 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020) and
paragraph 130 (f) of the NPPF (2021).

3) Lack of family housing

The proposed development fails to provide any three or more bedroom (family sized)
units. Robust justification has not been provided to demonstrate that the provision of
family sized units would be unsuitable or unviable. The proposal would therefore not
provide a suitable mix of housing to support sustainable, inclusive and mixed
communities, contrary to Policy DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020), Policy H10 of the London Plan (2021) and the National
Planning Policy Framework (2021).

Page 81



4) Parking Management Scheme

No legal agreement is in place to prohibit future residents of the proposed development
from applying to join the Council's on street parking management scheme. In the absence
of such an agreement, the Council's Parking Management Scheme is likely to be
overutilised, leading to roadside parking, congestion and reduced highway safety. The
proposal would therefore be contrary to Policy DMT 2 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020) and Policy T4 and T6 of the
London Plan (2021).

5) Insufficient internal amenity

The applicant has failed to demonstrate with the submission of detailed section drawings
that the second floor 1-bedroomed unit would have sufficient internal floor to ceiling
heights to provide good quality residential accommodation. Furthermore, the proposed
ground floor flat situated at the front of the building would have inadequate levels of
privacy to its bedrooms, by virtue of the proximity of the parking/access court and lack of
defensible space. The proposal therefore fails to provide a satisfactory standard of living
accommodation for future occupiers of the development, in conflict with Policies DMHB 15
and DMHB 16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:; Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020), Policy D6 of the London Plan 2021 and the Technical housing standards -
nationally described space standards.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the
following documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan (2021)

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2021) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Local Plan Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.H1 (2012) Housing Growth

Part 2 Policies:

DMCI 7 Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy
DMEI 2 Reducing Carbon Emissions

DMEI 1 Living Walls and Roofs and Onsite Vegetation

DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

Page 82



DMEI 9
DMEI 10
DMEI 11
DMEI 12
DMH 1
DMH 2
DMH 4
DMHB 11
DMHB 12
DMHB 14
DMHB 15
DMHB 16
DMHB 17
DMHB 18
DMT 1
DMT 2
DMT 5
DMT 6
LPP D1
LPP D3
LPP D4
LPP D5
LPP D6
LPP D7
LPP G1
LPP G5
LPP G6
LPP H1
LPP H2
LPP HCA1
LPP SI12
LPP SI13
LPP SI2
LPP T5
LPP T6
LPP T6.1
NPPF5
NPPF11
NPPF12
NPPF15
NPPF16

Management of Flood Risk

Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

Protection of Ground Water Resources

Development of Land Affected by Contamination
Safeguarding Existing Housing

Housing Mix

Residential Conversions and Redevelopment

Design of New Development

Streets and Public Realm

Trees and Landscaping

Planning for Safer Places

Housing Standards

Residential Density

Private Outdoor Amenity Space

Managing Transport Impacts

Highways Impacts

Pedestrians and Cyclists

Vehicle Parking

(2021) London's form, character and capacity for growth
(2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
(2021) Delivering good design

(2021) Inclusive design

(2021) Housing quality and standards
(2021) Accessible housing

(2021) Green infrastructure

(2021) Urban greening

(2021) Biodiversity and access to nature
(2021) Increasing housing supply
(2021) Small sites

(2021) Heritage conservation and growth

(2021) Flood risk management

(2021) Sustainable drainage

(2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions

(2021) Cycling

(2021) Car parking

(2021) Residential parking

NPPF 2021 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

NPPF 2021 - Making effective use of land

NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF 2021 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
NPPF 2021 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

Page 83



5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees
Neighbour consultation

A total of 23 residents were consulted between 10-31 January 2023 but owing to suggestions that
no letters were received, the consultation period was extended to 14 March 2023. A petition was
received with 30 signatures. The contents requested "planning permission to be refused".
Submissions were also received from four properties which raised the following concerns:

- Non-compliance with parking requirement

Officer comment: The parking standard is a maximum requirement and on that basis, the proposal
complies. Approval is subject to the parking being allocated one space per unit and the fourth unit
being car free.

- Lack of neighbour notification or site notice

Officer comment: It is confirmed that the application was consulted upon in accordance with
planning legislation and the Council's Statement of Community Involvement. There was no
requirement for a site notice. Nonetheless, due to resident concerns with a lack of receipt of letters,
the application was reconsulted in good faith.

- Conflict between footpath and turning space within the site

- Insufficient parking

- Insufficient access

- Harm to the local highway network/increased traffic congestion

Officer comment: With a 6m aisle width, there is likely to be identifiable overlap between the
pedestrian path and the turning space. However, swept path plans are required in Condition 8. The
level of parking is policy compliant and is satisfactory, subject to prohibition against joining the local
parking scheme, as secured by legal agreement. Traffic generation is acceptable and access via
the existing driveway is not opposed. The proposal is acceptable to the Council's Highways Officer
and no objection raised.

- Increased noise

Officer comment: The density of the development is wholly appropriate for the location and is not
unreasonable on noise disturbance grounds.

- Inadequate internal space for 3 bed flat
Officer comment: The 3 bed unit measures 81m2, which accords with the minimum standards.

- Excessive scale and bulk in comparison to neighbouring properties
- Over development of the site

Officer comment: The scale and form of the development is appropriate within its plot and
compatible with surrounding development, as noted in Section 7.07.

Page 84



- Sense of enclosure, loss of outlook and loss of privacy to 16 and 20 Iver Lane

Officer comment: The revisions to the scheme have resolved the amenity issues raised in the
previous refusal and on that basis, no objection is raised.

- Increased flood risk

Officer comment: Flooding and drainage issues are acceptable, as noted at Section 7.17 and
Condition 5.

- Loss of bungalow
- Loss of family home

Officer comment: The loss of the family home is not opposed when weighed against the increase in
housing and the varied unit mix.

Statutory consultation
Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service: No objection.

Environment Agency: No objection.

Internal Consultees
Highways Officer:

No objection on parking and traffic grounds, subject to conditions relating to the following:

- Delivery of EV charging points (Condition 13)

- Parking spaces being allocated to each flat (Condition 12)

- Swept path plans showing forward movement from the site (Condition 8)

- Prohibition against joining the parking scheme for units with on-site parking (legal agreement)
Access Officer:

No objection, subject to details of step free access.

Refer to Condition 10.

Contaminated Land Officer:

No objection subject to condition relating to restrictions for importation of soil.

Officer comment: Given the minimal change to ground levels, there would not be any soil
importation onto the site and the condition does not meet the six tests for its inclusion, as it is not
necessary.

Waste Officer:

No comments received.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

7.01 The principle of the development
Housing Provision

Policy NPPF1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) requires a
proactive approach to sustainable development. Planning applications that accord with the

Page 85



7.02

policies in the Hillingdon Local Plan will be approved without delay, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. Policy DMH 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020)
states that the net loss of existing self-contained housing will be resisted unless the
housing is replaced with at least equivalent residential floorspace. Policy H1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) addresses annual housing growth of 425 dwellings per
year, where this can be achieved, in accordance with other Local Plan policies.

The proposal involves the demolition of a two bedroom dwelling and its replacement with
four flats or a total of six bedrooms. This is a net increase in bedrooms and residential
accommodation which is supported in principle. The development would make a small
additional contribution to the Borough's housing need.

Flat Development

Paragraph 69 of the NPPF states that small and medium sized sites can make an
important contribution to meeting the housing requirement and are often built out relatively
quickly. Paragraph 119 seeks effective use of land in meeting the need for homes.
However, this is subject to a consideration against Policy DMH 4 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2 (2020), which permits the redevelopment of dwellings into flats where no more
than 10% of the street has been redeveloped into flats.

Iver Lane is 275m in length before it reaches Green Belt and 490m to the borough
boundary. There are 21 properties on the southern side and 13 properties on the northern
side for a total of 34 properties. These include a hall, two pubs and industrial warehouse,
giving a somewhat varied context. One building in the street is divided into flats - at 15-17
Iver Lane. The addition of a second such building within the street would equate to 6% of
the total, which complies with Policy DMH 4.

Loss of Existing Dwelling/Unit Mix

Strategic Objective 7 (SO7) of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) aims to address
housing needs in Hillingdon. The type of dwellings should reflect housing needs identified
in the Borough, particularly the need to provide more family homes with adequate garden
space. Policy H10 of the London Plan (2021) and Policy DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2 (2020) require a mix of housing units of different sizes in schemes of
residential development to reflect the Council's latest information on housing need. The
Council's current need indicates a substantial borough-wide requirement for larger
affordable and private market units, particularly three bedroom properties.

The proposal involves the loss of a non-family sized dwelling and therefore the provision
of additional accommodation is not contrary to SO7. The previous scheme was refused in
part because it failed to provide any three or more bedroom (family sized) units. Robust
justification had not been provided to demonstrate that the provision of family sized units
would be unsuitable or unviable. It was therefore concluded that the previous proposal
would not provide a suitable mix of housing to support sustainable, inclusive and mixed
communities.

In the current application the mix has been altered, with one 3-bed dwelling (25%)
alongside three other studio/1-bed flats. The inclusion of a 3 bed flat resolves the previous
concern. Given the modest scale of the development, the site location near the high street
(which is supportive of smaller dwellings) and when noting the net increase in
accommodation, the mix is broadly acceptable.

Density of the proposed development

Policies D1, D3 and GG2 of the London Plan aim to make the best use of land and

Page 86



7.03

proactively intensify the use of land to support additional homes though a design-led
approach that optimises the capacity of sites. Higher density developments should
generally be in locations that are well connected to jobs, services, infrastructure and
amenities by public transport, walking and cycling. This should be interpreted in the
context of Policy H2 of the London Plan which supports well-designed new homes on
small sites below 0.25 hectares in size. Policy DMHB 17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part
2 (2020) specifies a density of 35-100 units or 105-300 rooms per hectare.

The proposed density is 75 units or 113 rooms per hectare which is within the scope of
Policy DMHB 17. However, numerical densities are more appropriate to larger sites and
what is of greater significance is local context. The key consideration is whether the
development would integrate with the character of the area, and respect residential
amenity considerations. This is discussed below.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Archaeology

Policy DMHB 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) aims to ensure that sites of
archaeological interest are not disturbed or satisfactory measures are taken to mitigate
impacts through archaeological fieldwork. The site is within the Colne Valley
Archaeological Priority Area but the Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service has
advised that the proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of
archeological interest. This is due to its small scale and as it is sited mostly on the
footprint of the existing dwelling.

Conservation Area

The site is opposite the Cowley Lock Conservation Area and the Council has a duty to pay
special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of the Conservation Area, including its setting (Section 72 of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990). Paragraphs 199-202 of the NPPF
require consideration of the harm to the significance of the Conservation Area.

Policy DMHB 4 of the Hilingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) seeks to ensure that
development on the fringes of a Conservation Area preserves or enhances the character
or appearance of the area, including though high quality design and resisting the loss of
buildings and features. Policy HC1 of the London Plan seeks to conserve significance, by
being sympathetic to the assets' significance and appreciation within their surroundings.

Due to its depth, bulk, scale, massing, footprint and design, the previous scheme was
viewed as an oversized, uncharacteristic and visually incongruous form of development,
which would fail to harmonise with the established character and appearance of the street
scene. This extended to failing to preserve or enhance the setting of the designated
Cowley Lock Conservation Area.

The previously refused development had a footprint of 166m2, building width of 9.7m and
a height of 5.5m (eaves) to 9.25m (ridge) with a front and rear facing hip projection and
side and front facing dormers creating a relatively busy building and roof form. The officer
report identified the primary issues as excessive footprint, height, width and depth, the
blank side wall, a lack of any pedestrian definition to the front elevation and the intrusive
nature of the dormers.

The subject application has a footprint of 154m2, building width of 9.7m (though 7.7m at

first floor level) and a height of 5.5m (eaves) to 8.5m (ridge). The front and rear
projections and the dormers to the front and side roof planes have been removed and a

Page 87



7.04

7.05

7.07

front door has been added. A standard hipped roof to the front and rear are proposed.
Collectively, these changes have resulted in a design and form that is more compatible
with the area and there is no longer any undue impact upon the setting of the
Conservation Area opposite.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable.
Impact on the green belt

The site is 130m from the Green Belt and would not have an adverse impact upon its
openness.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) seeks a quality of
design that enhances and contributes to the area in terms of form, scale and materials, is
appropriate to the identity and context of the townscape and would improve the quality of
the public realm and respect local character.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) states that new development
will be required to be designed to the highest standards and incorporate principles of good
design, including harmony in consideration of the height of surrounding structures. Policy
DMHB 12 of the same plan requires integration with the surrounding area.

Noting the proportions of the building above, as amended in the subject application, the
proposed development is two storeys in height with a typical pitched roof, with at least
1.5m to the boundary (more at the eastern side of the first floor). At this height and
building separation, it fits comfortably within the site and accords with the predominant
character of the area which is of two storey developments. Whilst it will adjoin a single
storey bungalow to the west, this property is an anomaly rather than an example of typical
building forms and scale. There are no longer bulk and scale concerns with this revised
development proposal.

The design is much less complicated than the previously refused scheme. A front door
provides building activation, the hipped roof from is uncluttered and cohesive within the
streetscene. The building width is much reduced at first floor level which provides very
generous building separation and adds some transition to the single storey bungalow to
the west. The ground floor flat eastern side extension has a flat roof. Whilst not typical in a
new build development, it relates appropriately to the single storey flat roofed garage
across the eastern boundary.

The building will be setback 10m from the street, which is suitably within the stepped
setback of the street, with 20 Iver Lane to the west at 11.5m and 16 Iver Lane to the east
at 6.1m. The alignment is broadly consistent with the building line and there is no adverse
disruption in the street. The building line at the rear extends about 8m beyond 16 Iver
Lane (and the other semi detached properties) to the east but it is consistent with 20 Iver
Lane to the west. With adequate garden depth, no neighbour impacts and some cohesion
when measured with the outbuildings/garages on properties to the east, there is no
unacceptable disruption to the landscape character achieved to the rear. Overall the siting
and alignment of the dwelling accords with the predominant character.

A parking area with three parking bays is proposed at the front of the site which will
necessitate removal of some small shrubs and trees. This will have a net impact on the
landscape character of the site, but it is not uncharacteristic of the area and would be
subject to replacement planting in Condition 3. A bin store to the eastern boundary would
not add excessive clutter to the street.

Page 88



7.08

Boundary treatments are unclear but details are required by Condition 3. By virtue of
being a flat building, permitted development rights need not be removed.
Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHD 1 and DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) seek to ensure a
satisfactory relationship with adjacent dwellings and no unacceptable loss of outlook,
amenity, daylight and sunlight to neighbouring occupiers.

To the west is a largely identical bungalow (20 Iver Lane) and to the east is a two storey
semi detached dwelling (16 Iver Lane). There is open space over the rear boundary to the
north associated with the terraced development in Heritage close though there are no
buildings in the immediate vicinity, there is a significant setback to the boundary and
heavy vegetation cover on the boundary such that no concerns are raised. The
streetscene is not atypical and with a 10m setback from the front boundary, no issues are
raised in respect of the relationship with properties across the road.

- To 16 lver Lane

The previous scheme was refused, in part, because "due to its depth, size, siting and
design, the proposed building would be overbearing and would lead to a harmful sense of
enclosure, loss of outlook and loss of privacy to 16 Iver Lane." More specifically, the
officer report refers to the sheer size and proximity of the building towering over the rear
garden area and overlooking from a first floor kitchen/dining room window and the rear
balcony.

The subject application includes no habitable side facing windows on the first floor, the
removal of the balcony and a ground floor setback of 1.5m and a first floor setback of
3.4m. As such, the previously identified issues are resolved.

More broadly, the ground floor of the proposed development still extends 8.2m beyond the
rear building line of 16 lver Lane but it aligns with the garage on the neighbouring
property, which has no setback from the boundary. At 6.7m, the projection at the first floor
is slightly less and in combination with the generous side setback, there would be
adherence to the 45 degree line and no undue perception of dominance or sense of
enclosure. A single first floor window within the neighbouring side elevation would be
impacted but it does not serve a habitable room and as such, no issue of amenity is
raised. Taking account of the orientation and compliance with 45 degree guideline, there
would be no undue harm in relation to daylight/sunlight. There are three first floor side
facing windows within the proposed development, all to non habitable spaces and these
are noted as obscure glazed but to be secured in Condition 15 nonetheless.

- To 20 lver Lane

The proposed building will not extend significantly beyond the front and rear building lines
of the neighbouring property and is setback 1.6m from the boundary which is 650mm
more than the corresponding elevation at 20 Iver Lane. There is a non habitable bathroom
window and a dining/living room window within the neighbouring elevation, though the
latter is a secondary window with the main opening northwards to the rear garden. Despite
its two storey height, there are no unacceptable impacts. There is no incursion of the 45
degree line back towards the rear elevation of its neighbour. Sunlight and daylight would
be adequately maintained and the setback from the side boundary is adequate to prevent
any dominance or sense of enclosure.

The ground floor side facing windows are shown as obscure glazed but this appears
unnecessary given the existing boundary fence achieves satisfactory screening to the

Page 89



7.09

neighbour. At first floor level, there is a side facing living room window to each of the flats
(as well as a bathroom window to the studio) but they are shown as obscurely glazed.
Whilst the outlook is over the roof of the bungalow opposite, the use of obscure glazing is
appropriate as it would otherwise restrict the future development potential of 20 Iver Lane.
There would not be an adverse effect on the internal amenity of the two units. At 4.5m
from the front or rear elevations, the windows serve a secondary purpose and the light
and outlook to the very back of these rooms would not be unreasonable.

A rear facing ground floor terrace is proposed for the use of the 3 bed flat at the rear.
There is no expectation that it would involve any raising above existing ground level to the
extent where it could pose overlooking concerns. However, for confirmation, these details
are required by Condition 3.

Living conditions for future occupiers

Internal Amenity

Policy DMHB 16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) requires a minimum internal
space standard based on occupancy and number of floors as follows:

- The unit at the front of the ground floor (1 bedroom, 2 person) requires a minimum of
50m2. At 50m2, compliance is achieved.

- The unit at the rear of the ground floor (3 bedroom, 4 person) requires 74m2. At 81m2,
compliance is achieved. It is noted that 11m2 of this floorspace is within the hallway
leading from the front of the building. Whilst not wholly desirable, it is not unreasonable
when accounting for the exceedance of the requirement.

- The first floor studio (1 person) requires 39m2. At 39m2, compliance is achieved.

- The flat at the rear of the first floor (1 bedroom, 2 person) requires 50m2. At 51m2,
compliance is achieved.

All of the units meet the minimum standards. There is also compliance with bedroom sizes
(single and double) and widths. There is provision for storage for all but the studio unit.
Given its size and occupancy this is acceptable on balance. The living spaces are
generously sized. Internal amenity is therefore acceptable.

Policy D6 of the London Plan aims for dual aspect dwellings with a design that provides
sufficient daylight and sunlight that is appropriate for its context. The units are all dual
aspect and even with obscure glazing, the upper parts of side facing windows can be
opened and a degree of cross ventilation can be achieved. The two units at the rear are
north facing but will still have sunlight through the morning and afternoon via the side
elevations. There is also an uninterrupted green outlook to the rear which offsets any
limitation of direct sunlight. On this basis no objection is raised.

The previous application was refused, in part, because of substandard internal amenity, or
at least a lack of information to confirm that there was no adverse impact and because the
bedroom windows of the ground floor flat opened onto the car park at the front of the
building, thereby raising privacy concerns. The issue of head height related to the loft unit
and this aspect has been removed from the subject scheme. A landscape buffer has also
been introduced at the front of the building such that the previous reason for refusal is
sufficiently resolved.

External Amenity
Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) requires a minimum outdoor

amenity space of 20m2 for the proposed studio and 1 bed flats and 30m2 for the 3 bed
flat or 90m2 in total. A 25m2 terrace is provided at the rear of the ground floor for use by

Page 90



7.10

the 3 bed flat. There is no provision for private amenity space for the remaining flats.
Rather, the rear garden, separated from the private terrace for the 3 bed flat, will be used.
It measures 140m2 which exceeds the above cumulative requirement.

The area is north facing and has a relatively dense canopy cover such that sunlight will be
constrained. It is also disconnected from the front entrance though side access is
generous and not uninviting. However, it is removed from the road and would provide a
tranquil area. Whilst not wholly ideal, the arrangement is still appropriate in the context of
the site. The officer report for the previously refused scheme raised no objection to the
provision of outdoor amenity space and on this basis, no objection is raised.

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Traffic impact

Policy DMT 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) requires that development be
sustainably located, with access to public transport, walking, cycling, services and
facilities, with accessible and convenient access through the site, adequate servicing and
delivery and no adverse transport, air or noise impacts.

There is a local bus stop which is served by the 583, this is a non-TfL bus service and
only operates Monday to Friday with a limited frequency. The proposal site has a PTAL
rating of 1b indicating that its access to public transport is poor when compared to London
as a whole suggesting that there will be a strong reliance on the private car.

The proposal will increase potential traffic generation when measured against the existing
residential dwelling. However, the Council's Highways Officer advises that peak period
traffic movement into and out of the site would not be expected to rise above two to three
additional vehicle movements during the most crucial and sensitive peak morning and late
afternoon/early evening traffic periods. Such potential uplift is marginal in generation
terms and can be absorbed within the local road network without notable detriment to
traffic congestion and road safety.

Parking
- Car parking

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) requires accordance with the
parking standards unless it can be demonstrated that a deviation from the standard would
not result in a deleterious impact on the surrounding road network. For a development of
four flats of the sizes proposed, the proposal would require a provision of 5 parking
spaces. However, Policy T6.1 of the London Plan, which is the overriding policy, seeks
compliance with the relevant parking standards, in this case being a maximum of 3.25
spaces.

Parking along lver Lane is controlled by a parking management scheme C1 which
restricts parking to permit holders only Monday to Friday 09:00 and 17:00h, with parking
bays being located outside of the site. The proposal includes a car park with three spaces
at the front of the property. This accords with policy and the Council's Highways Officer
raises no objection although this is conditional on the parking being allocated to specific
units (Condition 12) and the future occupants of the three units provided with on site
parking not being entitled to the residential parking scheme to avoid any prospective
purchasers of the unit seeking to park on local streets. This formed a reason for refusal in
the previous scheme on the basis that the application was to be refused on other reasons.
But because the application is recommended for approval, the approval is conditional on
completion of the s106 legal agreement.

Page 91



7.1

No visitor parking is proposed though this is not unacceptable given the small scale of the
development.

- Cycle parking

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policy T5 of the London Plan
require one cycle space for the studio and 1 bed units and two spaces for the 3 bed unit.
This equates to five spaces. A storage area is located at the rear of the property which
shows a capacity of eight spaces. As the quantum has been exceeded, no objection is
raised. Final details are required in Condition 3.

- EV charging

Policy T6.1 of the London Plan requires that 20% of spaces should have active charging
facilities, with passive provision for all remaining spaces. One active space is required and
in the absence of such detail, this is conditioned at Condition 3.

- Disabled parking

Policy T6.1 of the London Plan and Appendix C(9) of the Local Plan require disabled
persons parking for new residential developments. One disabled parking space has been
shown alongside the front entrance which satisfies requirements.

Access

Policy DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) requires safe and efficient
vehicular access, safe and convenient access for cyclists and pedestrians and
management of existing and future traffic flows and mitigation, where necessary. Policy
T4 of the London Plan also states that development proposals should not increase road
danger. Section 4.7.1 of the Hillingdon Domestic Vehicle Footway Crossover Policy
requires pedestrian visibility which states that obstructions be kept to a maximum height of
0.6m.

The existing shared crossover and access will be used, which is acceptable. Aisle width is
6m allowing forward movement from the site, though the Council's Highways Officer has
sought swept path plans in Condition 8 as confirmation. Given the driveway is shared,
there will also be acceptable sightlines for pedestrian movement. There are no issues with
vehicular splays given the generous verge in front of the property.

Construction

A detailed construction management plan will be a requirement given the scale of the
development with reference to construction related routing, frequency and construction
related parking arrangements, wheel washing, thereby avoiding/minimising potential
detriment to the surrounding public realm during the build programme. This is outlined at
Condition 9.

Urban design, access and security

Paragraph 92 of the NPPF and Policy DMHB 15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020)
require healthy, inclusive and safe places so that crime and disorder, and the fear of
crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion. The proposal exhibits
relatively positive design outcomes. Window openings provide good surveillance of the
street and the parking court and the side setbacks do not create an enclosing
environment. The cycle storage is acceptable but also secure on siting grounds being at
the rear.

Page 92



712

713

7.14

Disabled access

Policy D7 of the London Plan requires all new housing, as a minimum standard, to be
designed and constructed as accessible and adaptable in accordance with M4(2) as set
out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations. Level access is not shown
between the car park and the ground floor lobby and this is required by Condition 10. With
the disabled parking space, the front ground floor unit would be designated as accessible.
The open plan layout and generously sized main bedroom and bathroom are such that
this is achievable.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The proposal is below the threshold for affordable housing.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Trees and Landscaping

Policy G5 of the London Plan seeks to integrate green infrastructure to contribute to urban
greening and Policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) requires the
retention and enhancement of existing landscaping, trees, biodiversity or other natural
features, landscaping that supports and enhances biodiversity and amenity and replanting
of new trees.

The application was not supported by any arboricultural details though the proposed site
layout plan suggests that the proposal would have no adverse impact on significant trees.
Two modestly sized trees at the front of the site alongside several shrubs will be removed
to accommodate the proposed car parking area. There is likely to be some minor
landscaping works in the rear garden though the mature vegetation at the rear of the site
is removed from the proposed footprint of the replacement building. Nevertheless, tree
protection details are required in Condition 4.

Broadly, there will be an immediate net loss of landscape character within the front garden
and this will have some consequence for the setting of the street. However, it is not out of
character with the wider area and a landscape scheme is required by Condition 3.

Ecology

Section 15 of the NPPF and Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) aim
for the retention of existing features of biodiversity or geological value within the site and
enhancement and net gain of biodiversity within a proposed development. Policy DMEI 7
requires appropriate surveys and assessments to demonstrate that the proposed
development will not have unacceptable effects. Policy DMEI 5 of the same plan also
states that development in Green Chains (such as watercourses) will only be supported if
it conserves and enhances the visual amenity and nature conservation value of the
landscape.

The application was not supported by any ecological details but the previous application
did not raise issue with the potential for building on the site on the basis that "The site
does not contain any ponds, open woodland or dense scrub and shrubbery. There are no
protected sites of ecological interest adjacent to the site. It is therefore considered that the
likelihood of protected species being present at the site is low."

On the basis of the above stance and to ensure consistency in decision making, no further
objection is raised. However, there still remains the very low potential that the existing
building could be used for bat roosts. Accordingly, an informative is included to outline that
any disruption of a bat roost as part of the demolition of the existing building is a criminal
offence.

Page 93



715

7.16

717

Paragraph 174 of the NPPF seeks biodiversity net gain (BNG) within development
proposals. There is good potential for biodiversity enhancements (such as woodpiles,
wildlife friendly fencing and bird and bat boxes) within the site, and subject to securing
details of suitable enhancements, the proposal would result in a satisfactory ecological
outcome. These details are secured by Condition 6.

Sustainable waste management

A bin store is shown alongside the eastern boundary. It is capable of accommodating six x
240L bins. The Council uses sack collection but the principle of the bin store is still
acceptable. It is sufficiently proportioned to accommodate the likely waste, recycling,
green waste and food waste from the proposed development. lts siting is acceptable on
streetscape grounds given it is located to the side of the property though final details are
required in Condition 3. Odour wise, there is unlikely to be any significant issues subject to
waste being suitably stored.

The positioning would allow for conformity with the accepted distance collection standards
of 10m from the point of collection on the public highway and 30m from each flat. There is
convenience for residents and no undue issue for collection, with kerbside collection
occurring as existing. The above parameters are satisfied and the Council's Highways
Officer raises no objection.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policies BE1 and DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part 1 and Part 2 respectively)
seek to achieve reductions in carbon dioxide emissions through energy efficient design
and effective use of low and zero carbon technologies, including the use of SUDS, water
efficiency, lifetime homes and sustainable design and construction techniques to increase
the re-use and recycling of construction, demolition and excavation waste and reduce the
amount disposed to landfill. No such details have been submitted and whilst it is feasible
that minimum standards to meet Building Regulations would bring a satisfactory outcome,
Condition 11 seeks final sustainability details prior to commencement.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Flooding

Policy SI12 of the London Plan states that development proposals should ensure that
flood risk is minimised and mitigated, and that residual risk is addressed. The property is
in Flood Zone 1 and there is no change to the classification of the use such that there is
no significant flood risk within the site or impacts elsewhere. The proposal is therefore
acceptable.

Drainage

Policy SI13 of the London Plan states that development proposals should aim to achieve
greenfield run-off rates and ensure that surface water run-off is managed as close to its
source as possible. Policy DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) states that
developments are required to include a drainage assessment demonstrating that
appropriate sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) have been incorporated.

The site is not in a Critical Drainage Area and not shown to be at risk from surface
flooding. The application form refers to discharge to the private sewer. In terms of the
drainage hierarchy, the first option for drainage is via a sustainable drainage system, or
an existing water course, soakaway and then main sewer. No drainage details have been
submitted, therefore it remains unclear why discharge to the sewer is required. The
previously refused application referred to "a SuDS condition to ensure that water was
adequately and appropriately managed on site". Whilst not necessarily opposed in
principle, further details of the proposed drainage arrangements would be required in

Page 94



7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Condition 5 to ensure that all proactive steps have been undertaken to ensure the best
management of on site drainage.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Air Quality

Policy DMEI 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) states that development should
demonstrate appropriate reductions in emissions to sustain compliance with and
contribute towards meeting EU limit values and national air quality objectives for
pollutants.

The site falls within the Air Quality Management Area, but given the relatively minor scale
of development and continued residential use of the site, no real concerns are raised.

Condition 9 (Construction Management Plan) will aid with minimising pollution during the
construction process.

Noise Disturbance

Section 15 of the NPPF requires consideration of noise disturbance on sensitive receivers
within the development or on surrounding land uses.

The density of the development is 4 units, six bedrooms, nine persons and this is
appropriate for its site and the surrounding area. By contrast, the semi detached
properties to the east are 3 and 4 bed dwellings, which is not too dissimilar to the subject
proposal. The rear terrace will be for the sole use of the rear ground floor unit, which is not
unlike other properties. The rear garden will be communal but likely usage will be limited
given the connectivity to the internal areas of the units.

Internally, the layout and siting of rooms is broadly acceptable. Non habitable spaces such
as bathrooms within separate units are sited together. There is some overlap with living
spaces on the upper units directly above sleeping areas of the units on the ground floor
but it is limited in its extent. Given that the development is a new build and will be required
to be built to Building Regulations, no objection is raised.

Comments on Public Consultations

See above.
Planning obligations

Policy DMCI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) refers to the delivery of sufficient
infrastructure alongside development whether by planning obligations or the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The CIL charge for residential developments is £95/m2, in
addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £60/m2. With a net increase in dwellings and
floorspace, the proposal would be CIL liable.

Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable.
Other Issues

Land Contamination

Policy DMEI 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) states that development on
potentially contaminated sites will be expected to be accompanied by at least an initial
study of the likely contaminants. There is no change to the land use and the surrounding
area is residential in nature. The Council's Contamination Officer raises no objection
subject to a condition relating to soil importation. However, as noted previously, this is not
relevant as no significant level changes are being proposed.

Page 95



Observations of the Borough Solicitor
General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the

Page 96



protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION
The principle of establishing a residential flat building at the site accords with policy.
Issues identified in the previously refused application for a similar scheme have been
satisfactorily addressed, such that the development now represents a development of
appropriate scale and form without any undue neighbour amenity, highways, landscaping
or ecological impacts.
The proposal would contribute towards the Council's housing supply targets which weighs
in favour of the scheme. There are no in-principle objections to the unit mix, including
when considered against the loss of the existing dwelling. It results in economic activity
associated with the construction phase and through Community infrastructure Levy.
Weight applied is moderate.
There is a degree of social benefit associated with a mix of dwelling types including one
larger dwelling. The level of amenity afforded to the future occupants is of sufficient
standard. Overall, social outcomes should be afforded moderate weight.
There are acceptable environmental benefits. The scale of the building is modestly
proportioned, there is no drastic tree removal and ecological enhancements can be
incorporated without any major issue. Cumulatively, the environmental benefits could be
considered as minor.
The proposal is considered to comply with the Development Plan and no material
considerations indicate that the policies of the development plan should not prevail.
Consequently, it is recommended that planning permission be granted, subject to the
legal agreement and conditions outlined at Section 2 of this report.

11. Reference Documents
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020)
The London Plan (March 2021)
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 2021)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard (2015) (as
amended)

Contact Officer: Simon Taylor Telephone No:

Page 97



' El Sub Sta

I
The ' i O
' Beeches !

Beech \

Cottac N N
v

o [

Sub Sta '
'
'
'
I
'
'

19

Holly \

Tree N
Cottage \
\

18
4

12 43

414

35010 IOVLIFIH

T 4 92 5 8|36 7

9SNoH J81sayd

'
I
'
'
1
'
'
J

The 3 Steps
(PH)

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

18 Iver Lane

LONDON BOROUGH

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
Planning Section

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
19016/APP/2023/20 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Borough Page 98 April 2023

LONDON




Agenda Item 10

A
Item No. Report of the Interim Director of Planning, Regeneration & Public Realm
Address 32 KINGSEND RUISLIP
Development: Demolition of existing house and garage and construction of a block of seven

purpose-built apartments

LBH Ref Nos: 9894/APP/2022/3871

Drawing Nos: TQRQM20267092643804

PLO1
PLO2
PLO3
PLO4
PLOS
PLO5

Date Plans Recieved: 21/12/2022 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 21/12/2022

1.

SUMMARY

The application site consists of a large plot within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area,
about 250m west of the Ruislip Town Centre. The surrounding area is predominantly of
detached dwelling houses though there are some flat buildings and backland cul-de-sac
developments.

The proposal involves the demolition of the existing two storey dwelling and its
replacement with a 2.5 storey flat building with basement comprising one x 3-bed flat,
five x 2-bed flats and one x 1-bed flat, including two flats within an excavated basement
and one unit in the roof space.

There are no objections from the Council's Highways Officer, Trees Officer or Flooding
Officer though there have been 22 resident objections received. The primary issues
relate to the establishment of a residential flat building in this location (principle of
development), built form, height, design and excavation to accommodate a habitable
basement (character of the area), dominance and overlooking, perceived or not
(neighbour amenity), internal amenity afforded to the basement level and wider
landscape implications.

The net increase of residential accommaodation is noted but the application is
recommended for refusal on the following grounds:

1) Principle of development

2) Lack of justification for the loss of the existing building

3) Over development of the site and harm to the character of the streetscene and
Conservation Area

4) Loss of acoustic and visual privacy within and beyond the boundaries of the
development

5) Substandard internal amenity within the two basement flats

6) Unnecessarily poor location of the cycle storage

The application was called to committee by a Local Councillor as it is "excessive for the
site and would result in overdevelopment on the site and is therefore contrary to planning

Page 99



policy".

RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Principle of development

The proposal will result in more than 10% of properties on Kingsend consisting of flatted
developments with adverse implications for the character of the streetscene and
neighbour impacts, contrary to Policy DMH 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part 2) 2020.

2 NON2 Potential loss of non designated heritage asset

In the absence of a robust, thorough and well supported Heritage Assessment
advocating for the demolition of the existing dwelling, it has not been adequately
demonstrated that the demolition of the existing dwelling would not result in harm to the
Ruislip Village Conservation Area; the streetscene; and historic character of Kingsend.
The proposal is therefore contrary to Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework
2021, Policy HC1 of the London Plan 2021, Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part
1) 2012 and Policy DMHB 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part 2) 2020.

3 R13 Harm to the character of the conservation area

By virtue of its excessive scale, form, footprint, building width (including roof ridge) and
crown roof, incompatible design, net loss of mature trees and landscaping, and alteration
to the natural landform at the rear of the proposed building, the proposed dwelling would
result in a development that does not harmonise with the built form and significantly
detracts from the character of the area, failing to preserve or enhance the character and
appearance of the Ruislip Village Conservation Area, contrary to Sections 12 and 16 of
the National Planning Policy Framework 2021, Policies BE1, DMH 6, DMHB 11 and
DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan 2020, and Policy D3 of the London Plan 2021.

4 R13 Harm to neighbour amenity

By virtue of the number, location and siting of side facing windows and rear facing
balconies and because of the subterranean nature of the patio areas of the basement,
the development will pose unacceptable privacy implications for residents at
neighbouring properties to the east and west and within the development. The extension
of the building well beyond the rear building line of 34A Kingsend to the west also poses
an unacceptable level of dominance to its neighbour. Therefore, the proposal is contrary
to Policies BE1 and EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part 1) 2012 and Policies DMH 4,
DMHB 1 and DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part 2) 2020.

5 NON2 Poor internal amenity within the basement

By virtue of their subterranean location with little to no outlook, access to sunlight or
natural ventilation, large number of windowless rooms, no connectivity to the rear garden
and significant internal room and unit depth, the level of amenity afforded to the future
occupants of the two basement units is very poor and is contrary to Section 12 of the
National Planning Policy Framework 2021, Policies D6 and D10 of the London Plan
2021, Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part 1) 2012 and Policy DMH 2 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (Part 2) 2012.

6 NON2 Poor siting of cycle storage

The siting of the cycle storage shed is ill-considered on account of the significant
distances required for residents to move between the shed and the front entrance of the
building, the lack of natural surveillance, and the unnecessary removal of Tree 9. This is

Page 100



likely to make cycle usage by residents inconvenient, thus deterring use of cycles and
resulting in a less sustainable development, increased potential of theft of bicycles and
avoidable and unacceptable landscape and ecological impacts for the site. This is
contrary to Sections 9, 12 and 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2021,
Policies D11, G6, G7 and T5 of the London Plan 2021, Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan (Part 1) 2012 and Policies DMH 4, DMHB 14, DMHB 15, DMT 5 and DMEI 7 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (Part 2) 2020.

INFORMATIVES

3.1

3.2

1 171 Discussion

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive
way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from
the Local Plan Part 1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning
Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice
service. We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the
application as the principle of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and
negotiation could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

CONSIDERATIONS

Site and Locality

The application site comprises of a large plot measuring 1250m2 in area and 55m deep
on the northern side of Kingsend. On the site is a large, two-storey detached house of
faux Georgian design with hipped ends and a garage extension on its eastern side. The
frontage comprises a heavily landscaped front boundary which provides screening from
the road but with lawn and paving beyond and a mature, TPO protected Oak just beyond
the western boundary providing substantial canopy cover. The rear garden includes
numerous mature trees including a TPO protected Chestnut in the centre and boundary
planting.

Kingsend is characterised by a mixture of two-storey dwellings of a similar design and
plots, and some residential flat developments. There are also some backland cul-de-sac
developments to the east. Several buildings are of significant building width and with
crown roofs. The site falls within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area and lies
approximately 250m west of Ruislip Town Centre which is identified as a primary shopping
area.

Site Constraints

- Tree Preservation Order 507 (Oak to frontage)

- Tree Preservation Order 779 (Chestnut in rear garden)
- Ruislip Village Conservation Area

- Critical Drainage Area

- Flood Zone 1

- PTAL Rating 3

Proposed Scheme
The proposal involves the following works:

- Demolition of the existing dwelling house

- Erection of a 2.5 storey flat building with excavated basement with seven flats (one x 3
bed, five x 2-bed and one x 1-bed)

Page 101



- Stopping up of the existing access and creation of a new central access leading to car
park in the front garden with parking for seven cars

- Associated site works including removal of the Horse Chestnut tree at the rear, soft
landscaping, bin storage and cycle storage

3.3 Relevant Planning History

9894/TRE/2017/31 32 Kingsend Ruislip

To carry out tree surgery, including a crown reduction by cutting back to 25-50 mm beyond
previous pruning points, to one Oak (T3) on TPO 507

Decision: 24-02-2017 Approved
9894/TRE/2020/138 32 Kingsend Ruislip

To carry out tree surgery including, a crown reduction to previous pruning points One Oak T3 on
TPO 507 and One Horse Chestnut T1 on TPO 779.

Decision: 30-07-2020 Approved
9894/TRE/2020/46 32 Kingsend Ruislip

To carry out tree surgery, including a crown reduction to previous points with an additional 2m
reduction on the est side, to one oak, T3 on TPO 507, and to crown reduce by 3m more than
previous, to one Horse Chestnut, T1 on TPO 779.

Decision: 10-06-2020 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

There are no relevant planning applications though two TPO applications have been
granted in 2017 and 2020 for crown reduction to the Oak and Horse Chestnut trees.

4, Planning Policies and Standards
Development Plan

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon consists of:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan (2021)

Material Considerations

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2021) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Local Plan Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

Page 102



PT1.EM11
PT1.EM6
PT1.EM7 2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

(2012) Sustainable Waste Management
(
(
PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise
(
(

2012) Flood Risk Management

PT1.H1
PT1.HE1

2012) Housing Growth
2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF11 NPPF 2021 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF14 NPPF 2021 - Meeting the challenge of climate change flooding

NPPF15 NPPF 2021 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
NPPF16 NPPF 2021 - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
NPPF5 NPPF 2021 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

NPPF8 NPPF 2021 - Promoting healthy and safe communities

NPPF9 NPPF 2021 - Promoting sustainable transport

LPP D10 (2021) Basement development

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D4 (2021) Delivering good design

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards

LPP D7 (2021) Accessible housing

LPP G6 (2021) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP G7 (2021) Trees and woodlands

LPP GG4 (2021) Delivering the homes Londoners needs

LPP GG6 (2021) Increasing efficiency and resilience

LPP H1 (2021) Increasing housing supply

LPP H10 (2021) Housing size mix

LPP HC1 (2021) Heritage conservation and growth

LPP SI1 (2021) Improving air quality

LPP SI12 (2021) Flood risk management

LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

LPP SI2 (2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions

LPP T5 (2021) Cycling

LPP T6 (2021) Car parking

LPP T6.1 (2021) Residential parking

DMEI 14 Air Quality

Page 103



DMEI 2 Reducing Carbon Emissions

DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement
DMEI 9 Management of Flood Risk

DMH 2 Housing Mix

DMHB 1 Heritage Assets

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 15 Planning for Safer Places
DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMHB 4 Conservation Areas

DMHD 2 Outbuildings

DMHD 3 Basement Development
DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts
DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 1st February 2023

6. Consultations
External Consultees

A total of 62 residents, the Ruislip Residents Association and Ruislip Village Conservation Panel
were consulted between 29 December 2022 and 20 January 2023. A site notice was placed at the
site from 12 January to 2 February 2023 (though there is an allegation that it was removed prior)
and a newspaper advertisement was placed from 11 January to 1 February 2023.

Comments were received from a total of 22 properties. The submissions raised the following
concerns:

Principle of Development

- Will breach the 10% limit in the street

- Assertion that the 10% limit has been breached is incorrect, as established in 16 and 18 Kingsend
and at 28B Kingsend

- Loss of family home

- Additional flats would disrupt the character of the streetscene and change the landscape of the
Conservation Area

Officer comment: The principle of the development fails, as outlined in the body of the report. This
forms the basis of Reason for Refusal 1.

Page 104



Character of the Area

- Overdevelopment

- Over dominance with increased footprint

- Is significantly larger than the original house

- Increase in built up development on the site

- Inappropriate size, scale, bulk and design

- Ridge height is excessive and does not account for slope of the land
- Height will be inconsistent with the predominant height of the street
- Negative impact upon Conservation Area

- Loss of garden character

Officer comment: The scale of the development represents an enlargement from the existing
dwelling and when measured in terms of footprint and building width, is excessive. This forms the
basis of Reason for Refusal 3. Refer to Section 7.07.

- Basement will pose significant damage to the appearance of the garden
- Habitable basements are not a feature in the area
- Lightwells or basements should not be allowed in a Conservation Area

Officer comment: Whilst not a common feature in the Conservation Area, the front lightwells are not
opposed on character grounds when viewed from the street, given the set back. However, the
extension of the basement into the rear garden is pronounced and forms part of the basis for
Reason for Refusal 3. Refer to Section 7.07.

- Chimneys are of stark design
- Queen Anne Style building is rather random

Officer comment: The above comments are noted and design matters are discussed in Sections
7.03 and 7.07 of this report.

- Dwelling should be renovated instead

- Opportunities to restore the original features of this Soutar building would be a positive
contribution

- Incorrect assertions in the heritage statement about when the dwellings at 34 and 34A were built

Officer comment: A failure to satisfactorily argue for the demolition of the existing dwelling forms
the basis of Reason for Refusal 2. Refer to Section 7.03.

- Application makes no reference to the oldest property Orchard Cottage, at 65 Kingsend, Grade Il
listed

Officer comment: Whilst this is noted, it is not consequential to the assessment of the application.
Housing Mix and Amenity

- Lack of unit mix for larger dwellings
- Lack of family sized dwellings

Officer comment: The proposal involves a net increase of six dwellings with an acceptable unit mix
and this offsets the loss of a large family home. Refer to Section 7.01.

- Poor amenity from large numbers of obscure windows

- Poor amenity for future occupants in the basement with shading from ground floor elements (trees
and vehicles)

- Poor internal layout of the flats

Page 105



Officer comment: The basement flats are of substandard amenity and form the basis of Reason for
Refusal 5. Refer to Section 7.09.

Neighbour Amenity

- Loss of outlook

- Overshadowing and dominance

- Overlooking within the development

- Overlooking of neighbouring amenity space
- Increased noise from additional residents

- Loss of residential amenity

- Overbearing form of balconies

Officer comment: Neighbour amenity issues are noted above and visual and acoustic privacy
concerns from side facing windows and rear outdoor amenity spaces form the basis of Reason for
Refusal 4, along with concerns about dominance of the proposed building (Refer to Section 7.08).

Traffic and Parking

- Increased traffic and noise
- Lack of parking

- Lack of visitor parking

- No disabled parking

- Access hazards

Officer comment: The Council's Highways Officer has reviewed the proposal and raises no
objection on ftraffic and parking grounds. Visitor parking is unnecessary on the basis that the
provision of seven spaces is an exceedance of the minimum standards. Disabled parking and
visibility splays at the entrance can be accommodated by condition as discussed at Section 7.10.

Trees and Landscaping

- Lightwells will impact upon the Oak tree

- Horse Chestnut is classified as Category C in an attempt to have it removed

- Tree protection measures will be necessary

- Loss of trees and hedgerow resulting in substantial loss of landscape setting

- Replacement trees will take years to grow and will not replace the existing character

Officer comment: The basement and lightwells fall outside of the root protection area of the TPO
protected Oak. The classification and removal of the Horse Chestnut is not opposed by the
Council's Tree Officer, subject to further details of proposed landscaping and details of tree
protection measures for retained trees being provided. Notwithstanding the above, given the
context of the scale of the building and its location within the Conservation Area, the net loss in
landscape character is viewed as detrimental and forms part of the basis of Reason for Refusal 3.
Refer to Section 7.07 and 7.14.

Flooding and Drainage

- Drainage infrastructure is unable to cope

- Risk of flooding

- Increased flooding and drainage issues

- Basement will lead to additional flooding at the High Street

Officer comment: The proposal has been reviewed by the Council's Flooding Officer and no

objection is raised. In the event of approval, sustainable drainage measures could be conditioned
to ensure that there is no additional offsite impact arising from an increase in impermeable surface

Page 106



and increase in building footprint. The inclusion of the basement is acceptable in terms of flooding
and drainage impacts, including any impediment to subterranean flows and particularly when
accounting for other sustainable drainage measures. Refer to Section 7.17.

Basement

- No methodologies or impact survey findings are included in the Basement Impact Survey (in
relation to tree and flood risk)

- No measures to ensure no harm to the amenity of neighbours from the basement construction

- Reference to basements in the area are invalid (either original from the 1920s or not primary living
space)

- The slope of the land is downplayed and the depth of the basement will be 4.5m within 2m of the
boundary

- Incorrect assertion in the basement statement about London Clay soil (it is Lambeth Clay as
understood from HS2 works) and there being no nearby streams

- Subsidence risk from excavated basement

Officer comment: The construction of the basement is acceptable on technical grounds, as noted in
Section 7.11.

Ecology

- Ecological concerns
- Lack of an Ecological Harm Assessment (including lack of bat survey, no badger survey, foxes,
squirrels etc.)

Officer comment: The proposal is broadly acceptable on ecological grounds, as noted within this
report. However, there are concerns about tree removal and these form part of Reasons for
Refusal 3 and 6. Given the site location and the extent and siting of the building works, there are no
issues with the scope of the ecological assessment. Refer to Section 7.14.

Other

- Increased air pollution
- Loss of trees will reduce absorption of noise and air pollution

Officer comment: The building itself will have an acceptable air quality outcome. Replacement
planting of younger trees can be beneficial in absorbing more CO2 and overall, there are no
objections on these grounds. The loss of trees is concentrated at the streetfront where there are no
measurable noise issues. To the rear, tree removal would be of limited consequence to any noise
disturbance issues.

- Impact upon property values

- Badly drawn plans

- Original conveyance contained restrictive covenants to protect from over development
- Inconsistencies in the documents (actual inconsistencies not specified)

Officer comment: The plans and documentation are sufficient for the purposes of the assessment.
Any perceived inconsistency is viewed as a difference of opinion rather than a factual inaccuracy.
Covenants do not form part of the planning assessment and property values are not a material
consideration.

Internal Consultees
Conservation Officer

No comments received at the time of writing the report, any response will be reported in the

Page 107



addendum.
Highways Officer

No objection in relation to car, cycle and EV charging parking provision, traffic generation, access
and turning arrangements, construction measures and refuse collection. Conditions are required in
relation to delivery of EV charging, visibility splays and a Construction Management Plan. The new
crossing and extinguishment of the old crossover would need to be to an appropriate Council
standard executed under S184 of the Highways Act 1980.

Tree Officer

No objection to the removal of the Chestnut. Appropriate conditions relating to hard and soft
landscaping and tree protection would be required.

Flooding Officer

No objection. In response to neighbour submissions, evidence shows standing water in low areas
in the garden, consistent with heavy rain. No reports of internal property flooding or inundation of
the rear garden have been made.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development
Housing Provision

Policy NPPF1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) requires a
proactive approach to sustainable development. Planning applications that accord with the
policies in the Hillingdon Local Plan will be approved without delay, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Policy H1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) addresses annual housing growth of
425 dwellings per year, where this can be achieved, in accordance with other Local Plan
policies. The proposal involves the demolition of a four bedroom or family sized dwelling
and its replacement with seven flats or a total of 13 bedrooms. This is a net increase in
bedrooms or residential accommodation which is supported in principle. However, the
Council is currently able to demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites and
the 'tilted balance' as set out in paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF (2021) is not engaged and
the assessment requires a consideration of the benefits against harm as part of the wider
planning balance.

Flat Development

Paragraph 69 of the NPPF states that small and medium sized sites can make an
important contribution to meeting the housing requirement and are often built out relatively
quickly. Paragraph 119 seeks effective use of land in meeting the need for homes.
However, this is subject to a consideration against Policy DMH 4 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2 (2020), which permits the redevelopment of dwellings into flats where no more
than 10% of the street has been redeveloped into flats.

The applicant has asserted that the subject application would result in six of 71 properties
as flat buildings, or 8.45%. Kingsend is 600m in length between the intersections with
Ickenham Road in the west and High Street in the east. Excluding corner buildings not
having a primary frontage to Kingsend, there are 30 properties on the northern side and
38 properties on the southern side or a total of 68 properties.

Page 108



The Council's own assessment concludes that properties at 3, 16 and 18 (two distinct flat
buildings), 28, 30, 36, 41 and 45 are flat buildings. This equates to eight properties or
12%. When accounting for the subject application, this increases to 13%.

Paragraph 4.11 of the Local Plan specifies that flatted development "must seek to
enhance the local character of the area. In recent years, large concentrations of flats have
resulted in a range of problems, including increased on-street parking and resultant
congestion on roads, the loss of front gardens, reductions in privacy, significant changes
to the street scene, and loss of family accommodation.”

There is a departure with Policy DMH 4 of the Local Plan and to varying degrees, the
proposed development brings about some of the above impacts (neighbour and
streetscape impacts), as outlined below. Accordingly, the principle of the development
fails on this basis and this forms Reason for Refusal 1.

Loss of Existing Dwelling/Unit Mix

Strategic Objective 7 (SO7) of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) aims to address
housing needs in Hillingdon. The type of dwellings should reflect housing needs identified
in the borough, particularly the need to provide more family homes with adequate garden
space.

The proposal involves the loss of a family sized dwelling which is broadly contrary to SO7.
However, it must be weighed against Policy H10 of the London Plan (2021) and Policy
DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020), which requires a mix of housing units of
different sizes in schemes of residential development to reflect the Council's latest
information on housing need. The Council's current need indicates a substantial borough-
wide requirement for larger affordable and private market units, particularly three bedroom
properties.

The proposal involves one x 3-bed flat (14%), five x 2 bed flats (72%) and one x 1 bed flat
(14%). With only one dwelling considered as a family sized dwelling, the loss of the
existing family unit is compensated for, however the proposal does not contribute to
increasing the stock of family sized dwellings in the Borough.

Notwithstanding, Policy H10 seeks a higher proportion of one and two bed units closer to
a town centre or station or with higher public transport access and connectivity, as well as
optimising housing potential on sites and delivering mixed and inclusive neighbourhoods.

The site exhibits a public transport accessibility level (PTAL) of 3 which is considered as
moderate. There is good access to local facilities and services on Ruislip High Street and
the site is 450m walking distance from Ruislip Underground Station. Accordingly, there is
justification for redevelopment of the site and for a higher proportion of smaller dwellings.
Further, a higher proportion of smaller 1 and 2 bed units have been approved at other flat
buildings on Kingsend such as 16-18 Kingsend (at appeal APP/R5510/A/08/2078969).
That application was not refused on unit mix grounds and the appeal did not focus on this
issue.

The absence of larger dwellings is unfortunate but given the modest scale of the
development and the site location, it is not unacceptable. The predominant character of
the area is of larger detached dwellings and this development would provide further
diversity to the mix of development in the area. On this basis, no objection is raised in
respect of housing mix.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Page 109



7.03

Policies D1, D3 and GG2 of the London Plan aim to make the best use of land and
proactively intensify the use of land to support additional homes though a design-led
approach that optimises the capacity of sites. Higher density developments should
generally be in locations that are well connected to jobs, services, infrastructure and
amenities by public transport, walking and cycling. This should be interpreted in the
context of Policy H2 of the London Plan (2021) which supports well-designed new homes
on small sites below 0.25 hectares in size. Policy DMHB 17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 (2020) specifies a density of 50-110 units or 150-330 rooms per hectare.

The proposed density is 56 units or 112 rooms per hectare. Taking account of the site
constraints, including protected trees and a need to accord with the pattern of
development, the proposal is broadly within the scope of Policy DMHB 17. However,
numerical densities are more appropriate to larger sites and what is of greater significance
is local context. The key consideration is whether the development would integrate with
the character of the area, and respect residential amenity considerations. This is
discussed below.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area and the Council has a duty to pay
special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of the Conservation Area, including its setting (Section 72 of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990). Paragraphs 199-202 of the NPPF
requires consideration of the harm to the significance of the Conservation Area.

Policy DMHB 4 of the Local Plan Part 2 (2020) seeks to ensure that development within a
Conservation Area preserves or enhances the character or appearance of the area,
including though high quality design and resisting the loss of buildings and features. Policy
HC1 of the London Plan (2021) seeks to conserve significance, by being sympathetic to
the assets' significance and appreciation within their surroundings.

Demolition of the existing dwelling

The plot relates to the original layout of the area when it was first developed for housing.
The property is located in the residential character area of the Conservation Area which
predominantly comprises of early to mid-20th century houses. The development of the
area as 'Metroland' was influenced by the expansion of London and the railway.
Predominantly, properties have an overarching Arts and Crafts style and the area was
designed as a typical garden suburb. Individual dwellings were set on individual plots with
ample space around the building, including a notable set back from the road. The verdant
appearance of the street scene has matured over the 20th century contributing to the
area's garden suburb character.

The dwelling at 32 Kingsend Road is a simply detailed detached dwelling constructed of
red brick with a substantial hipped roof finished in plain clay tiles. There are a number of
alterations and additions, including rather crude modern windows, a flat porch canopy held
up by columns and a large flat roof two storey rear addition. These alterations were
carried out prior to the designation of this part of the Ruislip Village Conservation Area.

The application is accompanied by a Heritage Statement (Mola, December 2022) but it
does not include a structural survey. It instead argues that the demolition of the existing
building will have no impact on the significance of the Conservation Area as the building
was heavily altered in the 1960s and 1970s, thus losing its original design. This is not
agreed as appropriate justification.

Neighbour objection instead suggests that there is justification for its retention and

Page 110



7.04

7.05

7.07

renovation because of the significance of the original architect. Whilst Officers do not side
with this statement, in the absence of such details, Officers are not satisfied that the
demolition of the building is justified, even in its altered form. This forms Reason for
Refusal 2.

Design of replacement building

The design of the proposed development combines a predominantly Queen Anne revival
style with a Neo-Georgian style with a number of conflicting features. The building aims to
reference the Locally Listed buildings at 16 and 18 Kingsend (non-designated heritage
assets) which are designed in a Queen Anne revival style relating to the garden suburb
aesthetic of the Conservation Area. The design approach is of concern. The building has
the massing and footprint of the contemporary flatted developments next door but the
design and detailing conflicts with this.

The design includes two side, two rear and two front dormers. Whilst front facing dormers
are not an uncommon feature within the street scene, side dormers are less common and
are intrusive in this case, as would be the large box dormer to the rear, which is overly
large. The dormer would need to be reduced in size and/or broken up into two separate
dormers as depicted similar to the front elevation. This all forms part of the basis of
Reason for Refusal 3, which refers to impacts upon the character of the area. The crown
roof and overall scale and bulk are also of concern, resulting in a monolithic building,
which is further discussed at Section 7.07 of this report.

The design and proportions of the windows are consistent, understated and sympathetic
to the design intent. Materials include clay roof tiles, inset feature brickwork and double
and triple glazed timber framed windows and doors. The reveals around the windows are
detailed as segmental brick arches in a contrasting brick tone. The string course detail
between the ground and first floors and brick quoin detailing to the corners is broadly
consistent with that at 16-18 Kingsend. Whilst, the materials are considered to be
traditional and high-quality and reflective of the Conservation Area, there are concerns
overall regarding the incompatible design and impact on the character and appearance of
the Conservation Area as described above and in Reason for Refusal 3.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) seeks a quality of design that
enhances and contributes to the area in terms of form, scale and materials, is appropriate
to the identity and context of the townscape and would improve the quality of the public
realm and respect local character.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) states that new development
will be required to be designed to the highest standards and incorporate principles of good
design, including harmony in consideration of the height of surrounding structures. Policy
DMHB 12 of the same plan requires integration with the surrounding area and Policy
DMHD 1 states that large crown roofs on detached houses will not be supported. It relates
to alterations and extensions to residential dwellings though offers relevance for
replacement buildings.

Built form

Page 111



Inclusive of the attached garage, the existing dwelling has a footprint of 220m2, an area of
377m2 and a volume of approximately 1145m3. The replacement building will have a
footprint of 305m2, an area of 868m2 (including basement floorspace), and an above
ground volume of about 1750m3. This represents an increase in above ground built form
of about 40-50%. Additionally, the building width is increasing from 16.2m (excluding the
garage) to 17.6m (9% increase). The height is unchanged at 9.2m though the eaves are
being raised by 1.2m and the roof includes a 70m2 crown roof. There is a secondary hip
dominating the centre of the front elevation with a lower ridge of 8.5m.

It is therefore apparent that much of the increase in building bulk is at the rear of the
building or within the roofspace. Of note, 305m2 of the area is below ground and 137m2 is
within the roofspace, with dormers to three roof planes.

The predominant character of the area is of detached dwellings though there are flat
buildings in the area. The two properties to the east have substantial footprints (280-
340m2) with crown roofs (at least 110m2). There is also evidence of crown roofs
elsewhere in Kingsend Road but at about 15% of properties, it is not nearly the prevailing
character. The ridge width is increasing from 8m to 11.7m and it is this aspect that
contributes most notably to additional bulk. Further, the flat buildings that exist are not
considered examples of good design that should be replicated elsewhere.

An increase in built form on the site would likely be acceptable given the larger plot size
and width. However, there is increased sensitivity to the location within the Conservation
Area. New buildings should ideally be able to incorporate traditional, fully hipped roof
forms as part of the design. Crown roof elements are usually a sign that the development
is overly large and this exacerbates the bulky and boxy appearance of the development.
There is also a preference to avoid replicating examples of large crown roofs. The three
most apparent examples of crown roofs are in the immediate vicinity. 28 Kingsend
(5740/APP/2008/1214) and 30 Kingsend (46299/APP/2006/2165) are alongside and 41
Kingsend (2792/APP/2006/2719) is diagonally opposite. All three permissions are from at
least fifteen years ago when there was less importance on consideration of crown roofs.
In the case of the two latter examples, the dual gable design with an indented or setback
element between the two gables allows for building separation and a break in the building
width, creating the impression of two buildings and minimising the impression of the crown
roofs. This is not employed in the subject application.

The scale and bulk of the development would have a significant presence from public
views. The depth of the built form and crown roof would be significantly evident when
viewed from the west, due to the positioning of the neighbouring flatted block. The rear
elevation would also be visible, particularly the upper floors, from the public right of way
along the western site boundary. The increase in built form is viewed as excessive and
causes harm to the area and the Conservation Area and this is outlined in Reason for
Refusal 3.

Siting

The buildings to the west and east are about 11m and 16m from the front boundary
respectively. The proposed building is setback 15.3m from the front boundary which is
about 1m behind the existing alignment. The modified alignment is broadly consistent with
the building line and there is no adverse disruption in the street.

The building line at the rear extends about 8m beyond the established building line to the

west with the hole associated with the excavated basement extending a further 6m. This
would ordinarily pose a degree of concern on the grounds that there would be disruption

Page 112



to the green corridor that is created by the back to back rear gardens. However, the depth
of the plot is greater than those to the west and much more comparable to the subdivision
pattern of properties to the east. When viewed in the context of development to the east,
there is indeed consistency in the rear building line. Moreover, at 25m deep, the total
depth of the rear garden is greater than the gardens of the properties to the west in total
depth and comparable as a proportion of the overall plot depth.

Side boundary setbacks are at least 2m, which allows for adequate and consistent
building separation in this part of the Conservation Area.

For these reasons, no objection is raised in respect of the siting of the building, although
there are concerns regarding scale and excavation as discussed above and below.

Basement

Policy DMHD 3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) state that basements may be
acceptable, subject to consideration of any impact upon the built and natural environment,
amongst other factors. They are not permitted in Conservation Areas where their
introduction would harm the special architectural or historic character of the area.

The proposal includes a basement with 1070m3 of building volume below ground level
(not included in the volume calculation above) and 1180m3 of soil being removed from the
site when accounting for lightwells at the front and rear.

Basements are not a feature within the Conservation Area though the applicant has cited
recent examples at 28 Ickenham Road and 15 King Edwards Road. The officer report for
the latter application notes that the basements "are mainly directly below the buildings
with small pavement lit areas at the rear. As such, they will not have any impact on the
townscape of the Conservation Area or street scene and are considered acceptable."

The proposed basement has a footprint that is 60% larger than the ground floor footprint.
There are two small lightwells at the front, but the bulk of the incursion outside of the
ground floor footprint is at the rear and totals 130m2. From the street, the basement
would not be readily apparent, primarily because it is setback about 14m from the front
boundary. Whilst the extension at the rear is not visible from the road, it is still visible from
neighbouring properties. The resulting change to the natural landform is sizeable and
stark. Crudely put, it appears as a large hole in the ground and is not supported on this
basis and forms Reason for Refusal 3.

It is noted that there were no such extensions outside of the footprint in the examples
cited by the applicant because they were not primary living spaces and there was no need
to extend beyond the building line to allow for natural light, ventilation and outlook such is
required in this case for the two lower ground floor units.

Landscape character

The proposal includes the relocation of the access drive from the eastern corner to the
centre of the plot. This will require the removal of some hedgerow and T1 (Laburnum) to
the front boundary. Even if the existing access drive were used instead, some vegetation
removal would have been inevitable for visibility reasons given the increased use. It is also
apparent that the subject property probably exhibits the most established landscape
character on both sides of Kingsend, aided in part by the canopy of the TPO protected
Oak. On that basis and when noting the surrounding context, the loss of some
landscaping at the front of the site would not be opposed, though it would need to be well

Page 113



7.08

considered and subject to suitable replacement planting.

The TPO protected Oak at the front will be retained but the TPO protected Horse
Chestnut at the rear is proposed for removal. It is noted that the Tree Officer is not
opposed to its removal on arboricultural grounds. However, the tree is still a visible feature
in the landscape (including from the public footpath to the side) and because of its siting
within the Conservation Area the landscape character would be adversely affected,
particularly where replacement planting would take several years to provide similar cover.
Whilst not a reason for refusal on its own, when considered collectively alongside other
factors, including the scale of the building, it forms part of Reason for Refusal 3 for its
impact in the Conservation Area.

Parking and ancillary items

A parking area with seven parking bays is proposed at the front of the site. To
accommodate this, the hard surfacing is increasing from 120m2 to 185m2, with
encroachments into the root protection area of the TPO protected tree. A bin store is to be
sited in the south eastern corner adjacent to a new pedestrian entrance. Given the
predominance of properties with large parking areas forward of the building in the street
and it has been demonstrated that the Oak can be protected, the marginal increase in
hardstanding and the provision of the bin store are acceptable, subject to details of the
latter by condition.

Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHD 1 and DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) seek to ensure a
satisfactory relationship with adjacent dwellings and no unacceptable loss of outlook,
amenity, daylight and sunlight to neighbouring occupiers.

An 11 unit flat building (Elthone Court) adjoins to the east though it is separated by an
access path linking Kingsend and Ickenham Road. A single detached two storey dwelling
(34A Kingsend) adjoins to the west. To the rear is 27 Ickenham Road though there is 25m
separation distance to the common boundary and no residential amenity issues are
evident to that property.

Overlooking

The proposal includes generously and consistently proportioned windows and doors to all
four elevations with rear facing balconies to the first and second floors. To the front, the
outlook will be over the front parking area and the street such that no objection is raised.
To the rear elevation, the outlook from the windows will be over the rear garden with
ample distance to the rear boundary. Whilst diagonal sightlines are possible, they are not
uncommon in a residential setting and even with the increased density, not unreasonable.
However, the sightlines are more pronounced from the balconies. Whilst privacy
screening is included, the screens lower towards the rear, thereby not proving wholly
effective against sideways overlooking across the boundary.

Looking to the west, the boundary treatment along the common boundary with 34A
Kingsend is of landscaping and a chain link fence, and there is openness that allows for
some mutual overlooking between the two properties. The proposed building will extend
significantly beyond the rear building line of the neighbouring property. There are five
ground floor windows proposed (which are non habitable/obscure glazed along with a
kitchen and living room) and four first floor windows (three obscure glazed, including to a
kitchen and a separate living room). Where proposed to be fitted with obscure glazing,
this would need to be conditioned, including that they are fixed.

Page 114



Having regard to the lack of solid screening on the boundary, the number and proportions
of windows, the direct outlook from the living room windows at the rear of the property and
lack of effective privacy screening, the proposal would result in an unacceptable level of
overlooking towards the rear garden and back towards the rear elevation and patio area of
34A Kingsend. Because of the sheer number of windows, some of this impact would be a
perception of overlooking that would not be suitably resolved through obscure glazing.

To the east, the proposed development broadly aligns with the rear building line of
Elthone Court and there are no habitable windows in the corresponding elevation of its
neighbour. The boundary is separated by the public footpath, allowing for separation
distance and some screening. The proposal includes the same number, proportion and
positioning of windows as proposed on the western elevation (plus 2 no. side facing
dormers at roof level). Non habitable spaces will be obscure glazed (and fixed by
condition) and a ground floor bedroom window would look onto the boundary fence. At
first floor level, there are opportunities for overlooking from the living room window and
from the rear balconies towards the rear garden, the extent of which is unreasonable.

Broadly, where the neighbouring property was designed with sufficient internal amenity
without compromising neighbour amenity through inappropriate siting of side facing
habitable windows, the subject application includes multiple side facing windows and four
balconies. The concerns of overlooking to both adjoining properties form the basis of
Reason for Refusal 4.

Within the development itself, there is a poor relationship between the ground floor
amenity space and the patio area of the lower ground floor units. Occupants on the
ground floor would be able to look immediately downwards into the lower ground floor
area, thereby compromising privacy. Whilst this would be anticipated in most flatted
settings, the issue is heightened here because the subterranean nature of the basement
units would make the outdoor patio of these units more important to the occupant's
wellbeing. it is also feasible that some design treatments could ameliorate this impact
though none have been proposed and on this basis, it is unacceptable.

Loss of light and dominance

To the west, the proposed building will be setback 2.3m from the boundary and 3.7m from
the corresponding elevation of 34A Kingsend. Whilst the building will extend about 6m
beyond the rear elevation of 34A Kingsend, the indented nature of the building at the rear
and the adequate separation distance to the boundary is such that there is insufficient
justification to oppose the development on the grounds of loss of light. A 45 degree line
plan has been provided and compliance is achieved. That said, the depth into the plot
would be extensive and result in a harmful sense of enclosure and overbearing impact to
their main rear garden and amenity spaces. This forms part of Reason for Refusal 4.

To the east, there is 7Tm separation distance because of the public footpath separating
both properties. There is also consistency in the building lines such that there are no
issues of loss of light or dominance. There is easy compliance with the 45 degree line.

Noise disturbance

The density of the development is not excessive and relative to its plot, appropriate in the
residential context. Accordingly, the creation of seven units is unlikely to lead to an
unreasonable level of noise disturbance across the property boundaries. The exception is
that the patio area at the rear of the basement units has the potential to create an echoing
effect through use of the patio or from the units when the rear doors are opened. This has

Page 115



7.09

the potential to impact the amenity of the other occupants of the development and to a
lesser extent, on neighbouring properties. This forms part of the Reason for Refusal 4.
Living conditions for future occupiers

Policy DMHB 16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) requires a minimum internal
space standard based on occupancy and number of floors as follows:

- The two basement flats (2 bedroom, 4 person) require a minimum of 70m2. At 124m2,
compliance is achieved.

- The left side ground floor flat (2 bedroom, 3 person) requires 61m2. At 89m2,
compliance is achieved.

- The right-side ground floor flat (3 bedroom, 4 person) requires 74m2. At 89m2,
compliance is achieved.

- The first floor flats (2 bedroom, 4 person) require 70m2. At 84m2, compliance is
achieved.

- The loft flat (1 bedroom, 2 person) requires 50m2. At 125m2 (measured to where it is
above 1.5m floor to ceiling height), compliance is achieved.

All of the units meet the minimum standards. There is also compliance with bedroom sizes
(single and double) and bedroom widths. There is provision for storage (utility rooms)
within the flats which is acceptable. There is adequate living space and the common
access areas are generously sized.

Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) requires a minimum outdoor
amenity space of 20-30m2 for the proposed flats. The lower ground and ground floor flats
have patio areas measuring 25m2 and 30m2 respectively. The first floor flats have rear
balconies measuring 6m2 and with a depth of 1.5m. The loft flat has a small 2.8m x 1m
rear balcony.

Whilst there are departures with the standards for the first floor and loft flats, the overall
amenity is not adversely affected because of shared access to the rear garden which
extends to about 500m2 (or 20m2/resident). Access is somewhat convoluted, particularly
where the basement and ground floor units open onto the rear garden but no direct
access is provided. Nonetheless, because of its spacious and well landscaped nature, no
objection is raised. Further, the units are also all in excess of the minimum internal space
standards, reducing reliance upon outdoor amenity space. On this basis, the provision of
amenity space for each of the units is acceptable.

Policy D6 of the London Plan aims for dual aspect dwellings with a design that provides
sufficient daylight and sunlight that is appropriate for its context. All of the units have three
external elevations with good access to sunlight, light, ventilation and outlook with the
exception of the two basement flats which are wholly below ground level. The streetside
bedrooms have a 900mm deep lightwell, which is very minimal. The lounge room and
bedroom 1 open onto a 3.6m deep patio area though it is north facing with no access to
sunlight and without any connectivity to the rear garden. It is also overlooked by the units
above. Internally, there is 9.5m depth between the rear elevation and the rear wall of the
kitchen, further limiting the negligible amount of available natural light. Overall, there are
at least ten non habitable rooms across both dwellings and communal spaces that would
require some form of mechanical ventilation because of no external wall above ground.

The result is a wholly subterranean development with no access to sunlight aside from
potential glimpses to the front lightwells. Even then, they would be partly screened by
parked vehicles in the car park and the Oak tree. There is no outlook whatsoever and very
little cross ventilation. The overall quality of amenity afforded to future occupants is very
poor and would not be envisaged in a suburban context. It forms Reason for Refusal 5.

Page 116



7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety
Traffic impact

Policy DMT 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) requires that development be
sustainably located, with access to public transport, walking, cycling, services and
facilities, with accessible and convenient access through the site, adequate servicing and
delivery and no adverse transport, air or noise impacts.

The address exhibits a public transport accessibility level (PTAL) of 3 which is moderate
but still heightens dependency on the ownership and use of private motor transport.

The proposal will increase potential traffic generation when measured against the existing
residential dwelling. However, the Council's Highways Officer advises that peak period
traffic movement into and out of the site would not be expected to rise above two to three
additional vehicle movements during the most crucial and sensitive peak morning and late
afternoon/early evening traffic periods. Such potential uplift is marginal in generation
terms and can be absorbed within the local road network without notable detriment to
traffic congestion and road safety.

Parking
- Car parking

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) requires accordance with the
parking standards unless it can be demonstrated that a deviation from the standard would
not result in a deleterious impact on the surrounding road network. For a development of
seven flats, the proposal would require an on-plot provision of 7-10 spaces. Policy T6.1 of
the London Plan seeks compliance with the relevant parking standards, in this case being
5.5 spaces (maximum).

The proposal includes a car park with seven spaces at the front of the property, with one
space per unit. No visitor parking is proposed. Seven spaces falls broadly half way
between each standard and thus is considered acceptable and on that basis, visitor
parking is deemed unnecessary.

- Cycle parking

Policy DMT 6 of the Local Plan and Policy T5 of the London Plan (2021) require 1-1.5
cycle spaces for smaller (1 and 2 bed) dwellings and two spaces for larger (3+ bed)
dwellings. This equates to 11 spaces.

A storage shed is located at the rear of the property. As the quantum has been exceeded,
no objection is raised. The applicant has indicated that the location of the shed was
dictated by streetscape implications. However, in doing so, residents are required to
proceed to the rear of the property and back to the front entrance each time a bike is used
- a distance of more than 100m. This is likely to prove inconvenient for residents and lead
to unfavourable storage or reduced usage. A more favourable design outcome would be
for the integration of the storage in the building itself. This is achievable given the ample
space within the basement and the exceedance of the minimum floorspace standards for
all of the units. Regardless, the issue forms Reason for Refusal 6.

- EV charging

Policy T6.1 of the London Plan requires that 20% of spaces should have active charging

Page 117



7.1

facilities, with passive provision for all remaining spaces. The applicant has indicated that
all seven spaces would be designated as active (ready to use) provisions to future proof
for anticipated demand which demonstrates conformity to the requirement.

- Disabled parking

Policy T6.1 of the London Plan (2021) and Appendix C(9) of the Local Plan require
disabled persons parking for new residential developments. No disabled parking has been
shown but it could be conditioned without detriment to the design or character of the area
such that no objection is raised.

Access

Policy DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) requires safe and efficient
vehicular access...,safe and convenient access for cyclists and pedestrians and
management of existing and future traffic flows and mitigation, where necessary. Policy
T4 of the London Plan (2021) also states that development proposals should not increase
road danger. Section 4.7.1 of the Hilingdon Domestic Vehicle Footway Crossover Policy
requires pedestrian visibility which states that obstructions be kept to a maximum height of
0.6m.

The existing vehicular access is to be relocated to a centralised position via new
carriageway crossing. The roadway is covered extensively by waiting restrictions
operational from 8am to 6.30pm - Monday to Saturday. There is no objection to the new
centralised carriageway and internal parking layout which conforms to best practice and
allows forward movement when exiting. It is therefore welcomed by the Council's
Highways Officer. There would need to be conformity with the Council's Domestic Vehicle
Footway Crossover Policy. As no detail has been submitted, it would be subject to
condition and the extinguishment of the old crossover.

As Kingsend is a major thoroughfare, visibility sightline requirements for vehicles and
pedestrians would need to be demonstrated. No such details have been submitted though
the Highways Officer has taken the view that these are achievable and raises no
objection, subject to the height of walling on either side of the new opening should not
exceed 0.6m in any post consent details to be submitted.

Policy DMT 5 and DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) require safe, direct
and inclusive access for pedestrians and cyclists, including enhancement of routes and a
high-quality public realm. A separate pedestrian entrance has been provided, which is
supportive of the above. It would lead onto the communal car park but with low traffic
movements, no objection is raised.

Construction

A detailed Construction Management Plan would be required (in the event of approval)
given the scale of the development with reference to construction related routing,
frequency and construction related parking arrangements, wheel washing, thereby
avoiding/minimising potential detriment to the surrounding public realm during the build
programme.

Urban design, access and security

Safer by Design

Paragraph 92 of the NPPF and Policy DMHB 15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020)
require healthy, inclusive and safe places so that crime and disorder, and the fear of

Page 118



7.12

crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion. The proposal exhibits
relatively positive design outcomes. Window openings provide good surveillance of the
street, the parking court and the public footpath along the western boundary. However,
the siting of the cycle store raises potential for theft given it is more than 25m from the
nearest habitable window and shaded by tree canopies. This issue is consolidated in
Reason for Refusal 6.

Basement

Policy D10 of the London Plan (2021) and Policy DMHD 3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
Part 2 (2020) refer to the specific considerations of basements, including consideration of
flooding or ground instability (as well as trees and landscaping, archaeological remains).
The proposal includes a basement of substantial proportions including a depth of 3.6m
and extending well beyond the building footprint. The Council will not permit basement
schemes which include habitable rooms and other sensitive uses in areas prone to
flooding.

A Basement Impact Assessment (Earth Environmental and Geotechnical, dated March
2022) was submitted with the application. It includes a Geotechnical Risk Assessment,
Contamination Risk Assessment and Flooding Considerations.

The findings refer to London Clay (and associated risks of settlement and heave), an
unproductive aquifer, a lack of flooding risk of any nature and a lack of any identified
contamination and a lack of significant geotechnical risks. Recommendations include
further ground investigations (which would be required as part of any future planning
condition) and phased excavation. Overall, there are no perceived risks to the excavation
process associated with the constriction of the basement and there should be no technical
reason to oppose it.

Resident submissions have queried the accuracy of the Basement Impact Statement,
including that the site is founded on Lambeth Clay not London Clay), it slopes more than
is implied, that there is an underground stream causing surface flooding, that there is
differential depth change in close proximity, the extent of hard surfacing is increasing
significantly and that the flood risk is more apparent than is implied. There is also concern
raised about the depth of the excavation within 2m of the boundary and the potential for
harm from the basement construction and the lack of any methodology.

The above concerns are noted but do not unduly affect the conclusions of the Basement
Impact Assessment. Flooding implications have been reviewed by the Council's Flooding
Officer and no objection raised. There is a gentle slope from east to west across the site
and despite the depth and length of the basement, there is no reason for the Council to
conclude that subsurface flows would be unduly affected. A 2m setback from the property
boundaries, even when accounting for piling and foundations is adequate to ensure
protection of neighbouring properties during the construction phase, though this would be
subject to full construction details prior to commencement. The remaining issues raised
are incidental and inconsequential to the overall conclusion that the basement can be
accommodated from a technical perspective.

Disabled access

Policy D7 of the London Plan (2021) requires all new housing, as a minimum standard, to
be designed and constructed as accessible and adaptable in accordance with M4(2) as
set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2015 edition).

A passenger lift serves each floor of the building and the open plan layout and adequate
size and circulation space of the main bedrooms and bathrooms and the width of

Page 119



7.13

7.14

doorways and hallways is such that all of the units would be fully accessible. Level access
is not shown between the car park and the ground floor lobby but like the provision of
disabled parking, this could be achieved without any impediment to the design and could
be conditioned. On this basis, no objection is raised.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The proposal is below the threshold for affordable housing.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Trees and Landscaping

Policy G5 of the London Plan (2021) seeks to integrate green infrastructure to contribute
to urban greening and Policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) requires
the retention and enhancement of existing landscaping, trees, biodiversity or other natural
features, landscaping that supports and enhances biodiversity and amenity and replanting
of new trees.

The site lies within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area, a designation which protects
trees. There are also two TPOs affecting specific trees on the site. An oak in the front
garden (on the boundary of 34A) is T3 on the schedule of TPO 507. A Horse chestnut in
the back garden is covered by TPO 779.

The application is supported by an Arboricultural Report (GHA Trees, December 2022)
which indicates the removal of six trees and one hedge. All of the trees to be removed
have been given either a C or U category grading in accordance with BS 5837. There is
resident objection on the classification of trees but this is not opposed by the Council's
Tree Officer.

Removal includes the Horse Chestnut in the rear garden (T11) which is TPO protected.
The report offers the following explanation for its removal:

"This tree has been the subject unsympathetic past management as it has been
previously crown reduced and also pollarded at 7m, where there is significant decay
present at the old pruning wounds. The tree is also suffering from leaf blotch, leaf miner
and bacterial canker with black exudates at the base of the tree. Whilst prominent in the
rear garden, this tree is of limited amenity in the wider context as it is barely visible from
Kingsend. The loss of this tree (and the other trees listed in 6.1) will be compensated for
by significant new planting on the northern and eastern boundary as noted below."

The tree has been subject to TPO approved crown lifting in 2017 and 2020 and the
Council's Tree Officer does not oppose its removal (as noted previously), with agreement
that the tree is in decline. Any approval would be subject to replacement planting.

Three of the trees to be removed are on the street boundary. Whilst supported by the
Council's Tree Officer, these trees add significant quality to the character of the
Conservation Area and replacement planting of quality and maturity at the time of planting
would be paramount.

A 9m high Ash (T6) is also proposed for removal even though it appears to fall outside of
the western property boundary. There appears some dispute on this matter between the
relevant parties. Even if it is not removed, the proposed basement extends significantly
into the 7m root protection area. Regardless, the Council's Tree Officer does not oppose
its removal.

Of the trees to be retained, the TPO protected Oak at the front will come under some
pressure from the car park extension with an incursion of about 5m into the root protection

Page 120



area. However, the tree officer is content with this arrangement, subject to an
arboricultural method statement for the construction of driveway.

The cycle store at the rear of the site appears to require the removal of a tree specified for
retention (T9 - 12m high Larch). This appears unnecessary and easily avoidable and is
viewed as unacceptable on landscape grounds. On this basis, it forms part of Reason for
Refusal 6.

Broadly, there will be an immediate and apparent net loss of landscape character within
the front and rear gardens and this will have consequences for the setting of the
Conservation Area. Despite the Tree Officer raising no objection and whilst replacement
planting will, in time, lead to a more managed outcome, there will be a clear and apparent
loss of landscape character within the Conservation Area that when considered alongside
a net increase in bulk and scale, will contribute to a degradation of the quality of the
Conservation Area and this forms Reason for Refusal 3.

Ecology

Section 15 of the NPPF and Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) aim
for the retention of existing features of biodiversity or geological value within the site and
enhancement and net gain of biodiversity within a proposed development. Policy DMEI 7
requires appropriate surveys and assessments to demonstrate that the proposed
development will not have unacceptable effects.

The application was supported by a Bat Survey (Ecoline, September 2022), guided by a
building survey and a follow up emergence survey. The external inspection of the building
revealed a network of cracks within the brickwork and missing roof tiles. The building is
regarded as having low suitability to support bats and that if bats were to occur, they are
likely to be solitary individuals roosting in an opportunistic fashion. The evening
emergence survey recorded foraging bats but no bats emerged from the building and
none were recorded in close proximity to the building.

The surrounding habitat includes connected gardens, dense shrub planting and mature
trees which are likely to attract foraging bats if present within the area. However, this
habitat is generally quite isolated with no connectivity to the wider landscape. The
suitability is noted as low to moderate.

The report concludes that demolition of the building would be acceptable from an ecology
perspective and this conclusion is not opposed. The report also states that it is possible
that tree losses would reduce the amount of foraging habitat present within the area but if
the area is only supporting a small number of bats, it is unlikely that such losses would
have a dramatic impact on foraging opportunities overall. Removal of trees would need to
be outside of season.

Paragraph 174 of the NPPF seeks biodiversity net gain (BNG) within proposals and the
bat report suggests that to achieve a 10% BNG, ten bat boxes should be installed in
suitable locations within woodland habitat. There is no actual net gain metric in support of
this statement and it appears that the statement is intended for off site delivery.
Nonetheless, the general premise is accepted. The scope of the application and the
possibility for biodiversity enhancements (such as woodpiles, wildlife friendly fencing and
bird and bat boxes) within the site are such that the proposal would result in a satisfactory
ecological outcome.

Neighbour objections have extended to concerns about the lack of a wider ecology report,

Page 121



715

7.16

717

including concerns about badgers. The applicant has submitted a badger survey. Not
unexpectedly for a suburban setting where the replacement building will be built mostly
within the existing footprint, there were no identifiable setts and no issue is raised. Given
the site location and scope of the proposal, other protected species are unlikely to be
affected.

Sustainable waste management

Refuse collection will continue via the roadway on Kingsend. The bin storage positioning
should allow for conformity with the accepted distance collection standards of 10m from
the point of collection on the public highway and 30m from each flat. As a bin storage area
is shown on the site frontage, the above parameters are satisfied and the Council's
Highways Officer raises no objection. Given streetscape implications, final design details
would be subject to condition but its location is not unreasonable on character grounds.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policies BE1 and DMEI 2 of the Local Plan (Part 1 and Part 2 respectively) seek to
achieve reductions in carbon dioxide emissions through energy efficient design and
effective use of low and zero carbon technologies, including the use of SUDS, water
efficiency, lifetime homes and sustainable design and construction techniques to increase
the re-use and recycling of construction, demolition and excavation waste and reduce the
amount disposed to landfill.

Section 5.3 of the Design and Access Statement outlines the sustainability credentials of
the scheme. This includes insulation to Code 5, centralised heating and underfloor
heating, EV charging within all parking spaces, PV solar panels, rainwater storage, SuDS
measures and recycling of building materials. Whilst much of the measures are standard,
they appear sufficient to meet the required standards. Delivery of such measures would
be conditioned.

Notwithstanding, the construction of the basement will require the removal of about
1200m3 of soil from the site. This equates to about 180 vehicle movements to and from
the site which is significant and would need to be considered carefully within an
appropriately managed Construction Logistics/Management Plan. Further, the use of the
basement, where 100% of the floorspace of each of the units is wholly below ground,
would require ongoing use of artificial lighting of all rooms though the day and mechanical
ventilation of the large number of windowless non habitable areas, including three
bathrooms, a utility room and kitchen within each unit and a service area and lobby within
the common spaces.

The inclusion of two units below ground level, as distinct from ancillary spaces within a
basement that are part of above ground dwellings, does not generally accord with the
intent behind delivering a scheme with energy efficient design. However, measures to
offset these impacts could likely be satisfactorily achieved within the scope of the
sustainability measures that would be conditioned in the event of an approval.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy SI12 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should ensure
that flood risk is minimised and mitigated, and that residual risk is addressed. The
property is in Flood Zone 1 and there is no change to the classification of the use such
that there is no flood risk within the site or impacts elsewhere. The proposal is therefore
acceptable.

Drainage

Policy Sl 13 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should aim to
achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure that surface water run-off is managed as

Page 122



7.18

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

close to its source as possible. Policy DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020)
states that developments are required to include a drainage assessment demonstrating
that appropriate sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) have been incorporated.

The site is in a Critical Drainage Area but not shown to be at risk from surface flooding
though there is a relatively significant increase in impermeable surfacing. The Design and
Access Statement indicates that soakaways are not practical given the clayey nature of
the soil and instead gives details of two attenuation tanks in the rear garden, with
controlled discharge to the public sewer. There is no in-principle objection to this
arrangement alongside other measures such as permeable paving and rainwater
harvesting. Full details would be required by condition in the event of approval.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Policy DMEI 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) states that development should
demonstrate appropriate reductions in emissions to sustain compliance with and
contribute towards meeting EU limit values and national air quality objectives for
pollutants. The scope of the application and the location of the site outside of the Air
Quality Management Area are such that there are no reasonable objections on air quality
grounds.

Comments on Public Consultations

See above.
Planning obligations

Policy DMCI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) refers to the delivery of sufficient
infrastructure alongside development whether by planning obligations or the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The CIL charge for residential developments is £95/m2, in
addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £60/m2. With a net increase in dwellings and
floorspace, the proposal would be CIL liable.

Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor
General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.

Page 123



10.

Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

CONCLUSION

The principle of establishing a residential flat building on Kingsend is contrary to policy
because more than 10% of the existing buildings in the street are already used as flatted
properties. There are subsequent character and neighbour amenity impacts associated
with the scheme that are inconsistent with the underlying basis of the policy.

The proposal would contribute towards the Council's housing supply targets and there are
no in-principle objections to the unit mix. It results in economic activity associated with the
construction phase and through Community infrastructure Levy. Weight applied is
moderate.

There is a degree of social benefit associated with a mix of dwelling types including one

larger dwelling, though it is tempered somewhat by the fact that there is a predominance
of smaller dwellings. The loss of the family home is noted but as it is replaced by one 3

Page 124



1.

bed dwelling and there is a net increase in dwellings, the impacts are offset. The level of
amenity afforded to the future occupants of the basement flats is highly questionable,
leading to a degradation of their quality of life. Overall, social outcomes should be
afforded minor to moderate weight.

In terms of environmental impacts, the scale of the building has increased, the proposal
includes additional car parking, several established trees will be removed and ecological
enhancements are limited by the constraints and size of the site. The inclusion of the
basement will require movement of soil offsite and the future occupation of the lower
ground floor level will require ongoing mechanical ventilation.

In conclusion, it is recognised that the proposal involves a net gain in accommodation in
an accessible location. However, collectively, the scale and form of the development and
its relationship within its surrounds represents an over development of the site and the
proposal would be harmful as described throughout this report. When weighing the
benefits against the various deficiencies with the scheme, the harm outweighs the
benefits, and the application is recommended for refusal.

Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (July 2021)

The London Plan (March 2021)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020)
Hillingdon Local Plan Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document
(September 2017)

Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard (March 2015)
Circular 06/05: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation - Statutory Obligations and Their
Impact Within The Planning System

Contact Officer: Simon Taylor Telephone No:

Page 125



Me
C

U

O

ot

{ﬁﬁwmm l

thodis
hurch

W

uislip

Notes:

I:l Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

32 Kingsend,
Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
9894/APP/2022/3871 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

Borouglrage 126 April 2023

HHILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Item 11

A
Item No. Report of the Interim Director of Planning, Regeneration & Public Realm
Address 53 LAVENDER RISE YIEWSLEY
Development: Erec;[]ion of a single storey extension to the rear and side and erection of
porc

LBH Ref Nos: 46236/APP/2023/54

Drawing Nos: Block Plan
Location Plan
Existing Plan
Proposed plan

Date Plans Received: 09/01/2023 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 09/01/2023
Recommendation: APPROVE subject to conditions

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the north-eastern side of Lavender Rise, Yiewsley. The
site comprises a two storey end terrace dwelling that is characterised by its original dual-
pitched roof profile and use of facing brick for the external walls. The dwelling is set-back
from the road of Lavender Rise with amenity space to the frontage, with no space for in-
curtilage parking. The site comprises of boundary treatments, including hedgerow and a
wall between the application dwelling and the boundary shared with no. 51 Lavender Rise,
and a wall built using facing brick at front elevation and to mark the boundary between the
application site and no. 55 Lavender Rise. To the rear of the site, is a rear garden which
serves as private amenity space for the dwelling's residents.

The north-eastern side of Lavender Rise in which the application site is located, is defined
by terrace dwellings consistent in appearance in terms of architectural form and style.
However, the application site differs in appearance to the remaining properties along
Lavender Rise. It has been noted that the adjoining neighbour (no. 55 Lavender Rise) has
been extended to the rear up to the shared boundary, approved under application no.
56715/APP/2001/2244. Furthermore, a number of rear and side extensions have been
approved along Lavender Rise in recent years.

The site is not located within a Conservation Area, Area of Special Local Character
(ASLC), within close proximity of Listed Buildings or TPOs. Nor is the site located within a
Critical Drainage Area.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks planning permission for the following:

- A single storey side and rear extension (both joining the existing rear extension with a
new roof);

- Erection of a front porch.

Page 2 of 12

Page 127



1.3

It should be noted that revised drawings have been requested by officers to correct a
minor plan discrepancy (existing window not shown on existing elevation drawing) and to
remove the shading on the windows for clarity. At the time of writing this report, the
revised drawings had not yet been received. Given the minor nature of the requested
changes, should the revised plans not have been received prior to the Borough Planning
Committee meeting, this matter could be satisfactorily addressed by the imposition of a
planning condition to secure the revised drawings. An update will be provided to Members
in an Addendum Report.

Relevant Planning History
46236/APP/2022/3365 53 Lavender Rise Yiewsley

Erection of a single storey rear extension, single storey side extension and porch (Application
for a Certificate of Lawful Development for a Proposed Development)

Decision Date: 22-12-2022 Withdrawn Appeal:

Comment on Planning History

The most recent planning record for this site relates to application no.
46236/APP/2022/3365. This application sought a certificate of lawfulness for a proposed
single storey rear extension, single storey side extension and porch. The application was
withdrawn by the applicant following the Planning Officer's advice, as it was considered
planning permission would be required for the proposal.

Advertisement and Site Notice
2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

Comments on Public Consultations

8 neighbouring properties were consulted as part of the consultation process for this
application on 12/01/23. The consultation period ended on 02/02/23 with no objections or
comments received.

Local Plan Designation and London Plan

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMHD 1 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings
DMT 2 Highways Impacts

Page 3 of 12

Page 128



DMT 6 Vehicle Parking
LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards
NPPF12 NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The key considerations in determining this application are the effect of the proposal on the
character and appearance of the original dwelling; the visual impact on the surrounding
area; the impact on the residential amenity of the neighbouring dwellings; the quality of
internal and external amenity space for the occupiers at the site; car parking provision;
and flood risk.

CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE

Chapter 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF), Policy D3 of the
London Plan (2021), Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(2012) and Policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020) concern the design of new development.
These policies require new development to incorporate principles of good design to create
high quality buildings and places that contribute positively to the local context. In terms of
householder extensions (which are principally managed through Policy DMHD 1), these
should not have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the streetscene
(including the host dwelling), and should appear subordinate to the main dwelling.

ASSESSMENT

Front Porch:

Given the architectural form of the host dwelling, the proposed porch would be slightly
obscured from the streetscene, meaning the visual impact would be minimal. This is
further certified given the set back distance from the building line at front elevation by
2.8M. The porch would have a width of 1.6M, length of 1.85M and overall height of 2.8M
(including roof height). The porch comprises a gently sloping roof, with eaves height of
2.5M. The external walls and roof materials would match those used on the existing
dwelling, ensuring the porch would integrate functionally and visually with the host
dwelling and neighbouring properties along Lavender Rise. The proposed porch would be
subordinate in height, scale and mass to the host dwelling and designed in a manner that
respects the streetscene. The porch complies with the relevant planning policies detailed
above.

Proposed Single Storey Side Extension:

The proposed side extension would project 3M from the existing side wall with a length of
6.89M. The extension would incorporate a hipped roof with eaves measuring at 2.5M. The
side extension would have an overall height of 3.1M. The width of the host dwelling is
6.4M, meaning the extension is less than half the width of the dwelling. This is in
accordance with Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020). The proposed side extension would be partially shielded
from view of the streetscene by the proposed porch, resulting in minimal visual impact and
no detrimental effects on the character and appearance of the host dwelling or
neighbouring properties located on Lavender Rise. The size, scale and mass would
remain subservient and subordinate to the main dwelling, preserving the architectural

Page 4 of 12

Page 129



integrity of the site. The proposed external materials would match those used on the
existing dwelling. Overall, the side extension complies with the relevant planning policies
detailed above.

Proposed Rear Extension:

The proposed rear extension projects 3.6M from the existing rear wall with a width of 1.9M
to attach to the existing rear extension, resulting in an overall width of 6.4M. The rear
extension would have an overall height of 3.1M with eaves measuring at 2.5M and
incorporating a new roof over the existing extension. It is noted that the proposed
dimensions of the extension accord with the depth and height limitations prescribed by
Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020). The proposed rear extension is considered an infill extension given its
design and positioning along the boundary shared with no. 55 Lavender Rise.
Furthermore, the rear extension would be shielded from the streetscene as it is located to
the rear of the site, meaning the wider visual impact on the character and appearance of
Lavender Rise would be negligible. Whilst the rear extension would lead to internal and
external modifications to join the existing rear extension, the proposed size and scale of
the cumulative extensions would not result in any discernable harm to the character and
appearance of the host dwelling or surrounding area.

Character and Appearance Conclusion:

The proposed extensions and alterations to the dwelling (proposed and in situ) are
suitably subordinate additions that have been thoughtfully designed to respect the design
features and appearance of the original dwelling. All proposed external materials are due
to match the existing dwelling, ensuring functional and visual integration with the host
dwelling and surrounding area. Given the positioning of the proposed porch, side and rear
extensions, the development integrates well with the street scene of Lavender Rise and
preserves its existing character and appearance. The development is therefore
acceptable, and compliant with the objectives of the aforementioned planning policies.

NEIGHBOURING RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that planning applications relating to alterations and extensions of
dwellings will be required to ensure that: ii) a satisfactory relationship with adjacent
dwellings is achieved; and v) there is no unacceptable loss of outlook to neighbouring
occupiers.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) seeks to ensure that development proposals do not adversely impact on
the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and open space. The residences
most likely to be affected by the development are no. 51 Lavender Rise (which adjoins the
site to the West), No. 55 Lavender Rise (which adjoins the site to the East) and 56 Briar
Way (which adjoins the site to the North). It is necessary to note that 51 Lavender Rise
has a staggered building line, so is set further back than the application site.

ASSESSMENT

Amenity Impact on no. 51 Lavender Rise:

The components of the proposal which have the most potential to impact upon no. 51
Lavender Rise are the proposed porch and proposed side extension, given their location

Page 5 of 12

Page 130



close to the shared boundary. The proposed porch is located circa 2.5M from the
boundary shared with no. 51 Lavender Rise. Given the modest scale and height of the
porch and the distance to the boundary, there are no significant concerns regarding
overbearing impact, loss of light or loss of outlook to no. 51 Lavender Rise. The proposed
side extension is set off 0.9M from the boundary shared with no. 51. There are two doors
and one window which are proposed to face onto the boundary. Given the existing
hedgerow boundary treatment between the application site and no. 51, and the fact the
side extension will not face directly onto any habitable rooms within no. 51, the proposal
would not unduly impact upon outlook or loss of privacy. Furthermore, the proposed
height of 3.1M and set off distance of 0.9M would not result in any undue loss of light to
no. 51.

Amenity Impact on no. 55 Lavender Rise:

The proposed rear extension is the element of the scheme that has the most potential to
impact upon the residential amenities of no. 55 Lavender Rise. The shared boundary is
noted to be splayed and at its furthest point, the extension would be set off circa 0.4M
from the shared boundary. No. 55 benefits from an existing rear extension and
consequently the proposed extension would protrude only a minimal distance beyond this
(approx. 0.45M). Furthermore, the depth of extension proposed accords with the depths
prescribed by Policy DMHD 1 of the Hilingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) (3.6M for a property of this type). In view of the above, the
proposal would not result in any undue impacts upon the residential amenity of no. 55 in
terms of loss of light, overbearing impact, loss of outlook, privacy or otherwise.

Impact on no. 56 Briar Way:

56 Briar Way is located to the North of the site and would have view of the proposed rear
and side extensions. The proposed rear and side extensions would be located 11.75M
from the shared boundary. Given this distance and that 118.57 square metres of amenity
space would further separate the view of the extensions from the second floor of no. 56
Briar Way, there would be no undue amenity impacts on this dwelling.

INTERNAL AMENITY SPACE PROVISION

Policy DMHB 11(iii) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that all development, including extensions and alterations, should
ensure that the internal design and layout of development maximises sustainability and is
adaptable to different activities. Furthermore, London Plan Policy D6 (2021) seeks to
ensure a good standard of living accommodation. The additional living spaces created by
the extensions are afforded suitable outlook and light provision, and are sufficiently sized
and laid out to be flexibly used for different domestic activities.

EXTERNAL AMENITY SPACE PROVISION

Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that planning applications relating to alterations and extensions of
dwellings will be required to ensure that adequate garden space is retained. Policy DMHB
18 specifies the amount of garden space expected for new dwellings. The development is
not a new dwelling but rather extensions to an existing dwelling house. Nonetheless,
Policy DMHB 18 remains a useful guide in considering the retention of private amenity
space. 118.57 square metres of private amenity space would remain to the rear of the
application site, which is considered ample and acceptable.

Page 6 of 12

Page 131



PARKING AND HIGHWAY SAFETY

Policy DMHD 1 vii) of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies
(2020) states that planning applications relating to alterations and extensions of dwellings
will be required to ensure that adequate off-street parking should be retained. This is
reinforced by Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management
Policies (2020) which requires developments to comply with parking standards to facilitate
sustainable development and address issues relating to congestion and amenity. For this
application the relevant standard requires a maximum of two on-site car parking spaces
per dwelling. However, it is noted that the amenity space to the site frontage is currently
not utilised for parking and on-street parking is availed of. Given the modest increase in
floorspace and as no off street parking would be displaced by the proposals, the approval
of this proposal would not discernibly exacerbate the demand for street parking or have a
harmful effect on highway safety. This is in accordance with Policies DMHD 1 and DMT 6
of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies (2020).

FLOODING AND DRAINAGE

The site is not located within a Flood Zone or Critical Drainage Area. Consequently, no
significant drainage or flood risk issues are raised.

CONCLUSION

The development accords with the relevant policies set out in the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Parts One (2012) and Two (2020), the London Plan (2021) and the National Planning
Policy Framework (2021). The development is considered to comply with the
Development Plan read as a whole. The development integrates sympathetically with the
appearance of the dwelling, the visual amenity of the street scene and preserves the
character of Lavender Rise. The development does not harm the living conditions of
neighbouring occupiers. The existing parking situation of the application site will be no
further exacerbated through approval of this application. The development also has
acceptable living conditions for the applicants, and retains sufficient rear garden space. It
is therefore concluded, taking all matters into account, that planning permission should be
granted subject to conditions.

RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on Drawing Nos.
- Location Plan

Page 7 of 12

Page 132



- A108
-A110

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part
1(2012) and Part 2 (2020), and the London Plan (2021).

3 HO4 Materials

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing
building in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

4 HO5 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall
be constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing
nos 51 and 55 Lavender Rise.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

INFORMATIVES

1 You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
application may have to be submitted. The validity of this planning permission
may be challengeable by third parties if the development results in any form of
encroachment onto land outside the applicant's control for which the appropriate
Notice under Article 13 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 has not been served.

2 The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway
repairs, including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering
materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the
Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations,

Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road,
Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads

Page 8 of 12

Page 133



during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not
override or cause damage to a private road and where possible alternative
routes should be taken to avoid private roads. The applicant may be required to
make good any damage caused.

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant Local Plan Part 2 (2020), then London Plan
Policies (2016). Hillingdon's Full Council adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
1 - Strategic Policies on 8 November 2012 and the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
on 16 January 2020.

Standard Informatives

1

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy
for London consolidated with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.
Part 1 Policies:
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
Part 2 Policies:
DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space
DMHD 1 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings
DMT 2 Highways Impacts
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking
LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards
NPPF12 NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places
You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the

approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must

be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any

Page 9 of 12

Page 134



deviation
from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
application may have to be submitted. The validity of this planning permission
may be challengeable by third parties if the development results in any form of
encroachment onto land outside the appliacnt's control that is considered to
cause harm to local amenity.

5 Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
advice, contact - Building Control, 3N/01 Civic Centre,

Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 558170).

6 You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at
any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved
are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7 The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
- carry out work to an existing party wall;
- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining

building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls.
The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by
the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
available free of charge from the Planning Services Civic Centre, Uxbridge,

Page 10 of 12

Page 135



does

of

prior

10

11

12

uB8 1UW.

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission

not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific
consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you should
consult a solicitor.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours

08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public
health nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek

approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any
difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working hours
set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining
premises.

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take
appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in
action being taken under the Highways Act.

To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
insulation.

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby

Page 11 of 12

Page 136



approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made

good

to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further

information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central

Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,

Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Contact Officer: Rebekah McCullough Telephone No: 01895 250230

Page 12 of 12

Page 137



Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

53 Lavendar Rise

Yiewsley

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
46236/APP/2023/54 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

BorouglPage 138

April 2023




Agenda Annex

Plans for

Borough

Planning
Committee

Wednesday 5th April 2023

HILLINGDON

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Page 139



Report of the Interim Director of Planning, Regeneration & Public Realm

Address BRANDON LIFT & TOOL HIRE LAND OFF HAYES END ROAD HAYES ENLC
ROAD HAYES

Development: Retrospective application for the proposed use of Storing/Displaying/Selling o
Cars/Light Goods Vehicles within land off of Unit 1 and Unit 2, Hayes End
Road, Hayes

LBH Ref Nos: 74089/APP/2022/1960

Borough Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 140



Q By&. Ordnance

oo\ Survey

1k Buy A Plan

UK's Fastest and Easiest Planning Site Licensed Data

Unit 2, Haves End Road, Hayes, Hillingdon, UB4 8EH SITE PLAN

R

1 to 20
k House

200 Garage

om 10.0m : o

Block Plan shows area bounded by: 508800.94, 181868.55 508890.94, 181958.55 (at a scale of 1:500), OSGridRef: TQ 8848191. The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of a right of
way. The representation of features as lines is no evidence of a property boundary.

Produced on 20th Jun 2022 from the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision available at this date. Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the
prior permission of Ordnance Survey. © Crown copyright 2022. Supplied by https://www.buyaplan.co.uk digital mapping a licensed Ordnance Survey partner (100053143). Unique plan reference:
#00741572-393DFF

Ordnance Survey and the OS Symbol are registered trademarks of Ordnance Survey, the national mapping agency of Great Britain. Buy A Plan logo, pdf design and the www.buyaplan.co.uk website
are Copyright © Pass Inc Ltd 2022

Page 141



1k Buy A Plan

UK's Fastest and Easiest Planning Site

§
i

Ry ¢

« Ordnance

oo\ Survey

Licensed Data

Unit 2, Hayes End Road, Hayes, Hillingdon, UB4 8EH SITE PLAN Rev 2

e {
0 S 4 L
e Grey v / | |

il = ’ Lwwn(;e;rS’(cm“;ge “‘I D
B “ - < anddis“‘t“alay ““ 8 |
| e ; J =

e — "“ - O
S sustomer | Existing |
S - Cros ‘

:'Unit 2 f“ é

, Front Desk “' I

" Customer |
« Welcome Only |
|

Cars

! / 1
£ ‘3 1 ! i
! ] i ] Storage ! |
/ / < 2 and ! JF i |
/ ] : display | “‘ | {
| v ‘\‘ Physical boupdry
/ ) e | morethan | | A
/ Unit 1 / | 0.6mhigh | | /
{ Warehouse ‘ P
| |
E “"
Existing |
|
Crossover

Owner/Staff
Car Park

1 to 20
k House

200

10.0m

7 790

/

er(

(©) Créwn copyrigﬁt af;d‘database rights 2022

way. The representation of features as lines is no evidence of a property boundary.

Block Plan shows area bounded by: 508800.94, 181868.55 508890.94, 181958.55 (at a scale of 1:500), OSGridRef: TQ 8848191. The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of a right of

Produced on 20th Jun 2022 from the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision available at this date. Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the
prior permission of Ordnance Survey. © Crown copyright 2022. Supplied by https://www.buyaplan.co.uk digital mapping a licensed Ordnance Survey partner (100053143). Unique plan reference:

#00741572-393DFF
Ordnance Survey and the OS Symbol are registered trademarks of Ordnance Survey, the national mapping agency of Great Britain. Buy A Plan logo, pdf design and the www.buyaplan.co.uk website

are Copyright © Pass Inc Ltd 2022

Page 142



1t028
Saviours House

Springfield

S
\

Charolais
House

\
\ -
/) \
1 [
'

'

'

OAD

o
[a]
=z
w
w !
w
3z
I

N
I
i
3

1t0 20

Link House

\Shenergd&(ﬂ/\\ S
Sheleres?
N

\
| Laburnum
!
/I I|
1
X
:
N
;

Springwell Nursery

LONDON BOROUGH

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey

100019283

Site Address:
Brandon Lift & Tool Hire

Land Off Hayes End Road

OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Scale:

Planning Application Ref:
1:1,250

74089/APP/2022/1960

Date:

April 2023

Planning Committee:
BoroughPage 143

LONDON




Report of the Interim Director of Planning, Regeneration & Public Realm

Address HILLINGDON HOUSE, BANQUETING SUITE WREN AVENUE UXBRIDGE

Development: Retrospective Application for the use of the ground floor as a banqueting suite
with associated ancillary facilities at basement level for private civil
ceremonies, weddings and parties (Sui Generis)

LBH Ref Nos: 77108/APP/2022/691

Borough Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 144



Location Plan of Abshar Hillingdon House UB10 OFD

Hillingdon

A

This Plan includes the following Licensed Data: OS MasterMap Colour PDF
Location Plan by the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and
incorporating surveyed revision available at the date of production.
Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior permission of
Ordnance Survey. The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of
a right of way. The representation of features, as lines is no evidence of a
property boundary. © Crown copyright and database rights, 2022. Ordnance
Survey 0100031673

,
» Ord
@Y <

Licensed Mapping

Scale: 1:1250, paper size: A4

emapsite-
ge 145 il N—

Prepared by: shankar p Sivashankar, 18-02-2022




Block Plan of Abshar Hillingdon House UB10 OFD

Hillingdon
House

This Plan includes the following Licensed Data: OS MasterMap Colour PDF Site
Plan/Block Plan by the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and m 10m 15m
incorporating surveyed revision available at the date of production.

Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior permission of

Ordnance Survey. The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of Scale: 1:500, paper size: A4
a right of way. The representation of features, as lines is no evidence of a

property boundary. © Crown copyright and database rights, 2022. Ordnance

Survey 0100031673

:
» Ord
@Y <

Licensed Mapping,

emapsite-
ge 146 plans

Prepared by: shankar p Sivashankar, 18-02-2022




An°0> Y eBpURBINOA M
0>y neBpueBUNOASUIWpe -3
L162 TE€ V10 "4 STZZ TE€ 1510 °L
X 259 MoBse|D “peoy pueisson
“asSnO} ULIsW “100)4 PIE ‘€ AUNS

[A4

o9
T GLETT90L
om Aoy onBig
fauneig NOILON¥LSNOI

004 : 1
T Shers

8107 d35

s1eq

NV1d 40014 LNIwasve

S Bumeig

30aRExn
3SNOH NOAONITIIH

LNIWHSI9IN43Y 03S0dO¥d

ani 1af01g

swueynsuo) Juawidojanag
siaBeuey 1afo1d
siouueidiaiseny
SPRUYPIY pasaLIey)

)nespuesunoA

“12a(01d spp Jo sasodind au Joj uewy Jay30

o1 paidod aq 10u 1snus pue
1 a4y 51 Bumesp stL

58 3GNOP Ul J| “BUIMEIP SIY WOl 31e3s Jou og

3 bs /2L ‘Wbs £°691 ‘ealy
juswaseq asea JO Jualx3y

]

Aoy

s
““l‘wkxm Bupaie)

21035 BupieIe)

iy

L_JL

r——="
|

|

|

|

|

| I —

N il
|

!

|

|

@D gyl

B =6

I

20
oy

Q@D et

wuzs
1015 PO
~

gz
1970014

......... R |
g @D @D

2103 sy

[amn] far]

1 wiopeld

18A3.N07) Y1ION

LA
|

Page 147



1|-|A||.!~ 3w et +u _, _‘i-.:::n‘J

b maiaed

iy

nnnnnnnnn

:::ﬁ

L

&ex dms of LeAsE

4 6\e SR

Revision

Intiels

Dot
z.n.e

young /i gault

Sutte 3, d Floue, Meritn House,
Masdand Rosd, Glasgow G2 02
T 0N1 22 22297, 0141 30 2977
L. admidy oungardgavit.co

S ANt c3. uk

Page 148



Block Plan Car Park UB10 OFD

Hillingdon
House

This Plan includes the following Licensed Data: OS MasterMap Colour PDF Site T— T—
Plan/Block Plan by the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and om 5m 10m 15m 20m
incorporating surveyed revision available at the date of production.

Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior permission of

Ordnance Survey. The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of Scale: 1:500, paper size: A4
a right of way. The representation of features, as lines is no evidence of a

property boundary. © Crown copyright and database rights, 2022. Ordnance

Survey 0100031673

:
» Ord
@Y <

Licensed Mapping

ge 149

emapsite-

Prepared by: shankar p Sivashankar, 18-02-2022




N [l Heightg

Hillingdon
House

' Dowding
v Park

I""fi Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only HI"InngI‘I House Residents Services
: Planning Section

This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW,|
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . L . .
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 77108/APP/2022/691 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant ‘ k
g‘éepﬁon to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: Sy

rown copyright and database . “H’l LLINGDON
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey e :
100019283 BorouglPage 150 April 2023 4




Report of the Interim Director of Planning, Regeneration & Public Realm

Address 2 NORTHBROOK DRIVE NORTHWOOD

Development: Erection of first floor side and part rear extensions, replacement of pitched
roof over retained part single storey rear extension with a flat roof, part
demolition and conversion of existing garage to habitable accommodation,
extension and conversion of roof space to habitable accommodation including
2no rear dormers and the formation of a crown roof, new front porch and
exterior alterations.

LBH Ref Nos: 56315/APP/2022/2504

Borough Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 151



H. M. LAND REGISTRY

NATIONAL GRID PLAN  TQ 0991 SECTION R

GREATER LONDON
Scale |/1250

BOROUGH of HILLINGDON

The boundaries shewn by
4 lines have been plotted
= the transfer plan and are
1bject to revision on survey |

« Crown Copyright 1970

TITLENo NGL 125619

This is a copy of the title plan on 29 JUN 2022 at 11:16:15. This copy does not take account of any application made after that time even if still pending in HM Land
Registry when this copy was issued.

This copy is not an 'Official Copy' of the title plan. An official copy of the title plan is admissible in evidence in a court to the same extent as the original. A person
is entitled to be indemnified by the registrar if he or she suffers loss by reason of a mistake in an official copy. If you want to obtain an official copy, the HM Land
Registry web site explains how to do this.

HM Land Registry endeavours to maintain high quality and scale accuracy of title plan images.The quality and accuracy of any print will depend on your printer,
your computer and its print settings.This title plan shows the general position, not the exact line, of the boundaries. It may be subject to distortions in scale.
Measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

This title is dealt with by HM Land Registry, Wales Office. Page 152

© Crown Copyright. Produced by HM Land Registry. Further reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior written permission of Ordnance
Survey. Licence Number 100026316.



'2202 PY] DUINONINS NS 14DUAG0D (9)

4TY0S LON Od

£0-¢c-0lcee |2202-90-¢C
oN Bumeiq ojeq Aoning
AAE! 0S:1
oag sededumeq sejeog
A3INNNS 3lIs
a3lynsvan
Buyneiq

AR YOOUEHLYON 2
SL1O31IHOYV MOouav3s

woloig

O3 BUTRSATNSAS@OTUT
€2109G 0€510 Xe4
2£8095 0€S10 |21

dvi §931
FHIHS¥ALS30FT
HONOZ-V1-30-AGHSY
13341S L1IXUVIN 992

OL19NIAINYNS NS

ONRIZINIONZ 3UIS + SAINNNS ONIATING
SNITIZOW ¥3LNdWOD + SATANNS ANV

*puB Aiejuque Ue o} pax) Uaeq sey Aeains auL

“ejqssod sanasoup Buado feanionas ay) o)
peInseau uoaq oney su ‘Smopuw: pue s100q

“Auo ajeuoidde se pejeas;
4 pnoys e10joIeL) PUE [9AS] PUNOIB wo pokenIns
usaq sey (ejqeoipdde a1aum) uonewIojul 8a1)

“Auo ajewoidde se pajeas;
2q pinoys pue edens oy wioy pejoodsu
usaq sey (ajqeoydde aiaym) uoiewoyu; of

"
eiq

“SuOjoLISa1 JBLIO 10 $88008 0} aNp peajueient
q Jouuea sjuiod [eauaofe Jo uomsod oyL
“uoan1ISu0o pue uBisep of ropid

s U0 poxoBYo 0q PINOYS SjoAZ]/ SUISU

“uatp [eurblio auy
uey Jauo Ayed souo Aue o) payddns yt ueid siyy joy
Aupaisuodses ou sidesoe pr Buikening AS *esodind

Jeutbuio s} 1o} pasn aq Ajuo pjnous ueid siuL

+saloN

1uBloH Buye) esje

WBioH Buyeg femonns 77 Kos
winjeq o} pAeT 00K Sz 1
JoysinBuxg eng Q
i
uoung wieny o4 xva
K 4
N
swon |
2 N)
1oeipey
Bunybry poxiy O
yoms Wb o
Yowns sewig Wb o

Wb umoq ®
Wb uejue] @

uegiopenxa O

13005 10AEYS
194008 posng
13008 amod VEL

1uiog auoyg

N A A A

Wiod AL

“pustio

w epog

(10074 popIeOod)
70°5g i8Iy
d0V¥dS DILIIV

(10074 28dxeD)

op*g iealy
Woo¥add

=

T

-
d0¥dS DILLY
s
Ly - — —
te | F |

e fina]
o
Geops 211 00
ONINIQ / ZMIUHHK —

(z00Ta \uwmum:
8Z°CC i1V

NOTLdZOEY

~
\

(10074 STTL)
Gp-g eIy

(10074 29daeD) (z00Ta \umaumov noodazd
8Z°CT :ealIv GE*9 e8Iy
Noodazd noodazd
— -
|

Qooﬁw 1adxeD)
89°6 BaIV

NY'TId d00THd LSdTd

——
FIREFLACE

1601 :esIvy
TIVH

)
—
/v (10073 31TL)

NY'Id

(10074 23dzeDd)
TG 0T :eaav
TIYH

_“_I Auoo.ﬁm,,.muuwu:ouv
GZ el :e8Iv

FJ0ILs

=

d00Td dNNOID

Page 153




"Z20Z PY1 PUINSAINS NS 4PUAAOD (9)

dT¥0S LON Od

£0-¢¢-0l22¢cC |2202-90-¢C
on Bupeiq oleq honing
AAE! 00L:1
o sodegiumeq sejeas
A3INNNS 3lIs
a3zxyNsvan
Buyneiq

3AINA MOONEHLYON 2
SL1O31IHOYV MOoo¥av3s

woloig

SO BUTASKITS RS WA
SO BUTRSAINSAS@IONN :|lews
€2109G 0€510 Xe4
££8095 0€510 2L

dvi §931
FHIHS¥ALS30FT
HONOZ-V1-30-AGHSY
13341S L1IMUVIN 992

O119NIAINYNS NS

ONRIZINIONZ JUIS + SAINNNS ONIATING
SNITIZAOW ¥3LNdWOD + SATAMNS ANV

*puB Aiejuque Ue o} pax) Uaeq sey Aeains auL

“ejqssod sanasoup Buado feanionas ay) o)
paInseaw ueaq oney SuoNSod SMOpUW: pUE S100Q

*Auo ejewproudde se pojes;
q pInoys o10jo1eL PUE [9A] PUNOIB Woly pokonIns
usaq sey (ejqeoipdde a1aum) uonewIojul 8a1)

“Auo ajewoidde se pajeas;
9 pjnoys pue eoepns oy} woy pajoadsul Ajensia
usaq sey (ajqeoydde aisym) uoieunoul sbeuelq

“SuOjoLISa1 JBLIO 10 $88008 0} aNp peajueient
q Jouuea sjuiod [eauaofe Jo uomsod oyL

“uoan1ISu0o pue uBisep of 1opid
US U0 PaX0BYo 5q PINOYS SfRAS] / SUOISUBLLY

uew Jatgo Aed souo Aue o
Aupaisuodses ou sidesoe pr Buikening AS *esodind
Jeutbuio s} 1o} pasn aq Ajuo pjnous ueid siuL

:saloN

1uBloH Buye) esje
WB1aH B

O IS 227 HOS

winjeq o} [2A7 100K

JousInBuig o

wounguE s x v

swepn | ()

Iojeipey

Bunybiy pexiy
yownms Wb
Yows sewig Wb

O

Wb umoq )
W wee 0]

ue opeix3 )

13005 10AEYS
1oH00s posng <
iopos samod veL (|
wiog auoud - ]

WodAL

“pustio

W0 0L THAAFT WALIVA

d=-d

NOIIDES

nonazass

T 1310 ovaen

wooutze

T yovsass

=il

WO0" 0L THEAUT WALIVA

ovas 1LY

(MIIA QIIDTYISEE) NOIIVAHTE MNVIA

B

WO0" 0L TEAET WALIVA

NOILVAATA MNVTA

El

wWo0" 0L THAET WALVA

WO0*0L TIAAET WALVA

V=¥ NOILDHES

Taa3o8

Wovkass

ama || woouas:

g

3vas o1uaw

NI

NOIIVATETHE dVdd

Wo0" 0L THEAET WALYA

ALdAd0dd ONIYNOHGHOTAN ANV NOILVAATE INOYA

NEEEIE

iEEH

m]l (=

[ 1

[ 1[I [ ]

= A

Page 154




a 10071d /1209
Aoy oN Sy

W00kl 2Ts

s

2202°01°02

e
puoy
SLOHLIHOYV dTIHLIVHD

SLOALIHOYV
A00ddVAS

SNVd LIS
a3s0doyd ? ONILSIX3

JAINA XOONEIHLNON

_.._2. — T _.“m T .SF;.u_Sw. h \|</ NV1d 31IS d3S0d0yd

Ly

¥

\\

ANITLNO ONIATINg ONILSIX3

PopUoIXG 191100 T34 WPl TUoTd

Zl<|m|o]|a

e [ao

$IION/SIUSWPUIUTY

ree'Ls

.@4

NV1d 31IS ONILSIX3

Page 15

ANITLNO ONIATINg ONILSIX3




El 10071d /1209
Aoy oN Sy

W00kl 2Ts

s

2202°01°02

SREETCENEIRER)
SLOALIHOYY
A0CO0YIVAS

SNVd LIS
a3s0doyd ? ONILSIX3

JOOMHLYON
JAINA XOONEIHLNON

=._2 — T T _.“m T .Spup.u_uuw. h \/\/ NV1d 31IS a3S0dodd

Ly

¥

\\

ANITLNO ONIATINg ONILSIX3

PopUoIXG 191100 T34 WPl TUoTd

Zl<|m|ofo|w

e [ao

$IION/SIUSWPUIUTY

ree'Ls

.@4

NV1d 31IS ONILSIX3

Page 156

ANITLNO ONIATINg ONILSIX3




2007d /1209

oN Suraesqy

W00kl 2Ts

)

2202°L0°1L

s

i g

o
SLOHLIHOYV dTIHLIVHD

SLOALIHOYV
A00d4vdS

SNV1d 80074
a3sodoyd

JAINA XOONEIHLNON

azHsronaa -]
onusna [N
azsodond [

aN3oaT

75| uolsueIxo opIs T4 oul W} ¥9eq 105

5 |wV U010 [etalew suoienalo poppy.

s UOISUSIXO OpIS WIOEE Y08q 105

s UOISUBIX® OPIS SO\ POAOIOY

s PopUaIX® 101100 134 I

<] m|ofo]|w

$IION/SIUSWPUIUTY

LI S S S S E— —
wop wg 00134 3Jes

wuwoos @ IO
NV1d ¥0014 L4071 a3S0d0¥d

oo

HTIT

e

N
d i
o wooipsg
TR [\ !
VAN L
178 17—\ !
(-
i
I
Y-

NY1d 40074 1Sdl4 d3S0d0dd

5 woapag

£ woopsg

AT

FR L= = rR

! AN g /A1
m Y S oweemes s yooipe
[ [ &} oy

NV1d 4004 A3S0d0dd

A
W , 1
! ]
—

Page 157

NY1d 40014 ANNOHO A3SOdOdd

2 uoydeosy




El €007d /1209
oy oN Suraesqy

W00kl 2Ts

)

2z L0l s Agmaeig

o
SLOHLIHOYV dTIHLIVHD

SLOALIHOYV
A00d4vdS

SNOILVATT3
a3sodoyd

Sunercq

X3s3naain
JOOMHLYON
JAINA XOONEIHLNON

Q3HSMOWIQ =~~~

ONILSIX3

a3sododd

aN3oan

75| uolsueIxo opIs T4 oul W} ¥9eq 105

5 [ uonoas 3 [eusiew suojerslo pappy

s UOISUSIXO OpIS WIOEE Y08q 105

s UOISUBIX® BPIS SO\ POAOWISY

s PopUaIX® 101100 134 I

<] m|ofo]|w

$IION/SIUSWPUIUTY

wop

— T T
00134 3Jes 0

wWo0 0L THAH

T WOIYAd

NOTILVAETH MNVTA LSAM

VY=Y NOILDIS

__ Lazoss 4 woos 21N
i

0ol 1

WO0" 0L TIAAET WALVA

woot0L TEAET WALVA

NOILVAATA YMNVTA LSYI

e

-

39714 oula aue

NOIIVAETHE dvEd

Wo0 0L TIAIT WALYA

=

wota o

Page 158

Laon

AI¥Ed0dd ODNIYNOEHOTEN ANV NOIIVAHTH INO¥A

eLdCmwE

e

s9+1c afols aso

miN =

vt sears

[ LI 1




Mas
elecommuf

v

.

.

Oakleigh R 1
N
b

.
.
’ A

,
.

N
X X\
N
Iderleigl
.
Birchleigh X ‘
N

Milburn

Tanglewood

i 9
Glen View R
oY
> R
.

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

2 Northbrook Drive,

Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW,|

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
56315/APP/2022/2504 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

BoroughPage 159

April 2023

LONDON




Report of the Interim Director of Planning, Regeneration & Public Realm

Address 18 IVER LANE COWLEY UXBRIDGE

Development: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 4 x self-contained units
including 1 x studio unit, 2 x 1-bed units and 1 x 3-bed unit with associated
landscaping, parking, refuse and recycling.

LBH Ref No 19016/APP/2023/20

Borough Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 160



3INSSI ONINNV'1d

*910z Po0oiny Buisn peanpoud som BuIMDIP siu ) “Bumoip

S1Uj W0 Pofo5 7 Of SUOISUSLLIP O PHOM BUIPUSLILIC) 810jaq SIS
Uo pe2ey> &q Sl sUoISUBLIIP [l PPaonpo.del esimueuio 0 peidod
50U JSNW PUD @ PF] S92 ONF 40 Apiedoid st BUMOIP SIL

VL yVH xeselpply
“disny 18848 YBIH b2

sP8}IY2IY
Gl

T
S
——
\——
[i—]

1981

- 10ld
vorsiey “oN BuImbiq ‘0N sfold
N 1202 AVN ov
4q panoiddy ajoq Bumpiq g umoig
0seliL v Lotd
23 o215 jeeys 2l PPD
NV1d NOLLYDOT
ajjiL Bumoig

dre 8an ‘IoAEXN ‘INVT J3A1 8L

NOISN3LX3 a3S0dOHd
sl pofoig

[EARA]

U1

uoyduoseq _ Clle] _>®m

092I°1 ¥vE FTVOS

- e |

[
wool

uiog

wol

0

. eisang

[E]

HL4ON

Page 161



0021 v8 TTVOS

[

N

/

zil m_n”mw
; s
5108 onit
d
NV

Page 162



3ANSSI ONINNVId

SJ]O9lIYOIY
H ——
—

PN ==
)

c0cd 1681
uorsnay op Buwoi op 1eloid
L 220z 53 w
4a upmoig moig
00 [ 100d

1055 15 ieo4s el po;

NV1d 400Y B N¥1d 4OOd ONILSIA

NV1d 4004 ONILSIX3

U=

£
8

NV1d 40074 ANNOY
ONILSIX

Page 163




20m

5m

SCALEBAR 1100

EXISTING REAR NORTH ELEVATION

EXISTING FRONT SOUTH ELEVATION

Page 164

EXISTING SIDE EAST ELEYATION

Rcw‘ Dale

Cllent

‘ Descripfion

‘Approved by
Revision

Drawing Dale
DEC 2022
Drawing fo.
P203

MR MALH

Broject Tile

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

18 IVER LANE, UXBRIDGE, UBS 2/D
Drawing Tille

EXISTING ELEVATIONS

Drown by

Project Now

1861

EXISTING SIDE WEST ELEVATION

Juttla
Architects

PLANNING ISSUE




$}o9}IYydly _ —
ojynr ,
NV1d 40074 Lsdld |
d3s0doyd
- 0cd 1981 \L,
wopson oy B o poloid _—
b 2eoz >3a w 7

Aqporoisdy _oiogBumoia fqumoig
0011 v 100d
a3 o ooy et po>

Nv1d YO0 1S4H 8 40O ANNOYD 43S0dO¥d

opL Bumpig A}
Qrz 68N ‘39aRIEAXN NV AN 91 |
I
ININGOT3A3Q Q350dOtd |
Sl pslog i
I
HIVIA A !

| [
t

wer> 4 4
| 1 v
w vordea|  oroq hey fyaana

5
TR
h
e
i
|

P—
cassceneina ()

L1 1Y NOOHTEE -2 N O SEEEEEE————

<]
ajio &
10 /]

. L0
; i (o]
. L t —
) . 7 il )
= 4 — i ©
i % andition [ m - D =T ol
72Ny [ S
0§Zl1*l 37VOS
S

NV1d NOILVDO

FIION

001t HvE AV

oz wol s we w0



3NSSI ONINNY1d ,

HIVV

e
] .

468 = 1 OfNIS = LN

403 = 1V NOOYC3E=1 =€ LN

18 7 NOOKQIE=E -2 LN

2405 = 114 /IOOHCZE=1 = | LN

cCee®

p=r)

)

TIHON

[REEE=

Page 166



20m

5m

Im om

SCALEBAR 1100

24 EE
[T
@

: |||| |
§ i
=
g T

o

&

I

= i
=

3 I|IIIIIIIIIV| |"‘
D “|
:

3 ul
g IIlIIIIIIIIIIIII

: ununnunn ||IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII|

!ﬁ%\“\\“\\“ﬂ%’ |
=iz

PROPOSED REAR NORTH

ELEVATION

PROPOSED FRONT SOUTH

ELEVYATION

Page 167

PROPOSED SIDE WEST

ELEVATION

= (72
LE 5 -6
sg8 2 q,
cSl2sf3
G222 0 o .
o o =L
S ]
2 g S8 - 0
- & $ phrg| 3 =
3w 2 B_EUEQ
< g 2 |2_|588
H £ 8| & eS| D
2 3 =
3 g g <
& z 3 @
= 4 g o
T |8 22 8
H EE AR é;
515 = |86 =23 © 12 H
Il % lgz =k g 2 it

H—

il

POSED SIDE EAST

VATION

RO
LE

P
E

<opied or ofherwise reproduced:

PLANNING ISSUE




| EI'Sub Sta D
[

o []

Sub Sta '
i
'
'
I
'
'

The 3 Steps
(PH)

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

18 lver Lane

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
19016/APP/2023/20 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

BorouglPage 168

April 2023

LONDON

T T 0 == — T
| s 4(- T \\\ \ '
L |
v | The :
o | ' Beeches Y
| : \
' . ' \
' ! '
2 : ' ' .
a ! F-- ' Beech \
— : : : '- Cottac |
L - N -
'. L !
. \
_ 33 l:ll_olly \
. ' ree
B \ Cottage \
e . z 6 ! \
T 1 : -7 T\
— Lo e ST =
'. : - '.
e | ! | I
\ ! H '
! . 27 L
| '
e[ | : |
: \- ! '
. \ I '
R :l
\ The
i, old
¢ House
Vo 2
e
[ 1 B e ~
o :E 1 "
- .; 4 II' to:
ol .. oY
II-I-I - ! ©
oo M [}
[Ne} ' ' '
| ' T o
O ' H ! o
K] | | Ve [
] o m ' 1 : o
1 ' 1 '
L1 \ ' '.I <
] Vo amemmT=sooe dem _9
1 1 -
R I ™
LL - ' vl ~ iy
o Qi
L Vot - @ >
[ ' ol
i [ © = &t
beo - g
oo T
o [ 21
St ~ ol @)
R
A © o
' | Vol 1 '
R BT :
Lo I
I
' '
1 )




Report of the Interim Director of Planning, Regeneration & Public Realm

Address 32 KINGSEND RUISLIP

Development: Demolition of existing house and garage and construction of a block of seven
purpose-built apartments

LBH Ref Nos: 9894/APP/2022/3871

Borough Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 169



4 L 1 |
4 Metres
ReQuestaPlan

N4

Plan Produced for: 32K
Date Produced: 23 Sep 2020
Plan Reference Number: TQRQM20267092643804
Scale: 1:1250 @ A4

Page 170

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 OS 100042766




oo oad ueld Jooj} 181 I ueyd 100} punols

: 00l -1 W Foroe T
MIEWNN 103r0Nd (v @) 3708

=

0€:L0°91 220211160

12/60/60 alo $70
31vq A8 Q3403HO, A8 Nmvaa |

vod

namo

sue|d Jooj4
19 suoneAs[3 busixg

wooipag aiseN

T

B wooeg sps | _ =
ansuz

wooy Buissaig

Bupue —
103r0N8d

pussbury z¢

_
(Y

pous Bumod

(SHT) uonensa 1sepp

(SHY) uoiens|e Jse3

|8 8 §tmmd ]

oleg | uonduoseg | ey

0
H

[0

H

Hlgl HHH
HH HHA

[ M

(yuoi4) uoneas|s yinos (1eay) uonens|d yuoN

Page 171




£€:00°01 Z202/ZL/60

¢07d

H3WNN ONIMYHA

=

Jaquny pslolg 00l -1
M3EWNN 103r0Nd (v @) 3708

1212090
a1vq A8 awxomxu A8 z>>5.o
vod

namo

sueld 400]4 pasodold

T

pussbury z¢

103r0N8d

oleg | uonduoseg | ey

100J} punoJs

 zuooipeg Zwoorpsg
| wooeg ~ L > | wosipeg |
7 S N B _
- 10 nois ™ / i
wooieg [ fqqop sooy punoso. \ e 4 s

gl |/ N == \ \

2 i I._._v :l I 7
oy | H
was

ﬁ I
,f

s0eds fyuawe aoeds Ayuawe
Joopino aenid 100p110 SpENI

I

.z wooipeg 2 wooipeg | | wooipsg
= ‘ =

fao) socy 3534 ™\
ansuz LR ans<3

- :WT,HJ |

E= \ woorses

ueuayy usuoy

74' eaie Buiq p 86una || ease Guug g sbunol .LI_

100}y 38114

\H. L". ﬂr

100} punoJB Jemon]

I I
2 ansus || oS song

f ot punosd wor

ey souenum
/“sie0n

y
B

100

fmn

aunsuz 7 4 7 aunswg

femens fempers
wsua @ sy

Buuia Buug

fapn |

T

il

|

+ wooipog

sbuno 6unol

B

e ——— T

oped speng

Awa awoo || M wooipes
uaya A LS

ey oouenuz

(400} puz) @oeds Jooy

Page 172



§95°G1 Z202/ZLIB0

601d
et el
P] e e
vog
o . —
ue|d yoopnQ sa1baq
G{ pue Jooy pasodoid 0011 ueld J00y
pussBury z¢

103r0N8d

oleg | uonduoseg | ey

HUNoD 8uIN0asO

00z}
ueyd ayis 1By 03 by

eye

Page 173



§6:65:G1 22021160

€07d

a2y ¥3BNON ONIMYED

Jequiny joelold 0041

MIANNN LO3roNd (v @) 31v08

1212090 SL ole}
aiva A8 Q3%03HO prpey|

o

suoljens|q pasodoid

T

pussbury z¢

103r0N8d

(SHT) uoneas|3 1sepn

iy

4

oleg | uonduoseg | ey

& e

ﬂruh‘u—u 0o

HI S

(Juouq) uoneas|3 yinos

E0E0] HOE0EH,

L]

03 oS

(SHY) uoneas|3 jse3

BORO=0) | B0R0=0Y

Hoo (o@|leow
\aﬂuﬂuﬂuﬂuﬂ:ﬂuﬂ

(1eay) uonens|3 yuoN

Page 174




LT:LGG) T20LITLIB0

¥07d

a2y ¥3BNON ONIMYED

Jequiny joelold 0041

MIANNN LO3roNd (v @) 31v08

1212090 SL ole}
aiva A8 Q3%03HO prpey|

o

SUOIJO8S PUNOIL) JOMOT

T

pussbury z¢

103r0N8d

oleg | uonduoseg | ey

(1621) UOGENY YLION = 10T PUNDIB 130 7 UoR93S.

£ i

{1i01) Jocl PUNOIS Jawo1 | UONOIS

[

(]

&

fics @

Oo0o0! 50000000

Page 175



6E:G1-91 22021160

907d

H3WNN ONIMYHA

=

Jequny josloid 051

M3EWNN 103r0Nd (v @) 3708

2UB0B0 '
31vq A8 Q3403HO, A8 Nmvaa |

namo

obelojs uapieb  9joh)

T

pussbury z¢

103r0N8d

3NSS| 40 35048Nd snivis

NOLLINOS3A ALNIBVLINS 3000

oleg | uonduoseg | ey

Ajunoas pue asn Jo ases 10}
J1oop pajesado A|[eouos)3

. ——————Ssd00e Ased

/

]JJJ
a

—

jool
wnpag Ajpusiy
Ajjleluswuosiaug |

[

ueld jooy ueyd Jooj4

Buijiesop Hyos -
adeys jool -
sBuiuado punoJe Yiom¥oLIg ainyes) -
a)j9||ed i1no|jod |eusjew -
:opedey %00|q
juswpede yojew o} pajAls pays s|okD

uonjens|s (Asjissam) puey ya

aAioadsiad g

uoiensle (Alusyses) puey wybry

10} spJemino suado JooQq

T~ Buiuado
1oop apim sy |

(skeq 9 x sunu g) waysAs
abelo}s 9|oAd1q anjam |

abeloys uapleb
10} SHUN 8INdaS

uonens|s (Ajayinos) juoi4

uonenss (AJaypuou) Jeay

s s

Page 176



0

O

{ﬁﬁwmm !

L
! I

ﬁa;;m\m

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

32 Kingsend,

Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW,|
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
9894/APP/2022/3871 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

BoroughPage 177

April 2023

HHILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Interim Director of Planning, Regeneration & Public Realm

Address 53 LAVENDER RISE YIEWSLEY
Development: Erection of a single storey extension to the rear and side and erection of porcl

LBH Ref Nos: 46236/APP/2023/54

Borough Planning Committee
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 178



O 120 eqgejep pue
v © 05 :9]eos
CCCIN wnp aoual
NNNNNNNNN :paonp \}/

w Dmm N o) p poid Id @ wwwwwww N

19N 5
| |
0g 0

ue|d uoled0 asly JapuaAeT £G

Page 179







Lul4 Bunys xy

wnbes a7

Eaun)- 1o

T T RN

05: 1

UOIJeAS|T Juolg mc_ﬂm_xm_

05: 1

UONEASIT SIS BUNSIXT

14

J00MpreT  Jooy onaT]
-~
w f0g 2+
[
Ueld Joo] 1sJ13 Bunsixg

! |
! __
| _
i '
| _
i I
| _
! '
| |
: I
_ __
_
| v_
| |
| e !
_ woouyeg _
! 0L !
_ Z wooipag _
' '
! !
_ |
: |
_ |
_ au] fepunog
0
_
|
I
__
_‘ wooipag J3seN

W g'e
€ wooipag

05: 1

Jooy Jare]

uoneAs|y Jesy mc_ﬂm_xm_

-~
wo0s L+

sjoyuey —

05}
UE|d [oAe] punoJo buisixg

—_

(@)
005t 1 %
__

gl
fpmis

L7

|
!
B 7
(e ‘
|
f
|
_
|
|
i
|
|
_ 1)
Aued
gL
wooy Bunr




JU|o ossodoid

SRR

‘ONMT3Ma

ONLLSIX3 3HL NO 03SN ISOHL HOLYA TIVHS
AN3WJOT3A3A JHL 40 SIOVANNS TWNYILXI JHL 40
NOLLONYLSNOD 3HL NI @3S 38 OL STYINILYN FHL

05: L
UOIeAS[] apIS pasodoid

Z @snoH pesodold Jo Mal)\ ag

20pre1

14

-~
w000's+

0S: |
UOIeAs|] Jeay pesodold

K

\

(¢

0S: 1
UOIeAS|] Juoi pesodoid

w0000+

LofereT

oSz
3
8

2000001

e
w0005+

100y a1
A

Jooy [ore]
-~
wQ0s 2+

—

T T w0

p—
=2

\.\|\|\.\| w0084+

3SNOH pasodold Jo MaIA g

o012

Lol

|§ o

P

Tl

o

o

wooyieg

0S: |
UB|d J00]4 pesodold Jooj] 1siiq

AU GOl
Z wooipag

gL
wooipag salsep

0s: 1

w008 L+

Ueld 100]4 pasodoid [9AST] pUnoJs

aury
o ()
oy (o))
oouelsq ), L ¥y
o5 | o00e ) 1 ©
— T.
/ I
/ __
! .\
| poyesoer
-— 7 °q
- 0} sjoyuepy
wee __
8 Buinguayany
) __
w2 Wz - 1
wooy bunryApmis u\s\ _
{ ]
i
/ |
=4 |
i
L <N |
wwwww \ _
_ i |
& Uoiod juors _
i
{
\ !
009t //
g6l
wooy Bun




Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

53 Lavendar Rise

Yiewsley

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
46236/APP/2023/54 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:

BoroughPage 183

April 2023




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Brandon Lift & Tool Hire Land Off Hayes End Road, Hayes - 74089/APP/2022/1960
	7 Hillingdon House, Banqueting Suite, Wren Avenue, Uxbridge - 77108/APP/2022/691
	8 2 Northbrook Drive, Northwood - 56315/APP/2022/2504
	9 18 Iver Lane, Cowley, Uxbridge - 19016/APP/2023/20
	10 32 Kingsend, Ruislip - 9894/APP/2022/3871
	11 53 Lavendar Rise, Yiewsley - 46236/APP/2023/54
	 PART I - Plans for Borough Planning Committee

